“Win Chadha dies
after heart attack
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NEW DELHI, Oct. 24 . - NJr Win Chadha, a key accused in the
Bofors pay-off case, died after a heart attack in his farmhouse in
south Delhi this morning. He was 78.

Mr Chadha, former agent of AB Bofors, had been suffering from
cancer and exempted from appearing in court.

He was admitted to Batra hospital on 17 September after he had
a brain stroke.

Last month, he had applied to the CBI special judge, Mr SL
KHhanna, for permission to return to Dubai and spend his last ,

days there with his family.-The matter was to-have-been taken
up on 29 October.

At Chadha’s farmhouse in Bijwasan, Gyan Vatika, on the
outskirts of Delhi, there were few visitors.

Barring the immediate neighbours, few people even knew that -

he had died.
The family barred the media’s entry.

The general manager in Chadha’s firm, Avitronics, Mr Saylesh . .

Babu, said: “His relatives want to be alone at the time of grief”.
“Except for close friends and relatives no one is being allowed to
go inside.”

Asked if Chadha’s son, Mr Harsh Chadha, would come to India, : :

Mr Babu said “Harsh is severely depressed after hearing this

news and he is not speaking to anyone. We can’t say anything - :

yet”.

A private security guard at Gyan Vatika said in the months :

after his discharge from hospital Chadha hardly ventured out.

& ‘Bofors probe not to be affected’ page 8 /
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NEW DELHI, OCT. 16. A day after
firing jook place across the Line
of Control (LoC), the Defence
Minister, Mr. George Fer-
nandes, said India would be
ruthless in dealing with infiltra-
tors in Jammu & Kashmir.
Speaking to the media
against the backdrop of U.S.
Secretary of State, Gen. Colin
Powell’s arrival in the country,
the Minister said, “retaliatory
action will always be taken.
There will be no holding back.”
Strongly defending the “‘pu-
nitive” army action on Monday
evening that left 30 infiltrators
dead and several Pakistani Ar-
my posts destroyed, Mr. Fer-
nandes sought to downplay the
impression that the army ac-
tion was in any way connected
to Gen. Powell’s visit. Incidents
of this kind were frequent along
the Line of Control and to some
extent on the international bor-
der as well. He denied that In-
dia initiated the strike or that
the assault had anything to do
with Gen. Powell’s visit. Nor did
the Minister subscribe to the
Pakistani view that India was
acting tough at this juncture.

Only a counter-measure

“The Army took the initiative
to throw back (the infiltrators)
and in the process used fire on
terrorists trying to infiltrate.
Their desire was to prove they

can still i rate while our ac-
tion was-h retaliation,” he ex-

We will be ruthless with
“infiltrators
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plained. The Army countered
the infiltration with small
arms, air defence guns, auto-
matic grenade launchers and
mortars but artillery fire was
not used, the Defence Minister
clarified.Commenting on the
deployment of Pakistani forces
along the border, Mr. Fer-
nandes said there had been no
change since the ceasefire was
called off. Though some troop
movement had taken place fol-
lowing the Afghan crisis, it was
entirely of a defensive nature.

Pak. won't get
backing
on Kashmir: Advani
By Our Special Correspondent

MANESAR, (HARYANA), OCT. 16. In-
dia is fully capable of dealing
with its problems on its own,

n
p

".Hé\{lnion Home Minister, Mr.

andes

L.K. Advani, said here today,
scoffing at Pakistan’s attempt
to link its support to the U.S.-
led coalition against terrorism
with Jammu and Kashmir.

“Our neighbouring country
says it is supporting the inter-
national coalition against ter-
rorism because it feels that it
will get some support for what-
ever it is doing in Jammu and
Kashmir. This is very strange.
Whatever it may say will not get
any help or backing for what it
is doing in Kashmir,” Mr. Ad-
vani said.

On the other hand, he said,
the climate the world over was
such that it would prove helpful
to India in solving the problem
of cross-border terrorism in the
Valley.

Mr. Advani was addressing
the crack commandos and per-
sonnel of the National Security
Guards (NSG) on its 17th Rais-
ing Day here. The two Ministers
of State for Home, Mr. Vidyasa-
gar Rao and Mr. 1.D. Swaini, se-
nior officials of the Ministry
and the Central forces were
present.

He said no terrorist- group,
including the Lashkar-e-Taiba,
the Jaish-e-Mohammad or the
Hizb-ul-Mujahideen, could
fight the “immense power” of a
strong India. “Any terrorist or-
ganisation cannot do anything.
The real danger is when these
groups get the backing, support
and patronage from another
nation.” J
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NEW DELHI, Sept. 10. — Tehel-
ka today asked for documents
that relate to the Centre’s claim
that Tehelka began its sting op-
eration to make money, but the
Justice Venkataswamy Com-
mission couldn’t cémply be-
cause the Centre’s investiga-
tions are still continuing.

The Tehelka chief, Mr Tarun
Tejpal, today filed an applica-
tion requesting the Commis-
sion to release-annexures filed
by the Centre.in its affidavit
accusing the pertal of master-
minding the ‘stock market
cragh. These documents relate
to the income-tax department
and the Securities and Ex-
change Board of India. But the
Commission does not have the
documents as the Centre is
still investigating the case. As
a result, Tehelka has to be

% See TEHELKA: page 8 ,
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“Bofors case: CBI can
argue in Malaysm
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NEW DELH]I, Sept. 6. —~ The 'CBI can now argue independently
before the Malaysian court hearing Mr Ottavio Quattrocchi - a
key accused in the Bofors case.

Terming it a “significant victory for the government of India,”
the CBI spokesman, Mr SM Khan, said the Malaysian High
Court today allowed the CBI to argue in the case of Mr Quattroc-
chi and his extradition to India. He said according to the ruling,
the Centre will be directly affected by the outcome of Mr
Quattrocchi’s application and should be party to the proceedings.
The CBI will respond to Mr Quattrocchi’s charges directly.

Though Mr Quattrocchi’s counsel argued that “cost” should be
part of the main judicial review application, the court rejected his
argument and ordered that “he should pay the costs to the Union
of India immediately”.

The matter will come up for hearing before the Malaysiah High
Court on 22 and 23 October.

Mr Khan said a CBI team will visit Malaysia to argue the case. “Af-
ter the High Court judgement, the proceedings for Mr Quattrocchi’s
extradition will start in a trial court in Malaysia,” he said.

Judge Abdul Aziz Mohamad ruled that the Indian government
should be allowed to challenge Mr Quattrocchi’s application to
quash the extradition order. The court’s decision means that Mr
Quattrocchi (62) will be up against both Malaysian government
prosecutors and lawyers for the Indian government.

Mr Quattrocchi’s lawyers say the Malaysian authorities never
explained why he had been arrested, contrary to extradition law,
which states that a/suspect has the right to know the charges

against him,
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' NEW DELHI, Aug. 30. — A De-
| fence Acquisition Council,
]> chaired by the defence minister,
| 18 being formed to clear all long-
! term defence purchases.

. The defence minister, Mr Jas-
| want Singh, has already ap-
|| proved setting up of DAC and
| under it, Defence Procurement
| Board and Defence Production
| Board, as part of the restructur-
| ing of the defence ministry to
= | deal with purchases of military
se ! equipment.

nt| The DAC is probably the most
- high-powered body ever formed

R

by acquisition

~
S
by the defence ministry since In-
dependence to deal with weap-
ons purchages. It also aims to
engure there is proper planning,
no fighting over resources be-
tween the three services and no
arbitrary purchases,
The DAC will include the min-
ister of state for defence, chief
and vice-chief of defence staff
(when they're appointed), chiefs
of Army, Navy and Air Force,
secretaries of defence, defence
production and defence finance,
and a special secretary in the de-
fence ministry in charge of ac-
quisitions. The member secreta-
ry will be one of the four vice-

cleared

council

c(hlﬂfs of defence staff, but till

they are appointed, the director-

general of defence planning staff

will officiate. From the list of

membérs, if’s clear that the Cen-

tre is serious about appointing a .
chief of defence staff, who will be
third in the hierarchy, and his
secretariat. |
The DAC will approve purcha- '
ses spoken about in the 15-year -
Long Term Perspective Plan, .
covering three five year plans. |
The DAC will approve “make” |
projects or development of sys- -
tems that’ll take time.

¥ See DEFENCE: e 8
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. NEW DELHI, Aug. 29. - The
i defence ministry, which is
i about to restructure itself, has
' asked Transparency Interna-

tional, an international organi-
sation, for help and advice to
ensure that there is no corrup-
tion in arms deals.

Transparency International
officials will meet defence min-
istry officials to suggest chan-

© ges in the ministry’s method of
. functioning, including procure-

ment of military equipment,
sometimes worth thousands of
crores of rupees, officials said.
The defence secretary, Mr Yo-
gendra Narain, and other min-
istry officials are likely to meet

5o\ %
SAMATA MEETING

NEW DELHI, Aug. 29. - Mr|

George Fernandes tonight |
\ called an emergency meetmg[

| of party MPs. The move comes |
1 after the defence minister dls- |
itanced himself from Mr Fer-[

nandes s stand on the issue of
post-Tehe]ka defence procure- |
| 'ments. — SNS

8 Details on page 8
TI personnel It is possible that
Mr Arun Singh, who advises
the defence minister on certain
issues, may be involved.

The defence ministry has been
reorganising itself and trying
to ensure that there are no grey
areas in buying equipment. In

rms deals

90 e

recent times, the ministry and
to an extent, the services have

faced charges of financial mis- .
demeanours culminating with .

the Tehelka expose.

Admiral RH Tahiliani (retd.),
former chief of naval staff, is in-
volved with Transparency Inter-

national, which has German |

links. Officials approached him !
after an article by him about bet-

ter ways of doing business ap- .
peared in a newspaper and the !

journal of the United Services
Institute, a military think tank.

He said: “Transparency Inter- |

national, through out the world, !

speaks of different ways of do-
ing business so that there is no

corruption.” Several important :
issues will come up tomorrow,

including “the integrity pact.”

—
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" Fresh look at -
ban on agents

in defence deals
- %r/ )
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. NEW BELHI, Aug. 28. - ‘The

' government is taking a fresh -

. look st the ban imposed by the |
Rajiv- i government in
1988-8p:Mthe whole factor of
agertts™ in defence deals.

. Mr Jaswant Singh said the gov-
ernment was in the final stages
of examining the “whole factor of
agents in purchase of weapons
systems.”

The defence minister said all
the information on the issue
would be put up on the minis-

. try’s website, For, he had noth-
ing to hide. There have been re-
ports about the decision to go
back to dealing with arms deal-
ers, but ministry officials said
the defence minister is yet to

" take a final decision on it. It
could also go to the Cabinet for

, clearance because it’s a sensitive |,

e v ———— v —— — - h

& See BAN: page 8/
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ndia, Russia
discuss mega
defence deal

«H ,,v"wf ;

—

DEFENCE MINISTER Jaswant
Singh is in Moscow poring over
what could turn out to be the
largest-ever Indo-Russian
defence-cum-economic coopera-
tion deal.

Described as the “matrix” for
future Indo-Russian strategic
cooperation, the Russians are
pushing a “package agreement”
that includes T-90 tanks, the air-
craft carrier Admiral Gorshkov
along with a complement of
MiG-29K shipborne fighters, and
the Su-30 MKI air-superiority
fighter. The bill: a clean $6.1 bil-
lion. Earlier, it was believed that
these were stand-alone deals.

A Defence Ministry
spokesman confirmed that there
was a “totality” about the deal.
Singh is working on a protocol
over the modalities of the deal at
a meeting of the Indo-Russian
Inter-Governmental Commis-
sion for Military-Technological
Cooperation, of which he is co-
chairman along with Russian
Deputy PM Ilya Klebanov.

Meanwhile, user trials of the
T-90 tanks have been “successful-
ly” conducted in Rajasthan. India
wants to purchase 124 T-90s, and
licence-produce 186 more at the
DRDO tank factory at Avadi.
Sticker price: $800 million.

Tagged to the T-90 is the
licensed production of 140 Su-30
fighters at the Bangalore-based
HAL for $3.3 billion.

India has already signed a
contract to purchase 50 Su-30s
off the shelf. Next in the pack-
age is the mighty Admiral Gor-
shkov and the accompanying
shipborne MiG-29Ks.

The Gorshkov isn’t going
cheap either. The carrier, earlier
believed to cost $400 million-§

Vishal Thapar
New Delhi, June 5

700 million, will burn a $2 bil-
lion hole in India’s pocket. This,
while the Russians are giving
the Gorshkov frec. The bill is for
the refit and the aircraft.

The mega-package - also
requires India to invest $1.7 bil-
lion in oil exploration off
Sakhalin. On its part, Russia
will assist in building a nuclear
power plant in Kudankulam,
Tamil Nadu. A transport corri-
dor linking Russia to Iran and
India — by land to the Iranian
port of Bandar Abbas, and then
by sea to Gujarat — is also envi-
sioned.
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said George Fernandes as he met
the media for the first time in
Mumbai after the expose.

“A fictitious play-acting has
been projected as reality. Words

| were added, twisted to give a dif-

ferent meaning to what people
spoke before the camera,” he said,
adding that the tapes have harmed
national security.

When the former firebrand
leader of Mumbai’s working class
was back in the city after an igno-
minious exit from the' cabinet,
about a thousand loyal workers
thronged to the Shanmukbananda
Hall to see him. The rally organ-
ised by the state unit of the Samata
Party was the first public function
of the former defence minister af-

MUMBAL, JUNE 5 ?? A %’\
“TEHELKA was abig fraud,”

George

eman F ta

ter the armsgate scandal.

Members of Municipal Maz-
door Union, Mumbai Taximen’s
Union and other HMKP organisa-
tions were little bothered. They {
presented himwithachequeof Rs |
5 lakh. Fernandes said it will be |
utilised for paying the lawyers |

1

~Tehelka was a frau

fighting Lis Tebelka case. ,
Tehelka has harmed national setu-
rity by demoralising the armed
forces as well as the people of the
country, he alleged. “A lot of peo-
ple made alot of money. I am going
to contest Tehelka’s claims before
the Venkataswamy Commission,”
he said. He refused to come out
openly against the labour reforms
of the Vajpayee Government.

1 Y“Therecanbeadi

CONTINUED ON PAGE Z,

says George

ionover anissue,” he
are spreading a lot o
tion without knowing whether it
will have a negative effect.”

And what about his return to the
Team Vajpayee? “There have
been a lot of stories cooked up in
the media. I am not the type to put

ehelka was a big

the pressure on the governme;
reinduct me,”he said.

N
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/Separatlon of Bofors
' (trial ordered

STATES M\EWS SERVICE
NEW DELI;I,\May 25. — A designated CBI court today ordered

men, the Hinduja brothers — from that of Italian businessman Mr
Ottavio Quattrocchi and former AB Bofors chairman Mr Martin

duja and Mr GP Hinduyja both British nationals, Mr PP Hinduja, a
Swiss national, former defence secretary Mr SK Bhatnagar, Swed-
ish gun manufacturer AB Bofors and its agent Mr Win Chaddha.

Special Judge Mr RL Chugh while ordering a separation of the

can be made as to when the two person (Mr Ottavio Quattrocchi
and Mr Martin Ardbo) would be present before the court... I direct
the CBI to file separate police reports against the two accused as

tice against Mr Ardbo”.

The court took cognisance of the fact that the case is a decade old and
still in the preliminary stage. “It is also of utmost importance for the
state and society that the case which originated in 1990 at least pro-
ceed with,” said Mr Chugh.

The CBI alleged that the Hinduja brothers had received over 81 mil-
lion Swedish Kroners from AB Bofors who had received a Rs 1,437-
crore gun contract in the mid-1980s.

The Hindujas appeared before a trial court in Delhi on 19 Janu-
ary when they were granted bail but were asked to stay in India.
The Delhi High Court in its 27 April order asked CBI to file an a
plication in the trial court asking for separation of charges so
hearing in the case can be completed expeditiously.

separation of‘the trial of six accused - including the NRI business- '

Ardbo in the Bofors kickbacks case.The six accused are Mr SP Hin-

trial said, “It is a matter of chance and no reasonable assessment :

soon as possible and warrants of Mr Quattrocchi are extended till .
further orders. The CBI may also pursue the red corner alert no-
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The Times of India News Service
NEW DELHI: Although the Court
of Inquiry (Col) has found the six
army officers named in the ‘arms-
gate’ expose prima facie guilty of
corruption and misconduct, the
army says that talk of them facing a
General Court Martial (GCM) is
“too premature”’.

“It’s a long process in which only
the first step (the Col) has now
been completed. The accused can
face either disciplinary action
(GCM) or administrative action
(ranging from displeasure to termi-
nation of services),” said a senior
army officer.

The officers indict-

ed in the Col report
are Maj-Gen PSK.
Choudhary, Maj-
Gen Manjit g
Singh Ahluwalia,
Maj-Gen Satnam
Singh, Brig Iqbal
Singh and Col
Anil Sehgal, all
attached to Army
Headquarters at present. Another
officer, Lt-Col Sharma, on deputa-
tion with the IAF, has also been
found guilty of improper conduct.
t Incidentally, Maj-Gen
»| Choudhary, who was additional
-| director general (weapons and
-| equipment), was the only officer
who had publicly admitted having
»| taken Rs 1 lakh and a gold chain
1| from the Tehelka journalists who
.| had posed as arms dealers.
i The report of the Col, which was
+| headed by Lt-Gen SK. Jain, was
submitted to Western Army
Command chief Lt-Gen Surjit
Singh on Monday. The officers
posted in Delhi come under the
Western Army Command.

“After studying the report and
1| consulting the Judge, Advocate
. Generwanch, Lt-Gen Surjit

- e o gw e oUW
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Inquiry holds, .-
Armsgate’
officers guilty\qu '

rmy

decide whether it warrants discipli-
nary or administrative action,” said
an officer.

The GCM will come into play
only if it is decided to take discipli-
nary action. The army commander -
will first order recording of sum- .
mary, following which GCM pro-
ceedings headed by a Lt-Gen !
(since Maj-Gens figure among the
accused) can begin.

Conversely, if the army com-
mander opts for administrative °
action, punishments ranging from |
severe displeasure to termination
of service can be
23 handed out to the |
accused under the :
relevant sections
of the Army Act.
Under the Army |
Act, termination of |
services can take ;
§ Dplace in two ways— |
‘ one, after issuing :
# show-cause notices to
d the accused, or two, the
services of the guilty
4 officers are directly

&7 terminated by the
= President, the Supreme
Commander of the Armed
Forces, without any show-cause
notices. The latter step was taken in
the now infamous Samba spying
case. While Maj-Gen Manjit Singh
Ahluwalia was clandestinely
filmed by the decoy arms dealers
asking for a bottle of Blue Label
Scotch, Maj-Gen Satnam Singh
had offered advice on procurement
procedures to be followed.

Another accused, Brig Igbal
Singh, had allegedly accepted Rs
50,000 as bribe. Col Anil Sehgal, in
turn, had reportedly demanded Rs
2 lakhs from the dotcom journal-
ists, claiming the money went all
the way to the top. y
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' three Hinduja brothers, a

‘Bofors: CBI gets
fresh do&cuments

NEW DELHI, MAY 15

CBI today questioned
the Rs 64 crore Bofors pay-off

| case, after receiving a fresh set of
i documents from Swiss authorities

. detailing transfer of

i namely - S P Hinduja,

\

: to the agency head-
' quarters and ques-
i tioned for over three

money.
The three brothers,

G P Hinduja and P P
Hinduja - were called

hours regarding al-
leged transfer of money from their

- accounts to other companies, a
CBI spokesman said here.

The spokesman said the three
brothers — British nationals Sric-
hand and Gopichand and Swiss
Nationa! Prakashchand — were

. examined separately by the inves-

tigating officers.
The CBI would be retaining

+ these documents for some time for

Hmdujas grilled

; PRESS TRUST OF INDIA

further scrutiny, he said, adding
these had already been shown to
Special Judge R L Chugh, who is
hearing the Bofors payoff case.

However, he said the agency
would not require for questioning
in the near future Srichand and
Goplchand Hinduja, both British
nationals, who have
been granted permis-
sion by the Supreme
Court to go abroad.

The spokesman
said as Prakashchand
would be available, the
| CBI might question

himif the need arose.
The Letters Roga-
tory for transfer of the documents
wasn’t to the Swiss authorities last
year in June, the spokesman said,
adding “as of now, there are no
more documents about the case
but if during the probe any fresh
evidence comes to light about
more papers, the agency would
make a fresh application for their
transfer.”

CONTINUED ON PAGE 2
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FTER being forced to stay
put in India for four
onths, two of the three

i Hindujabrothers were allowed to-

day by the Supreme Court to go
abroad, while the third stood guar-
antee for their return by August
20.

Overruling the CBI's con-
tention that their presence was re-
quired for the Bofors trial, the
Court granted permission to Sric-
hand and Gopichand Hinduja,
both British nationals, to leave the
country after furnishing a bail
bond of Rs 15 crore each, the
highest-ever in the Indian legal
history.

Abench, comprising Justice M

. B Shah and Justice Y K Sabhar-

wal, passed the order in line with
the suggestion made the counsel
for the Hindujas, Kapil Sibal, that
Prakashchand Hinduja, a Swiss

lets two Hin
of Rs 30 «

- EXPRESS NEWS SERVICE

Srichand Hinduja: Heavy
price for limited mobility

national, would serve as a guaran-
tor.

The bench, however, refused
to pass any order on Sibal’s plea to
allow substitution of Prakashc-
hand Hinduja with one of the two
brothers if he came back much be-
fore August 20.

While directing Srichand and
Gopichand Hindwa to furnish
bail bonds of Rs 15 crore each

through bank guarantees to the
satisfaction of the trial judge, the
apex court clarified that during
their absence the proceedings be-
fore the trial court would be unaf-
fected and their counsel would not

be allowed to take adjournments-

on the ground of their absence.

Thus, the Hindujas obtained
an interim relief just the day be-
fore the Supreme Court closes for
a two-month summer vacation.

This development followed a
24-hour ultimatum the court gave
yesterday to the CBI to spell out,
regardless of its reservations, the
terms on which the brothers could
goabroad.

Yesterday, the court brushed
aside the CBI’s claim that it has
taken steps to separate the trial of
the Hindujas from the other ac-
cused in the Bofors case so that
the recording of evidence against
them can be completed in six
months.

Since the case involved many

'NOIAN EXPRES
INDIAN EXPFR~

13 MAY 201

fas leave on bail ;
r, third stands guarantee

witnesses, including those residing
abroad, the apex court said the
trial was more likely to take years.

The Supreme Court’s order is
in contrast to that of the Delhi
High Court directing the trial
court on the basis of the CBI's
claim to complete the recording of
the evidence against the Hindujas
within six months.

This compelled the apex court
to clarify that the trial court can
conduct its proceedings without
being “influenced” by the High
Court'sdeadline. - ~g-: .

Adjourning the matter to Au- |

gust 7, the Supreme Courtsaid, “If '
there is any violation of the condi- ! :

tions imposed today, it will be open

to the special judge to pass appro- | -

P Hinduja,” which means PP Hin-

priate orders to cancel the bail of P |
|
duja bears the risk of being jailed in |

case his two brothers fail to comply >

with the apex court order.
The three brothers
since January 19.
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- 8C asks CB to file affidavit

' OUR LEGAL CORRESPONDENT
STATESMAN NEWS SERVICE

NEW DELHI, May 11. — The
Supreme Court today asked the
CBI to file its affidavit by
tomorrow in the controversial
Bofors gun deal case.

i Challenging the 27 April
| single-judge Bench judgment
| (presided over by Mr Justice
| SK Agarwal) of Delhi High
i Court, the Hinduja brothers
| have sought permission to go

abroad.

On oppositicn by CBI counsel,
Mr N Natarajan and Mr P
| Pareshwaran, Delhi High
Court had already directed the

‘ prosecution to complete their
| evidence within six months, the
{ Division Bench of the Supreme
‘ Court (coram, Shah, Sabharw-
. al, JJ) observed: “Is it practical
to finish the trial within this
period, when there are 95
prosecution witnesses, many of
whom are foreign-based?”

The court asked the CBI to
give details about the number
of witnesses who are in India
and of those who were foreign-
.based and also to suggest the
' conditions which may be
required to be imposed on the
accused if the court passes an
. order in their favour permitting
‘ them to go abroad.

BOFORS PAYOFFS CASE

The three brothers who
filed SLPs are Mr Gopichand P
Hinduja, Mr Prakash P
Hinduja and Mr Srichand P
Hinduja and are defended by
senior counsel Mr Kapil Sibal,
Mr PP Rac and Mr Rajender
Singh.

Counsel for Hindujas pleaded
that their client had huge
investments in India and had
volunteered before the CBI for
interrogation. They undertook
to cooperate in court proc-
eedings.

The CBI had maintained
before the High Court that the
case was registered on 22
January 1990 and first
chargesheet was registered on
22 January 1999. The petit-
ioners had been visiting India
regularly from 1991 till 1999.
However, after the Swiss Fed-
eral Court dismissed their app-
eal and allowed transmission of
documents/evidence to India,
they stopped visiting India and
declined to participate in
investigation on January 12,
23, 26 and 12 May 2000.

The High Court was also
informed by the CBI that Mr
GP Hinduja took up British
nationality on 23 June 1998

after the examining
magistrate, Geneva, issued a
decision closing the procedure
on 15 June 1998, allowing
transmission of evidence to
Indian authorities. Mr SP Hin-
duja obtained British national-
ity on 27 April 1999 shortly be-
fore the Swiss Cantonal Court
dismissed their appeal on 17
May 1999 and Mr PP Hinduja
also took up Swiss nationality
on 21 September 2000.

The High Court had, in the
impugned judgment, held: “In
view of the above, taking into
consideration the nature and
gravity of the offence, conduct of
the petitioner and the fact that
they have no immovable or
movable assets in this country,
apprehension of the prosecution
that the petitioners may not be
available before the court, if they
fee] that proceedings of the case
were going adverse to them,
cannot be said to be unfounded.”
Hearing adjourned: A
designated CBI court today
adjourned the hearing in the
Bofors gun pay-off case till 14
May as arguments by defence
counsel against the CBI
petition to split the case were
not completed.

The CBI has filed an appeal in
the court for separate trial of
six accused, including the
Hinduja brothers, in pursuance
of the Delhi High Court order of
27 April. The High Court
directed the CBI to move to the
trial court for separate trial of
Hinduja brothers and other
accused who had appeared
before the court for expeditious
trial against them.

Special public prosecutor for
CBI, Mr US Prasad, told the
court today: “The CBI is ready
and willing to separate the trial
in accordance with law and
pursuance of the Delhi High
Court order.”

Mr Amit Desai, counsel of Mr
SP Hinduja, said: “The CBI -
plea for separate trial is not
maintainable under Section
317 of the Criminal Procedure
Code as it is only applicable
under those cases where all the
accused have appeared before
the court. Mr Martin Ardbo and
Mr Ottavio Quattrocchi have
yet to appear before the court.”

He said: “ The trial
proceedings are at a
preliminary stage. We have
moved an application to the
court to scrutinise certain
documents and files to see the '
charges levelled against my

clients.” ; e
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“Cong. disapproves of Hindujas’
role in diplomatic assignmenti/

By Javed M Ansari Y\q A

NEW DELHI MAY 9. After its “polite
inquiry” yesterday , the Congress
today expressed “strong disap-
proval” of the Government's de-
cision to utilise the services of the
Hinduja brothers in its meetings
with various heads of states. “We
totally disapprove of the utilisa-
tion of the industrial house of the
Hindujas for delicate diplomatic
assignments’” said the party
spokesman Mr. Jaipal Reddy.

The Congress also took excep-
tion to the fact that the contro-
versial Hinduja brothers were
present when discussions took
place between the Principal Sec-
retarv to the Prime Minister, Mr.
Brajesh Mishra and Mr. Tony
Blair and also at his meetings with
the President of France. Mr. Red-
dy revealed that an Iranian, Mr.
Hakimi, was present at the meet-
ing with Mr. Chirac which accord-
ing to him was “‘unprecedented”
in the diplomatic history of the
country.

He deplored that the Indian
High Commissioner to the UK.
and the Ambassader to France
were both kept in the dark about
“the meetings and the proceed-
ings of the meetings”. Mr. Reddy
said that while it was not known
how much the country gained
from such “clandestine diplomat-
ic encounters it is evident that the
prestige of the Hindujas went up
by leaps and bounds in the eyes of
the two governments”.

The party sought to rope in the
Prime Minister and said that Mr.
Brajesh Mishra was merely a
messenger and was carrying out

the orders of the Prime Minister
who was also the External Affairs
Minister at that time. “He could
not have taken the Hindujas
along without the knowledge of
the Prime Minister,” said Mr.
Reddy.

The alacrity with which the
Ministry of External Affairs had
rushed with an explanation and
the defence of this procedure
“shows that it is the PM who was
primarily responsible”, for what
happened.

The Congress also kept up the
pressure on the BJP-led Govern-
ment by making it clear that it
considered the results of the cur-
rent Assembly elections as “‘judg-
ment on the anti-people policies
and performance of the Vajpayee-
led Government’'. He referred, in
particular, to the anti-farmer pol-
icies.

Mr. Reddy said that it was Mr.
Vajpayee who had first referred to
these polls as a “referendum on
his Government.” However much
the Prime Minister might want to
run away now, they can't escape
the political responsibility of the
verdict through their protesta-
tions,” he said.

Nothing wrong in
taking help of
Hindujas: BJP

By Our Special Correspondent

NEW DELHf, MAY 9. After maintain-
ing silence yesterday, the Bharati-
ya Janata Party today defended
the Prime Minister’'s Principal
Secretary, Mr. Brajesh Mishra, us-
ing the good offices of the Hindu-

NC
ja brothers ‘wh seeki
appointment with the British
Prime Minister, Mr) Tony Blair, in
1998. f

Mr. J.P. Mathur, senior party
leader, saw nothing wrong in the
Government approaching the
Hindujas who were very much the
subject of an investigation into
the Bofors deal. Yesterday, the
Government took shelter behind
the fact that in 1998 the Hindujas
were not yet chargesheeted in the
case.

Recalling the difficult situation
India was in after the May 1998
Pokhran nuclear experiments,
Mr. Mathur said the circumstanc-
es demanded “delicate diplomat-
ic handling” and there was
“nothing wrong” in Mr. Mishra
taking the help of the Hindujas. In
fact, he went a step further and
lauded the Principal Secretary’s
role (and one presumes that of
the Hindujas) in improving Indo-
British ties in the post Pokhran
period.

Neither the government yester-
day nor the BJP today saw the im- |
propriety of seeking a
businessman’s help to get an ap-
pointment for the Prime Minis-
ter's personal emissary who was
by his own admission carrying a
letter from Mr. Vajpayee to Mr.
Blair. ;

In fact, when the BJP now de- i
nounces the AIADMK leader, Ms.
J. Tayalalitha, as “corrupt” it uses
a similar argument, pointing out
that she had not been convicted
when she was the BJP’s ally in
1998 though Ms. Jayalalitha stood
chargesheeted in several cases.
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~ Plot to kill Tehelka
chief: 6 ISI

STATESMAN NEWS SERVICE & PTI

NEW DELHI, May 6. — Delhi
Police late last evening
arrested six criminals backed
by Pakistan’s ISI and foiled
their plan to kill Tarun Tejpal,
tehelka.com’s editor-in-chief,
and his colleague Aniruddha
Bahl.

Police said they wanted to kill |

Tejpal to embarrass and
, destablise the government.
Their murder would have been
attributed to those shown on
the Tehelka’s ‘defence deal’
footage.

The six have been identified
as Bhupinder Tyagi, Dinesh
Tyagi, Raj Kumar, Rakesh,
Anil and Ombir. Aeting on a
tip-off, a team led by Inspector
Mohan Chand Sharma
arrested them from Jahangir
Puri, north-west Delhi, as soon
as they returned from Nepal
with arms and ammunition in
a stolen Tata Safari (DL8C F
5815). .

The special commissioner
(Intelligence), Mr S Rama-
krishnan said today: “They had
planned to kill Tejpal this
week, because any attempt to
' kill him would have affected
the government’s stability and
i put it in an embarrassing
' gituation”. The plan was
hatched by an ISI official

he said.
ifles, elght

cocienamed “Jam
Two AK-47

two mobile
three sim cards,
notes and photographs
Tejpal and Bahl were seized
from them.

Delhi Police Intelligence Division
Special Commissioner Mr §
Ramakrishnan speaks to the media
in I\Iew Delhl on Sunday - APIPTI

Mr Rafnakrlshnan said
Bhupinder had planned to kill
Tejpal and Bahl last month.

He was once a Bihar-based
mafia but shifted his base to
Nepal five years ago. The ISI
had contacted him in Nepal.
“Bhupinder was promised Rs
10 lakh and was assured that

§men held

he could retain the weapons he
would use to kill his targets.”

Bhupinder was in touch with
the other accused who were
living in north-west Delhi. In
the first week of April, he had
surveyed Tejpal’s house and
office.

After working out the details,
he returned to Nepal “as more
arms and money were required

to execute the job,” Mr
Ramakrishanan said.
“They also had drawings of Mr

Tejpal’s house and office and
noted the timing of his going to
office and returning home. The
drawings suggest that they wan-
ted to kill him while he would be

! driving his car.”

Mr Ramakrishnan said the
six had planned that they
would follow Tejpal in two cars.
“The plan was first to intercept

# Tejpal’s car and then to fire at

him with AK-47 rifles”.

He said Bhupinder used to
stay with some criminals who
“do not have any crime record
in the capital”.

A case of has been registered
with Lodhi Colony police
station against the six.

They were produced in the
Patiala House court today.

A metropolitan magistrate,
Mr MC Gupta, remanded

them in police cu till 11
May.
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~Court rejects
Hindwas

STATESMAN NEWS SERVICE

NEW DELHI, May 4\ - A
designated CBI court today
declined to issue stay order on
the trial proceedings in the
Bofors case and rejected the
Hinduja brothers’ plea seeking
exemption from appearing in
the proceedings.

Hearing a CBI plea for a sep-
arate trial of six accused, inclu-
ding the Hindujas, the special
judge, Mr RL Chugh, asked
their counsel to file replies by
the next date of hearing and
posted the matter for 8 May.

The six accused are Mr SP
Hinduja, Mr GP Hinduja, Mr
PP Hinduja, former Bofors ag-
ent, Mr Win Chaddha, former
defence secretary, Mr SK Bhat-
nagar, and Swedish arms ma-
nufacturer, AB Bofors. The CBI
application was moved its
counsel Mr N Natrajan in com-
pliance with the 27 April order
of the Delhi High Court § se-
paration of the trials of ghese
sccused from that ob B ala

Lumptr-based Mr $vio

Quattroechi and fornreraliliior:

chiof Mr Martin Ardbo.

Mr Quattrocchi and Mr ;%dbo
have not appeared so far pgfore

* the court despite issuing of #um-
monses and non-bailable farr-

ants. Delhi High Court om 27

April had dismissed the, Hin-

duja brothers' appeal for leaving

the country, saying the WI’S
apprehension that they might
not be available for trial duld
not be said to be unfoundeds
But Mr Justice SK Agagwal
had directed the CBI to mgove
the trial court for separate ¥rial
of Hindujas and other actflsed
who have already appeared
hefore the eourt for expe(ﬁt:(ms
disposal of charges against

them, .

The CBI had given ; an

undertaking to the High ,(igurt

that it was ready to splif=the
trial of Hindujas and Qqther
accused who had appeargg in
the case from that of QWat-
trocchi and Ardbo in vieg of
delay in their extradition. &
Directing the trial coug{ to

record evidence preferably én a

day-to-day basis within ¥six

months, the High Courffllad
said if CBI failed to do s0,5the

Hindujas could move the j&'jal

court to seek permission t§ go

out of the country. 4

Earlier, arguing for Mr*PP

Hinduja, his counsel Mr Affind

Nigam submitted for stay ofthe

proceedings in the trial coygg as

the Hinduja brother #ad
appealed to the Supreme Clurt

challenging the 27 April ofdi of

Delhi High Court, which upEeld
the trial court’s order of dengng
the permission to the Hindhja
hrothers to go abroad withput

the co%Permission. i
KXL



_HINDUJAS:

(Continu fzo;n age 1)

*  The High Cotyrt had Zaid that

. | the CBI's apprehension that

! ! the Hindujas' might not be

|, available for trial could not be

| isaid to be unfounded. It had

* directed the CBI to move the
trial court for- splitting up the
trial of the Hindujas and other
accused who had already
appeared before it and
complete recording of evidence
within six months.

It said if the CBI failed to do
so, the Hinduja brothers could
move the trial court to seek
permission to go out of the
country after six months.

In that eventuality, the court
would consider their plea, inter
alia, on the condition that they
deposit an amount equivalent
to $11.84 million along with
interest at the rate of 10 per
cent per annum from 1
January 1990 till the date of
payment in any nationalised
bank to be released subject to
the orders of the court.

Mr Justice Agarwal said
considering the gravity of the
offence and the conduct of the
petitioners, who are foreign
nationals, imposition of the
condition by the trial court,
directing them not to leave the
country without its permission
were fully justified and in
accordance with the law.

THE STATESMAN
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- Hindujas
ORRer

NEW DELHI, May 1. - Hinduja brothers today
filed special leave petitions in the Supreme
Court against the Delhi High Court order
rejecting their plea for permission to leave India
pending trial in the Bofors pay-off case.
Seeking leave to appeal against the order of
Mr Justice SK Agarwal on 27 April, the broth-
ers said in their separate petitions that it suf-
' fered from lack of compassion and sensitive-
ness to their legitimate needs and compul-
sions. If the order was sustained, it would
amount to punishment of the accused long be-
fore the trial, they said.
Claiming that no case had been made out
against them in the CBI chargesheet, Lon-
, don-based Mr SP Hinduja and Mr GP Hindu-
ja and Geneva-based Mr PP Hinduja submit-
' ted that the trial was bound to take a long
time since several co-accused were yet to be
produced in the court.
The petitions were moved by Mr Ujjwal Ra-
na on behalf of the Hindujas.

PRESS TRUST OF INDIA

mave SC

The de¢nial of permission to leave India
would belarbitrarily unjustified and violative
of their right to life enshrined under Articles
14 and 21 of the Constitution, the petitioners
submitted. .

The brothers said that besides substantial
roots, they had investment programines of": ’
about Rs 10,000 crore in India and, therefore,
couldn’t stay away from the country. The ap-
prehension that they won’t make themselves
available to the court was an unfounded
conjecture.

The petitioners submitted that the High
Court had expanded the scope of the proceed-
ings resulting in serious miscarriage of jus-
tice. The petition before the High Court was
limited to modification of the bail conditions
imposed by the trial court and seeking per-
mission to travel out of India during the pend-
ency of the case, but the court had made cer-
tain findings which were unjustified at this
stage.

m See HINDUJAS: page 8 /
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Parhament adjourned Opp d|v1de(L

Cong firm
on JPC over

Tehelka

ECY I (C

STATESMAH NEWS SERVICE

NEW DELHI, April 17. - Par-
‘ liament was adjoumed today
| after question hour but behind-
| the-scenes manoeuvres to try
and find a solution to thé legis-
| lative logjam continued.

2 They include a quick sine

die adjournment after the rail-

and general.budgets are pre-
;1 sented and, a less likely sce-
i nario, a switch from the gov-
ernment-instituted judicial
' inquiry to the Congress-de-
manded JPC probe into Te-
helka charges.

The Congress stuck to its
earlier decision of not allow-
ing Parliament to function till
its demands for a JPC inquiry

" and legml action against the
“Tehelka-tainted” were met.

There was division in the
Opposition ranks with the
Left staying out of the Con-
gress’s disruptive tactics and
later questioning why the
main Opposition party deci-
ded on a JPC probe demand
unilaterally.

There . are strong indica-
tions, according to govern-
ment sources, that the fi-
nance Bill may be re-tabled
tomorrow and be allowed to
pass on Thursday without

any major ‘discussion, after -

which the Houses will be ad-
journed sine die.
The impasse, which has

plagued the budget sesef/

with repeated adjournments
ever since the Tehelka contro-
versy erupted last month, has
resulted in huge wastage, in
terms of money and time. And
given the proclivities of the
Congress, it appears that the
impasse will continue.

According to sources, the
government is amenable to a
sine die adjournment to ena-
ble members to be more gon-
structively occupied. But offi-
cials denied knowledge of-any
such move.

It will be a mockery of the
parliamentary system if the
budget was allowed to pass
without any discussion, ob-
servers said.

The Congress, despite its in- -
sistence on a JPC probe, |
seemed to have made a tacti- -
cal retreat in allowing the ;

question hour to function. It
said its decisions on parlia-

mentary conduct would de-

pend on day-to-day strategies.
“We don’t want to be seen as
the villain of the piece by dis-

rupting the proceedings of the |

House.

“It would be a blow-hot—and-

blow-cold strategy in regard |

to whether or not to!

allow the proceedings to con-

tinue,” s Congress leader said.
The Congress wondered why

B See JPC: page 8
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\Cracks surface

oy o ot ©
within oppn.

b

The Times of India News Service
and Agencies

NEW DELHI: As both Houses of
parliament were adjourned on
Tuesday, deep cracks surfaced in
the opposition ranks with the Left-
Samajwadi Party combine differing
with the Congress on the line of
action to be taken on the bribery-
on-tape issue. While the Left made
it clear that it favoured a discussion
in the House on the Tehelka issue,
the Congress-RID combine vowed
to continue its agitation.

Following a meeting between
Congress president Sonia Gandhi
and Laloo Prasad Yadav, the RID
announced that it would press for

7 the arrest of those found guilty in

the scam. “We can give no guaran-
tee regarding the normal function-
ing of the House,” RID leader in
the Lok Sabha Raghuvansh Prasad
Yadav later said, hinting that his
party would toe the Congress line.
He Teiterated that there was no
backing out on the demands on
which the opposition had agitated
before the mid-session recess.
CPM leader Somnath
Chatterjee, on the other hand, said
that the Congress had differed
with other opposition parties by
going ahead with its demand for
the constitution of a joint parlia-
mentary committee on the Tehelka
issue. “We are saying, let the prose-
cution (of the accused) start, we
want a proper discussion,” Mr
Chatterjee said, admitting that on
this point, opposition unity had

Dg e

\1\’\
on Arms

gate’

broken down, with the Congress
taking'a different line.

He insisted that his party had
not withdrawn the demand for the
Prime Minister’s resignation.
Expressing dissatisfaction with the
inquiry announced by the govern-
ment, he said the commission was
hamstrung by its limited power to
take action against the guilty.

“The Prime Minister is only
encouraging corruption in the
country,” Mr Chatterjee said,
referring to the latest WLL scam.
At the same time, he was emphatic
that his party was in favour of a
discussion in the House.

Blaming the Congress for the
differences, he said that that party
had come out with the demand for
a JPC without consulting others.
“The Congress said, ‘JPC before
discussion’. We pointed out that a
JPC cannot punish the guilty,” the
CPM leader said.

Asked if the breakdown of
opposition unity may have any
implications for next month’s
assembly elections in which the
Congress and the CPM are locked
in a direct battle in two states, Mr
Chatterjee remarked, “At least not
in West Bengal.” In another related
development, BSP leader
Mayawati said she too was in
favour of the normal functioning of
parliament and a proper discussion
on the Tehelka issue. Explaining
her party’s position, she said the
BSP would maintain its distance

from the BJP and the Congress.
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Both Bofors and Defencegate are arms scams. But that’s where the similarities end

«¢ Atale of two scandals

assumption dhat the public has a

short memory, And so, while many
political leaders have drawn parallels
between the Bofors scandal that began
in 1987 (and still drags on) and the
Defencegate scandal set off by the
Tehelka tapes, few people have bothered
to tell us what exactly these parallels are.

In fact, if you delve back into the head-
lines of that period (1987-90), you find
that while there are some points of simi-
larity, there are also many critical differ-
ences. One reason why these are being
downplayed by the ruling NDA could be
that once you put the scandals side by
side, neither the Congress nor those who
turned Bofors into a national crusade
come off particularly well.

The-obvious point of similarity is that
both are arms scandals. But there are
important differences. Bofors was a real
deal. Tehelka’s was a sting operation.
Even while the Bofors scandal was rag-
ing, as distinguished a critic of the Rajiv
Gandhi government as Jaswant Singh
conceded that the Bofors howitzer was a
good gun. The point, he said, was not the
quality of the weapon, it was whether
Bofors had paid bribes to swing the deal.
In the Tehelka case, nobody in the
defence ministry even bothered about the
quality of the goods sought to be sup-
plied. As Tarun Tejpal has said, if they
had probed even a little bit, they would
have discovered that not only did the
goods not exist but that the suppliers
knew nothing about their alleged trade.

As journalistic stories, the two scan-
dals were completely different. Tehelka
was a home-grown Indian operation
launched by a website which says that it
is open to any examination of its motives.
The Indian media did not break the
Bofors story. It came from Swedish radio.

' After that, the scandal was sustained by
documents leaked by disaffected Swedes
to the Hindu’s Chitra Subramaniam. Not
one of the other journalists who made so
much noise about Bofors ever found any
new information of comparable value.

Tarun Tejpal says that Tehelka is apo-
litical; that his journalists had no animus
against the BJP or the Samata Party; they
went where the story took them. During
the Bofors scaridal, many of those writ-
ing about the affair were motivated by a
deep and abiding desire to bring Rajiv
Gandhi down.

Even the Hindu, which did some fine
work during this period, timed its disclo-
sures to damage the government (before
the AICC session etc).

the Bofors case, the Hindu broke the
stories but the Indian Express provided
the drama. This was at a time when the
Express had already been accused of con-
spiring against the government. A raid
on the Express guest house revealed a
draft of a hostile letter from President
Giani Zail Singh to Rajiv Gandhi. The
draft had been corrected by the Express’
S. Mulgaonkar. Eventually, the President
did send the letter and when the Express
reported its dispatch, no mention was
made of the paper’s role in its drafting.

POLITICIAN OPERATE on the

BY VIR SANGHVI

RECEDING HEADLINES: Rajiv Gandhi and Atal Bihari Vajpayee

It is not my case that the Express wil-
fully twisted the truth and behaved
unethically. But it is worth remembering
that it was around this time that there
grew around Ramnath Goenka, a collec-
tion of politically aware individuals:
S. Gurumurthy, Ram Jethmalani, Chan-
draswami, Dr J.K. Jain and others. All of
these people had their own axes to grind.
No similar charge can be levelled against
the Tehelka team.

Further, even if the government were
to fall and be replaced by a regime that
wished to further investigate Defence-
gate, I doubt very much if the Tehelka
team would join the investigation. On the
other hand, the Express lobby helped
with the V.P. Singh regime’s investigation
into Bofors. S. Gurumurthy contributed
to the drafting of the letter rogatory to
Switzerland. Arun Jaitley, the Express’
lawyer, became Additional Solicitor-Gen-
eral and was part of the investigating
team. Even Chitra Subramaniam was
drafted to help the investigators till she
fell out with them.

In fact, almost everybody who led the
Bofors attack received some recognition
from the political establishment.
Arun Shourie and N. Ram got Padma
Bhushans. And T.N. Chaturvedi, who, as
Comptroller and Auditor-General, wrote
a damaging report on Bofors that led to
mass resignations in Parliament, became
a BJP MP after his retirement.

It is not my intention to suggest that
any of this was improper. Most of the
people I have mentioned have unim-
peachable integrity and believed they

were acting in the national interest. Fur-
ther, it is unfair to talk of the behaviour -

of the Express without recognising that it
was fighting for its very survival as the
Rajiv Gandhi regime made a reprehensi-
ble and police-state-like attempt te shut
the paper down.

But two points are worth mentioning.
One: many of these people are now on the
other side of the fence and they display
none of the passion for integrity in public

life that fired them in those days. And two:
Tehelka’s motives and approach are com-
pletely different from those who kept the
Bofors issue alive. Tarun Tejpal has said
that he was trying to emulate the inves-
tigative journalism of the Eighties. Per-
haps he needs to rethink that position.

The political establishment has
demonstrated that while governments
change, its reactions don’t. When the
Bofors scandal broke, the Congress
regime first tried to brazen it out (“no
commissions were paid”) and then
blamed it all on a conspiracy to desta-
bilisé India. Likewise, the BJP govern-
ment first tried the bold approach (Ban-
garu: “Why should I resign?” a few hours
before he went), and then went for a con-
spiracy theory. In a gesture touchingly
reminiscent of Indira Gandhi’s reliance
on the foreign hand, her old bete noire
George Fernandes even suggested that
the ISI could be behind Tehelka.

The Congress government’s counter-
attack, however, came too late and relied
on lies. It produced the St. Kitts forgeries
to link V.P. Singh’s son with numbered
accounts. The NDA government, on the
other hand, acted far more quickly and
came out with a detailed dossier on V.
George’s hidden assets thereby throwing
the Congress on the defensive for a day.

In terms of irresponsibility, nothing
has changed for the opposition. In 1987,
the opposition disrupted Parliament, boy-
cotted the Joint Parliamentary Commit-
tee, and made untrue allegations against
Rajiv. At one rally, VP. Singh even pulled
out an electronic notebook and said that
he had the number of Rajiv’s secret
accounts entered inside. That was foolish
and irresponsible. But then so was Buta
Singh’s calling A.B. Vajpayee a ‘chor’ in
Parliament (thus proving that Singh is an
embarrassment to whichever party he
joins) and the Congress’ wilful and
entirely unnecessary disruption of the
parliamentary session.

During Defencegate, a concerted
attempt has been made (by the Sangh

-~

parivar much more than the Congress) to
drag Vajpayee’s family into the scandal
despite the absence of any hard evidence.
Similarly, during Bofors, an attempt was
made to suggest that Sonia Gandhi’s Ital-
ian relatives had received kickbacks. The
V.P. Singh government went a step fur-
ther: it actually included the names of
Sonia’s brothers-in-law in the Letter
Rogatory sent to Switzerland. (Nothing
came out of this enquiry)

During Bofors, the Hindu was mea-
sured and careful, depending on docu-
ments (except for one ik-judged ‘Italian
connection’ headline before the 1989 elec- |
tions). But others were less fastidious.
One of the criticisms levelled against
Tehelka is that it did not bother to cross-
check the allegations made against pub-
lic figures by arms dealers. This may be a
fair point, but with the exception of the
Hindu, virtually nobody cross-checked
anything during Bofors either.

For instance, the Indian Express print-
ed a page one article called ‘Would You
Pay The Peruvians? listing alleged bene-
ficiaries of the pay-offs. Not only was the
list wrong — even the Express soon forgot
about it — but it never bothered to cross-
check any of these allegations (which
turned out to be false) or to obtain
responses from those it had named. Simi-
larly, during the V.P. Singh regime, investi-
gators floated a completely false story (the
charitable explanation is that they were
mistaken) about a sixth Bofors account
belonging to the Bachchan brothers.

Though this allegation was never
backed by any evidence (the account in
question probably belonged to Jubilee
Finance, a Hinduja company), it was car-
ried on the front page of many newspa-
pers and formed.the basis for many
newsmagazine stories. Eventually, the
Bachchans sued a Swedish newspaper for
libel in London. The paper apologised,
paid damages and said that it had wrong-
1y believed the story because it came from
Indian investigators.

Some tentative conclusions from all
this. One: the defence establishment is
just as corrupt today as it was 15 years
ago. Two: that all governments believe
in conspiracy theories when in trouble.
Three: the moment a scandal breaks, peo-
ple use it to settle their own vendettas
(Sonia’s relatives, Vajpayee’s family etc.)
no matter what the facts are. Four: what-
ever one’s reservations about sting
operations, we should not be so ready
to condemn Tehelka and invest the
Bofors-era journalism with qualities
it clearly lacked.

And finally, five: the central thesis of
the Bofors-era investigative journalists
was that Rajiv Gandhi took the money.
Ten years after his murder, we may have
dirt on the Hindujas, Win Chadha or
Ottavio Quattrochi. But there’s not a
shred of evidence against Rajiv that
will hold up in court. On the other hand,
this time around, not only do we know
who took the money, we have the pay-off
on videotape.

That perh s the most significant
difference, / ‘
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NEW DELHI, APRIL 4. The Navy today cﬁfended the Barak
missile deal with Israel, citing the unavailability of the
indigenous Trishul system and acquisition of state-of-
the-art weaponry by Pakistan, as yeasons.

Addressing a press conference today, the Chief of
Personnel, Vice-Admiral Arun Prakash, said the mis-
sile, which can down incoming anti-ship missiles and
hostile aircraft, would be fixed on seven key warships
in the next seven years. The Barak system, around Rs.
100 crores each, had already been fittedy on the air-
craft-carrier, INS Viraat.

The Navy began looking for an imporeéd tidmissile
defence system as Trishul — its preferred option —
was not available. Pakistan had acquired the Harpoon
subsonic missiles in 1992 and it could bq delivered
from its U.S.-built P3C Orion planes. Islamjabad was
also negotiating the acquisition of the Agost calls sub-
marines from France.The Indian Navy wanfed to ac-
quire a vertically-launched system to
incoming missile faster. After short-listing other sys-

s Barak deal

-\ tems on paper, it decided to evaluate the Israeli system
AR

one. The Barak was successfully tested in the Medi-
terranean in 1995 in the presence of representatives of
the Nevy and the Defence Research and Development
Orgar sation (DRDO). The Government approved its
indur on in 1997 for INS Viraat alone. The then De-
fence Ainister, however, had approved the procure-
ment g.seven systems in 1996. In view of the

gidquarters found “‘compelling ” rea-
. p remaining six systems. The Govern-

M the deal in March 2000.

Vice-Admiral Prakash cited three reasons why other
anti-missile systems with a proven capability to down
supersonic missiles had not been evaluated. Procedur-
al difficulties would have inordinately delayed the in-
duction of an anti-missile system if other systems had
been brought into the fray. The imposition of post-
Pokhran sanctions would also have stood in the way of
acquiring a Western sysgefn. And, very few countries
manufactured vertjeeffy-launched anti-missile sys-
tems. .
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/Hlnt of Tehe chelka
“tape echoin N

Vittal report \

FROM OUR SPECIAL
CORRESPONDENT

New Delhi, April 1: Chief Vigi-
lance Commissioner N. Vittal
today indicated that his final re-
port on a series of defence deals
since 1986 makes critical observa-
tions on the role of middiemen
Speaking to reporters after the
second D.P. Kohli memorial lectu-

re on Anatomy and Lpidemic of

Corruption here this morning, Vi-
ttal declined any specific comme-
nts on the contents of his report,
but said the Tehelka exposé only
“vindicated my stand”. The CBI
organised the lecture, delivered by
Justice K.T. Thomas of the Supr-
eme Court, on the occasion of the
agency’s foundation day and in ho-
nour of its first chief, D.P. Kohli.
Asked about the role of middle-
men in some of the deals which
former defence minister George
Fernandes had asked the CVC to
probe after the Kargil war in 1994,
Vittal said: “I think it will not he

proper to comment on any part of

the report at the moment.”

He was also tightlipped on the
nurnber of “questionable” trans-
actions. All the deals, inciuding
those made during and immed:
ately after Kargif, which the CVe
had been asked io probe were
worth over Rs 75 crove.

Vittal, however, said several
allegations on kickbacks appear-
vd to be true. The commission we-
nt through nearly 500 files and sc
rutinised more than 20 allegations
levelled against the army. air
force and navy. During the probe.
an important file on the role of
middlemen went niissing. only to
be traced a couple of months later

In his speech. the CVC opposed
state tunding of elections, saying
party candidates would “always
manage to get more funds from
uthorj(’)urces to compliment the

A

share made available by the gov-
erniment”. Rejecting state funding
“outright”, Vittal said: “When
there is not enough funds for
drinking water, schools and other
social sectors, it is dangerous for
the state to fund elections.”

Vittal suggested “doing away
with political corruption” by
hringing in transparency in gov-
ernment functioning and “remov-
ing black money, which accounts
tor 40 per cent of the country’s
GDP”, from the system.

in his lecture, Justice Thomas
said “expensive polls was one of
the real causes of corruption” in
the country. Suggesting that fi-
nancially dishonest individuals
enter the fray to further corrupt
the political system, he pointed
out: “When the courts pronounce
a person guilty of corruption, he
contests the polls and wins.”

On the state funding of elec-
tions. Vittal differed with Prime
Minister A.B. Vajpayee who, after
the Tehelka exposé and the subse-
quent resignation of BJP presi-
dent Bangaru Laxman, George
Fernandes and Jaya Jaitly,
favoured a debate on the matter
bofore o final decision was taken.
Vittal was also unhappy over
»the recommendations of the
Jdoint Parllamentary Committee
LIy on the CVC Ordinance of
1993, which the Union Cabinet re-
cently aceepted. had reduced the
comnission from “a watchdog to
alapdog”.

He particularly mentioned the
covernment's acceptance of a key
JUC recommendation to retain
the “single divective” principle. It
impiies that investigating agen-
cies tike the CBI and Enforcement
Directorate, will need the govern-
ment’s perniission to proceed aga-
inst any officer of the rank of joint
secyretary and above against wh-
om there are corruption charges. ,

1
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- Vittal submits report on
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SMAN NEWS SERVICE

NEW DELHI, March 31. -~ The Central Vigi-
lance Commissioner, Mr N Vittal, today sub-
mitted his final report on all major defence
procurements worth over Rs 75 crore since
April 1989. The report was handed over to the
Union minister for defence, Mr Jaswant
Singh.

The ban on middlemen in defence deals was
imposed in April 1989.

Mr Vittal, however, refused to divulge the
contents of the report. He said the Tehelka
news portal was asked to send its representa-
tives on 23 & 27 March to assist the commis-
sion in its probe but no one appeared.

“We did not wait (for Tehelka’s response).
We downloaded the whole thing. examined it
and took whatever was relevant to our probe,”
he said.

Mr Vittal said the commission had examined
about 500 confidential files provided by the
government. “The government will now de-
cide how much of the report should be made
public.”

Asked whether he felt middlemen continued
to be involved in defence contracts, Mr Vittal
recalled his earlier statement that expose by
the news portal had “vindicated” his prelimi-
nary findings.

In February last year, Mr George Fernandes
had asked the CVC to look into every deal

- defence deals

\

-
worth more than Rs 75 crore This had fol- |
lowed allegations about the presence of mid- |

dlemen and middle companies in vital arms

purchases despite the “no middleman” policy ‘

of the government.

The CVC had submitted its interim report ‘

within six months.

Mr Fernandes had recently said the final re-
port would be delayed due to the tehelka epi-
sode as it was necessary to go through the

content of videotapes again before submitting

the report.

Mr Vittal praised Mr Fernandes saying he
was “sincere” in his attempts to bring about

transparency in arms acquisition matters.

Mr Fernandes had ushered in a new rule :

that all deals worth above Rs 75 crore would
be examined by the CVC and Comptroller and
Auditor General of India within one month of

the deal being clinched.The CVC also probed

certain specific allegations made regarding
purchase of spares for submarines and ships.

The inquiry concentrated on 20 corruption
charges levelled by MP, Mr Jayant Mathotra |
in Parliament and allegations of graft made -

by Rear Admiral Purohit in naval purcha-
ses.

He had recently said it was “a basic fact all
over the world” that there were middlemen in
defence deals and said when “a non-transpar-

ent policy” was introduced in 1989 by prohib- |

R e

iting middlemen, “the entire system (of !

middlemen) went nndarmens=
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efence deals

to be rev1ewec{
STATESMAN NEWS SERVICE (‘ \ P’O{{)\f’)

NEW DELHI, March 29. — Thanks to the Tehelka expdse, deals
being negotiated by the defence ministry will get a \relook",
slowing down the modernisation process.

The signing of several defence deals the ministry was working
on to buy new equipment for the Army, Navy and Air Force will
be delayed by several months, senior Services officers said today.
The deals altogether could be worth more than Rs 20,000 crore,
though some believe the total could be even higher.

"Since negotiations are on for each weapon system, it is hard to
say exactly how much the figure is, but it is a huge sum," a senior
officer said.

The "relook", for perfectly valid reasons, could set the
negotiations back by at least two to three months. Also, with the
financial year nearing its end, the Services fear a "slow-down".

. A senior officer said: "The clock starts ticking all over again when
the financial year begins and the *dhobi mark' (an euphemism for
approval) takes a while to be placed on the contracts.”

Also, after this financial year ends, money for modernisation
not used will have to go back to the government.

"The Indian Air Force will have a bit of a problem," one officer
said. A lot of money was kept aside, probably for the new Sukhoi-
30s, the delivery for which has been delayed and aiso for the
huge (Rs 6,600 crore) advanced jet trainer deal for 66 British
Aerospace Hawk aircraft. This deal was in the last stages of
negotiation, besides other purchases.

The entire amount anyway can't be spent this year. Payments
for such deals are made over a few years.

Similarly, with the Navy, none of the major deals such as the
one for Admiral Gorshkov, an aircraft carrier, the 46 MiG-29K
aircraft and the lease of the TU-22 backfire bomber are yet to be
signed. These deals will be delayed.

"A number of programmes have not gone through for the Navy.
Things will have to move all over again," one officer said.

The Army has been comparatively lucky, for 310 T-90 tanks'
deal has just been signed but there are a lot of others the
ministry of defence is still looking at. They include self-propelled
guns, new artillery, ammunition, unmanned aerial vehicles and
a lot of protective equipment and sensors that are being used or
are to be used in Kargil. Some material have come in while for
others the negotiations are in an advanced stage.

THE STATESMAN
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Defence procurement

board to

By Our Special Correspondent

NEW DELHI, MARCH 27. With a view
to promoting transparency in de-
fence deals, the Government to-
day decided to constitute a
defence procurement board and
appoint a Chief of Defence Staff
as recommended by an inter-
ministerial group which had been
set up to revamp the national se-
curity architecture.

According to an official state-
ment issued in the backdrop of
the Tehelka disclosures, the rec-
ommendations of the Group of
Ministers (GoM), headed by the
Union Home Minister, Mr. LK.
Advani, on reforming the national
security systermn are being placed
before the Cabinet for formal ap-
proval. The Prime Minister, Mr.

ﬁomrun Singh

r) )
Atal Behari Vajpayee,
tion with the newlyl appointed
Defence Minister, Mr. Jaswant
Singh, took the decisioh to obtain
Cabinet approval right\away.

In order to slash buyeaucratic
interference, the GoM his recom-
mended an increase in the finan-
cial powers of the three services.
The Defence Minister also en-
dorsed the appointment of an In-
spector-General for the Army.
Besides, issues related to logistics
and functioning of Army person-
nel will be reviewed.

Priority for CDS

Apart from procurement as-
pects, the Defence Minister has
directed that the GoM recom-
mendations related to the estab-
lishment of a Chief of Defence

?consulta—

By Atul Aneja

NEW DELHI, MARCH 27. [n a move to fine-tune the national security
establishment, the former Minister of State for Defence, Mr. Arun
Singh, has been appointed special adviser to the Defence Minister,

Mr. Jaswant Singh.

With his present appointment, Mr. Arun Singh has emerged as the
single-point of advice on security matters to the Ministries of
Defence and External Affairs. He has already been appointed
Adviser (Security) to Mr. Jaswant Singh in his capacity as the

External Affairs Minister.

According to analysts, Mr. Arun Singh’s appointment is expected
to impart a fresh momentum for revamping the security
architecture. As head of the committee on higher defence
management set up after the Kargil war, Mr. Singh has already
recommended far-reaching changes in the security establishment.
He advocated the appointment of the Chief of Defence Staff (CDS)
as the head of the country’s nuclear forces. He also recommended
creating the post of the Vice-Chief of Defence Staff, in-house ‘‘think-
tank”” responsible for planing integrated tri-service operations.

The combination of Mr. Jaswant Singh and Mr. Arun Singh is
likely to push national security high on the foreign policy agenda.

Conscious of the geopolitical changes in India’s neighbourhood
including the economic and political assertion of China, both the
Ministries can now be expected to lay special emphasis on building
strategic relationships in the neighbourhood with greater vigour.

The new combine in South Block is excepted te strike a common
chord with the Bush administration in Washington which has drawn
considerable talent from the U.S. security establishment

e set u

p

Staff (CDS) and its associated
structure should be prioritised.
The CDS will be the single-point
adviser on military affairs to the
Government. He will also head
the country’s nuclear forces.

The formation of the CDS is
central for implementing the rec-
ommendations of the draft nucle-
ar doctrine. According to this
doctrine, India needs the least
number of nuclear weapons
which are sufficient to deter an
attack, and these have to be posi-
tioned on land, sea and air-based
weapons platforms.

Sources pointed out that the
GoM intends to separate the tri-
service nuclear command from
the conventional forces. Conven-
tional forces are expected to be
headed by the three service chiefs
separately. The GoM has also rec-
ommended the formation of an
integrated tri-service Defence In-
telligence Agency (DIA).

For the first time, the Govern-
ment formally indicated that in-
ternal security is also an essential
part of the Army’s mandate. Not
surprisingly, the Rashtriya Rifles,
which was earlier raised as a para-
military force for counter-insur-
gency operations has been
integrated into the regular Army.
Its size and funding channels are,
however, unlikely to be changed.

Welfare measures

The statement included a series
of welfare measures for defence
personnel. Enhanced payments
will now also be extended to those
who have been injured prior to
1986. Housing for defence per-
sonnel will be taken up as a pri-
ority and ex-servicemen will
benefit from new medical care
schemes which are in the pipe-
line.

The Defence Minister has di-
rected the Ministry of Defence to
commence the preparatory york
for the speedy impiement of these
recommendations.




‘I DO NOT BLAME THE MEDIA’

»' Tehelka has exposed

By Neena Vyas

NEW DELHI,\WMARCH 25. The Prime Minister, Mr.
Atal Beharg Vajpayee, today blamed the “sys-
tem” for the ‘‘shortcomings” exposed by the
Tehelka tapes.

Admitting that these needed to be “‘recti-
fied” he averted accepting any responsibility
on his part or that of his government, prefer-
ring to allow the corruption scandal to be seen
as a disease afflicting the larger system.

Talking to reporters at the end of the two-
day national executive committee of the Bha-
ratiya Janata Party, the Prime Minister said
there was a “need for introspection’ to pre-
vent the occurrence of such incidents in the
future. He thus repeated the statement of the
Union Home Minister, Mr. L. K. Advani, call-
ing for “introspection” within the party while
intervening in the debate on the political reso-
lution yesterday.

That was as close to admission of any guilt
that the senior party leadership got. Mr. Vaj-
payee said there was a need for greater trans-
parency in collection of funds by political
parties, adding the BJP would now try to get
more small donations ffom a larger section of

Tehelka revelations, Mr. Vajpayee preferred to
give them a clean chit, saying “I do not blame
the media.”

The short national executive meeting ended
after adopting three resolutions and discuss-
ing at some length the situation in the five
states going to polls in early May. While in
Assam the party has decided against any ma-
jor alignment, in Tamil Nadu and Pondicherry
it is part of the DMK-led front. In West Bengal
the situation is not so clear, with the Trina-
mool Congress, which was to be its major
partner, still hedging its bets and trying to tie
up with the Congress without saying “no” to
the BJP. And in Kerala, it has no option except
to find some small lightweight allies, as it finds
itself hemmed in by two major fronts, one led
by the CPI(M) and the other by the Congress.

It is in Assam that the party is hoping to
emerge much stronger, although it admits it is
not in a position to form a government. And it
is here that the “political affect” of the Te-
helka disclosures will be tested.

Taliban attacked

Besides the political resolution which at-
tacked the opposition for having unleashed
the Tehelka episode as part of a larger political
conspiracy, and an economic resolution
which sung praises of the Government’s eco-
nomic policies, the party also adopted

» shortcomings: Vajpayee

strongly worded resolution deploring the Tali-
ban for its ““‘medieval barbarism’’ displayed in
the destruction of the Bamiyan Buddhas and
the rest of the non-Islamic legacy of Afghan-
istan.

The resolution made some sharp points —
the Taliban- controlled areas in Afghanistan
had emerged as the “world’s principal centre
of international terrorism’”; there was no
doubt that Pakistan was the main supporter of
the Taliban militia; this was a dangerous de-
velopment that could affect world peace and
order; the monuments and sculpture, now de-
stroyed, represented human civilisational leg-
acy; and finally that the United Nations and
other international bodies must “pre-empt”
any future acts of “cultural vandalism” by the
Taliban.

The resolution saw in these ‘“fundamental-
ist deeds” of the Taliban a “conspiracy’ to
specifically “‘destabilise the Indian sub-conti-
nent.”” But the party did note that many Mus-
lim organisations and Islamic countries had
publicly stated their disapproval of the Tali-
ban’s actions ,and “no Muslim scholar

no.way a violation of the Islamic Sharia. |
BJP endorses economic policles: Pag/e;l{ )
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By Our Special Correspondent }'

NEW DELHI, MARCH 24. The NDA
Government, which has been
rocked by the Tehelka expose, to-
day announced the appointment
of the former Supreme Court
judge, Mr. Justice K. Venkataswa-
mi, as head of the Commission of
Inquiry to go into allegations of
bribery in defence deals as re-
vealed by the portal’s videotapes.

Incidentally, sources in the
Government said that Mr. Justice
Venkataswami, who has been giv-
en four months to complete the
probe, is currently Chairman of
the Chennai-based Railway Rates
Tribunal and has a five-year ten-
ure. It appears that the probe will
be taken up by him as an addi-
tional assignment.

It may be recalled that the Chief
Justice, Mr. Justice A.S. Anand,
turned down the Government's
request for making available a sit-
ting judge of the apex for
the probe. This tricted the

T S

“Venkataswami to

ch ice to a re-
tired judge and
ultimately led
to the appoint-
ment of

Mr. Justice Ven
kataswami. The
Commission,

with its head-
quarters in Del-

hi, has been asked to inquire
“whether the transaction relating
to defence and other procure-
ments referred to in the said vid-
eotapes and transcripts have
been carried out in terms of the
prescribed procedures and the
imperatives of national security”.

According to the terms of refer-
ence notified by the Government,
the probe panel would also find
out “whether in any of the afore-
said procurement transactions, il-
licit gains have been made by
persons in public office, individu-
als, and any other organisation as
alleged, and if so, to what extent”.

probe charges

Mrl ]ustlce Venkataswam1 has
been asked to suggest action
against persons found responsib-
le “for their acts of commission
and/or omissions”. The Commis-
sion, which is free to make inter-
im reports, will go into all aspects
relating to the allegations as well
as any other matter which arises
from or is connected with or in-
cidental to any act of commission
or transaction under inquiry.

The notification making the ap-
pointment said that the setting up
of the Commission was necessi-
tated as certain allegations had
been made in the videotapes and
transcripts, which was followed
by widespread coverage in the
print and electronic media.

Further, it said, these allega-
tions tend to cast an adverse re-
flection on the manner in which
defence procurements and other
transactions of the Central Gov-
ernment were carried out.

More reports on Page 8
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STATESMAN NEWS ERVICE

! NEW DELHI, March 23. - The

. parliamentary standing com-
' mittee on defence (PSCD) today

, said “corruption and inefficien-
cy in defence procurement pro-
cedure should not be covered
“in the name of secrecy and na-
tional security
A PSCD statement after the
Tehelka expose says the com-
mittee had wanted bottlenecks
in the defence procurement
process to be removed.

It said the Centre should
avoid “wasteful expenditure on
purchases and plug the sources
of leakage of funds”.

The committee also sugges-
ted that after the vice-chief of
Army staffs committee sub-
mitted his report on modifying
the defence procurement pro-
cedure, the Centre should

GOVT HOPES FOR A NEW START IN PARLIAMENT

' NEW DELHI, March. 23. - The NDA hopes different political |

' parties, having exhausted their energies on the Tehelka expose,
i organising rallies and taking the fight to the streets would al-

. low Parliament to reopen on a new note when 11: meets on 16
‘ Apnl after a three-week recess. — SNS

form a broad based hlgh -pow-
ered committee for a “deeper
look into the acquisition proc-
ess”.

The committee today iterated
that defence procurement pro-
cedures must be modified after
the Army vice-chief's report is
submitted.

The current system, the report
said, blocks the process of buy-
ing weapons on time and this
too at a time when the armed
forces are fighting a tough se-
curity situation.

The committee said it should

be 1nformed about what the Ar
my vice chiefs committee had
suggested for the procurement
procedures.

Speaking about specific weap-
ons systems, it noted the de-
fence ministry should move
quickly to ensure that the
armed forces had the T-90
tanks, the weapons locating ra-
dar and the refurbished MiG-
2] aircraft.

On the T-90 tank, it said the Ar-
my’s combat ratio in armour
against Pakistan had fallen from
1.99:11in 1993 to 1.4:1 in 1997.Its

THE STATESHAR

efence deals should
- be transparent’

imperative to keep the armoured
corps strong and T-90s had to be
purchased and built in India. It
said since the T-90 was found

_suitable, its price should be ne-

gotiated quickly.
The committee said talks for

T the acquisition of a weapon-lo-
» cating radar has been going on

for a decade now, but the Army
still remains without one.

The ministry has two options
~ it can buy a cheaper and less
sophisticated but easily availa-
ble Ukranian radar overruling
the MEA’s objections or it can
buy an expensive German ra-
dar under development.

In its report, it said the MoD
should sign a contract with Uk-
ranians after

keep its optlon open about
buying GermagTadar in the fu-
ture.
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BESIDES MAJOR General P.SK.
Choudhary and Brigadier Igbal
Singh who were summoned on the
first day itself, the court of inquiry
has also begun the examination of
| other army officials including
Major General Manjit Singh
Ahluwalia, Brigadier Anil Sehgal,
Lt Col Sharma and Maj Gen
Satnam Singh.

The court of inquiry is being
assisted by Major General
Mohinder Puri, former comman-
der of the eight mountain division.

Army sources said the court of
inquiry, which was examining wit-
nesses daily, was expected to fin-
ish its probe “earlier than expect-
ed.” Besides its stated terms of ref-

erence which inctudes establish-
ing whether there was any devia-
tion form the laid-down proce-
dures relating to weapon procure-
ment, the court of inquiry will also
investigate whether there was an
influence by foreign nationals. Its
report will also recommend a bet-
ter system of procurement which
would be transparent without
compromising national security.

Meanwhile, the defence min-
istry on Thursday appointed a
one-man fact finding committee to
look into the conduct of its officials
whose names have figured in the
Tehelka expose.

The committee to be headed
by R.P. Bagai, joint secretary and
chief vigilance officer of the min-
istry. According to a defence min-

istry statement, the gommittee has,
been asked to submit its repoit
within a month to defence minis-
ter Jaswant Singh.
The committee 'will inquire
into whether transactions pertaip-
ing to procurement of armaments, °
weapon systems and stores shown !
in the sting tapes and transcript :
have been carried out in terms of :
prescribed procedure. :
The one-man probe has also ;
been asked to examine whether .
existing procurement procedure |
in the ministry can be manipulat-
ed by individuals for extraneous °
considerations. Acting parallel to
the army’s court of inquiry, the '
committee would also suggest )’

appropriate modification ip-the
procurement system. /

The Economic Time:
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STATESMAN NEWS SERVICE M\ qzid and proceeded to speak

NEW DELHI, March 20. —
"Not a single guilty individual
will go unpunished" and "I
shall do all within my power to
ensure that systems and pro-
cedures are introduced or am-
ended to minimise the
likelihood of repetition even by
the odd black sheep in our

family" — that is the Army Ch- |

ief's promise to his men in the
wake of the Tehelka exposures.

In a message issued last
_ evening, which he directed be

circulated among all ranks of
the force, General S Padmana-
bhan also assured his men of
protection to the innocent and
cautioned them against getting
carried away by gossip. It was a
time for introspection, he
asserted.

"T know how much the vast
majority of us in the Army are
concerned and hurt by the
action of a few of our coll-
eagues. 1 share your sense of
hurt. At the same time we have
to bring the guilty to account
and set things to right", said
the Chief of the Army Staff.

"I am determined that not a
single guilty individual will go
i unpunished. I shall not tolerate
or allow the innocent to be pro-
secuted", Gen Padamanabhan

about amending the systems
and procedures.
The Chief asked all comm-
ders to ensure that "rumours,
uendo and gossip are neither
indulged in nor encouraged"
and that "we do not allow sen-

Guilty will not be
spared: Army chief

leading to the resignation of
the defence minister, Mr
George Fernandes, and the
suspension of defence ministry
officials, were handed over by
the Tehelka chief, Mr Tarun
Tejpal, to the army.

The Court of-Inquiry began
yesterday and today, Mr Tarun
Tejpal, handed over the tapes
to the three Army generals in-
charge. Initially, the Army had

- asked for the material, but
}, Tehelka had soft-pedalled clai-
i ming that it wanted a letter on

the Army chief, General S
Padmanabhan's  notepaper.
The tapes can serve as

L important evidence in the court

A~

Tehelka CEQ Tarun J Tejpal comes

out after deposing before the Army

court of Inquiry on Tuesday. — PTI
sationalism and unestablished
facts to blur our focus."
Army gets tapes: A large
number of tapes on which
Tehelka, the dotcom company,
that broke the story of
corruption in high places

of inquiry against three senior
Army officers named — Major-
general Manjit Singh Alhu-
walia and two brigadiers.

Mr Tejpal and another Tehel-
ka staffer, Mr Aniruddh Bahal,
took part in the court-of-enquiry
proceedings, though they didn't
have to as civilians can refuse to
participate in one. Mr Tejpal
saild he would help in the
inquiry, adding that while the
government has been going
well, the Army has been very
active in trying to find out the
truth. If sufficient incriminating
evidence is found, and those
"attached" are found guilty,
they could be court-martialled.
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Tejpal deposes, hands over
sting tapes to Army panel

PRESS TRUST OF INDIA %\;
NEW DELHI, MARCH 20 Q\A

EDITOR-IN-CHIEF of Tehelka.com Tj-
pal today appeared before the Army’s three-mémber
courtof inquiry and deposed under oath.

Tejpal, who appeared before the inquiry for over
90 minutes, also handed over four and a half hours of
clandestinely filmed tapes of senior Army officers and
political figures discussing defence deals with the
Tehelka sting team posing as fictitious arms dealers
with some of them taking money and gifts.

“The Army inquiry made a formal request to me
ar before it and as the signals from thern were
very good as to their intentions to take the probe toits
ical end, I decided to cooperate with them,” the
helka chief told PT1 as he came out after deposi-
on.

He said the Army’s approach was dramatically op-
posed to political steps which, he alleged, were aimed
at stonewalling the whole issue.

Tejpal also said along with tapes he had handed
over the entire transcripts to the court headed by Lt
Gen S K Jain, Director General Corp of EME.

The Tehelka chief said he had deposed before the
inquiry in the presence of suspended Aditional Direc-
tor General weapons and Equipment, Maj GenPSK
Chaudhary.

Gen Chaudhary, who was filmed accepting Rs one
lakh alongwith a gold chain, was suspended by the
Army authorities after a preliminary inquiry.

Tejpal said Chaudhary was allowed to cross

CONTINUED ZN ?\GE 2

Tarun Tejpal, editor of tehelka.copr; at South Block in
New Dethi on Thesday — P77
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_ Fernandes had no role in

.. Barak deal:

/
(..; ’ Ay
w \\Q By Atul Aneja VY \\r\7

NEW DELHI, MARCH 21. The Chief of Naval Staff, Aégli-
ral Sushil Kumar, today said the former Defenge
Minister, Mr. George Fernandes, had not pushed
through the controversial Barak missile deal.

“It is wrong to say that Fernandes had tried to
push through the Barak deal,” Admiral Kumar, ac-
cording to an agency report, said adding the “navy
was convinced of the efficiency and cost effective-
ness of the Israeli missiles which had undergone
tests since 1992.”

According to Admiral Kumar, “(Mr.) Fernandes
came into the scene only in 1998. So it is wrong to
drag him into any controversy regarding the mis-
siles.”

Naval sources say that the first contract for the
Barak system was signed in 1997 with the concur-
rence of the former Scientific Adviser to the Defence
Minister, Dr. A.P.J. Abdul Kalam, and the former na-
val chief, Admiral Vishnu Bhagwat. They, however,
do not clarify whether both Mr. Kalam or Admiral
Bhagwat had agreed for the induction of the entire
batch of seven Barak systems, the deal for which has
been signed recently:

In dcfendix)g" r. Fernandes, Admiral Kumar,

Navy chief

however, may not have addressed the thrust of the
tehelka’s allegation. According to the tapes, Mr.
Suresh Nanda of the Crown Corporation paid Rs. 1
crore to the Samata Party treasurer Mr. RK. Jain,
which were then handed over to the former party
president, Ms. Jaya Jaitly, to facilitate the deal. The
tapes further allege that Mr. Fernandes had agreed
to overrule the objections raised by Mr. Kalam about
the Barak system and conveyed this to Mr. Jain.

According to Admiral Kumar, extensive trials pre-
ceded the navy’s recommendation for the Barak sys-
tem. If so, did the navy also try out any other missiles
which are in the same class as the Barak so as to
strike the best possible deal?

Besides, China recently acquired supersonic Sun-
burn anti-ship missiles. Some naval experts here are
of the view that Barak’s ability to down such missiles
which travel at a Mach 3 speed and are estimated to
be three times faster than the Harpoon missiles with
Pakistan is questionable. They, however, agree that
the Barak is a user-friendly system with a proven
capability against subsonic missiles. In the light of
this development, which takes place after 1992 when
the Barak evaluations began, should the navy not
have evaluated other systems which have a capa-
bility to target supersonic missiles?




fﬁhy could have summoned, instead

it only ‘requested’ Tehelka to appear

i /
| MANOJ MITTA “]‘V
NEW DELHI, MARCH 21

| THE Army’s “court of in
| quiry” has begun its probe into
| the Tehelka allegations without
| following the law or precedents.
| Tehelka’s editor-in-chief
‘Tarun Tejpal appeared before the
\ court on Tuesday not because of
| any summons but because of a
| “request” made by it. He later ex-
f‘ plained: “Since the signals from
| themwere very good, L decided to
. cooperate with them.”
- The court of inquiry is said to
! have claimed that it had no power
+ under the Army Act to summon
any civilian to depose before it asa
witness. Facts say otherwise.
; Way back in 1992, Section 135
' of the Army Act was amended to
empower the court of inquiry to
summon “any person either to
| give evidence or to produce any

7

document or other thing,”

According to the Army Act,
since a civilian is not “amenable to
military authority,” the court of
inquiry can summon him through
the local magistrate who in turn
shall “give effect to the summons
as if the witness were required in
the court of such magistrate.”

BEYOND

A year after the statutory
amendment of 1992, the Govern-
ment even made a rule under it—
Rule 179(5A) — prescribing the
form in which the summons can
be issued to anybody, including
civilians.

In view of these express provi-
sions, it has been a practice

W—

among the courts of inquiry tO
summon civilians as witnesses i1}
all such cases where they may
have any material evidence.

Thus, the decision of the latest
court of inquiry to make only are-
quest to Tejpal instead of sum-
moning him is a departure from
the law as well as practice.

The departure assumes
greater significance given the po-
litical ramifications and the high
public interest in the Tehelka
probe.

It may have a bearing on the
manner inwhich and the extent to
which the army court extracts in-
formation from Tehelka.

This is already evident from
the fact that Tejpal yesterday gave
the court tapes covering about
200 minutes of unedited tape
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Sushma says o to
Sonia alone on DD

oy

" STATESMAN NEWS SERVICE

- NEW DELHI, March 21. — The
Congress president, Mrs Sonia
Gandhi, will not get a chance to
speak directly on Doordarshan
on the shady "defence deal”
expose by Tehelka.

The information and broad-
casting minister today told
journalists that the Congress

. chief should instead participate
in a one-to-one debate with a
BJP member on Doordarshan.
But the suggestion was
rejected by the Congress spo-

" kesman, Mr S Jaipal Reddy.

Mrs Sushma Swaraj said that

' if Mrs Gandhi spoke in Parlia-
ment on any subject instead of
prompting her MPs to stop any
debates, DD would beam that
live. "Parliament is the best fo-
rum for her. We'll show it live
with the Speaker's permis-
sion," she said.

Mrs Gandhi had written to
the Prime Minister, asking for
the same amount of time on the
official media that had been
granted to Mr George Fernan-
des to clarify his position after
resigning as defence minister.

The CPI-M MP and 1&B con-
sultative committee member,
Mr Hannan Mollah, had writ-
ten to Mrs Swaraj protesting
against DD's failure to use the
Tehelka tapes.

Prasar Bharati, she said, is an
autonomous body (which it
officially is) though an I&B
additional secretary is the CEQ
of the organisation. Prasar
Bharati said it accepted Mr
Fernandes's request because it
appeared to be a newsworthy

event. "Any channel would |
have jumped at it," she said. |
But the Teh Ika tapes were .

Mrs Swaraj said that minutes
after Mr Fernandes's speech, '
other channels were carrying
the footage, with a courtesy{
Doordarshan" tag. This, she |
said, proved how newsworthy
the event was. Mrs Swaraj .
refuted Mr Reddy's statement ;
that Mr Fernandes's speech
was unprecedented.

But will Prasar Bharati acc- {
ept Mrs Sonia Gandhi's state-
ment if she too had something"
newsworthy? Mrs Swaraj was
not very forthcoming. Instead,
she denied the Congress allega-
tion that Prasar Bharati's inde- |
pendence was a "humourless !
joke" and that the CEQ was ap-
pointed illegally. She insisted
he was appointed under the !
Prasar Bharati Act. ‘

Replying to Mr Mollah's |
charges, she said PB officials |
used the news but not the tapes |
as a public service body has to
"show restraint". Also, the
genuineness of the tapes
needed "verification". ‘

In his letter, Mr Mollah had |
said: "This expose has
perturbed the whole country ,
causing the exit of two ruling
party presidents, the defence
minister, the resignation of five
more ministers and an enquiry
by the armed forces... Do you
think it has no news value?"
Private news channels were
using the tapes, which showed
the former BJP chief, Mr

Bangaru Laxman, amon,
others, "receiving bribes".
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~"BRAJESH:

Bra]esh Mishra denies

e

role in In

defence deals

T will qui the PMO ifit Samata Party ministers

benefits Vayypayee’

NEW DELHI: Prime Minister Atal Behari Vajpayee’s
principal secretary and national security adviser
Brajesh Mishra on Monday strongly denied any role
in defence deals or funding for the BJP and said all
allegations in this regard were baseless.

“In the last three years I have been principal secretary
to the Prime Minister and for two years and five months
the national security adviser. On no occasion has the
Prime Minister spoken to me about defence purchases.

“Bangaru Laxman (former BJP president) has
never spoken to me about any defence deals or about
funding his political party with my help or that of
Prime Minister’s Office,” Mr Mishra told a crowded
press conference at the Press Information Bureau.

Mr Mishra said he did not know any R.K. Gupta, a
self-proclaimed middleman shown in the tapes, or his
son and have not any contact with them.

“Media ethics demand that before allegations
against a person are made public, he or she is given a
chance to rebut them. It is regrettable that in the pres-
ent case ethical values were not observed,” he said in
a statement circulated at the press conference which
was also attended by N.K. Singh, officer on special
duty in the PMO. Referring to the tapes, he said asper-
sions had been cast on the PMO, specially himself, in
relation to purchases by the ministry of defence for
the armed forces in the “so called” expose.

Asked if he would resign owning moral responsibil-
ity like defence minister George Fernandes, Mr
Mishra said, “If it ever helps strengthening of the
Prime Minister’s hands, I would go.”

He denied that he had offered to resign or he had
been asked to do so. On the allegation that Mr
Vajpayee’s foster son-in-law Ranjan Bhattacharya was
acting as “an extra-constitutional authority”, Mr Mishra
said he must say that “Ranjan Bhattacharya does not go

' to work in the PMO. I have never seen him in the PMO

in the last three years that I have been there. “There is
no question of extra constitutional authority in PMO,”
he said. To a question whether Mr Bhattacharya was
operating from PM’s residence, Mr Mishra said, “In my
house I have my family. Is that extra constltutlonal"”

54 -

Vajpayee government.

will rejoin government

The Times of India News Service

NEW DELHI: It’s official now. The three Samata
Party ministers who resigned in a show of solidarity
with George Fernandes in the wake of the ‘armsgate’
expose have agreed to withdraw their resignations and
return to work.

The suspense over the continuance of agricuiture
minister Nitish Kumar, minister of state for railways
Digvijay Singh and minister of state for consumer
affairs V. Sreenivasa Prasad finally ended on Monday
after a meeting of the Samata parliamentary party
which met at the residence of Mr Fernandes.

Announcing the decision, Mr Fernandes said it was
taken unanimously. “Although there are differences of
opinion in a democratic party, the final decision is
taken unanimously,” he said.

Regarding the charges levelled by some of his party
MPs against the Prime Minister’s Office, the former
defence minister said one should refrain from making
allegations which could cause inconvenience to the gov-
ernment. Mr Nitish Kumar, in turn, said, “What Mr
Fernandes has said is final and it is a collective decision.”

However, a visibly angry Prabhunath Singh, who was
among the MPs who had criticised the PMO, said that
he was not aware of what was decided at the meeting.
“I don’t know what decision was taken,” he said, before
leaving. Some party workers were also of the opinion
that the three ministers should not withdraw their res-
ignations until Mr Fernandes was backgin the cabinet.

Meanwhile, a day after JD (U) leader Ramakrishna
Hegde favoured quitting the NDA, the party resolved
unitedly to face the situation and stay within the NDA
to strengthen the ruling coalition.

Earlier, the Telugu Desam Party, a key ally of the
ruling NDA, ruled out withdrawal of support to the
Vajpayee government or the possibility of a mid-term
poll, but said that the expose could have “some
impact” on the electoral fortunes of the coalition in
the coming assembly elections in
made it clear that there was no
which has 29 MPs, withd

Influence of ministries curmzleal

(Continued from page 1)

and Mr Arun Nehru held sway.
That was also the period, senior
officials said, when the system
of functioning in the PMO
became formalised, under then
principal secretary, Mrs Sarla
Grewal. And the system has
continued despite subsequent

. changes of leadership.

' such that the

The structure of the PMO is
influence . of

, individual ministries gets curt-
| ailed. There are senior officials
i within the PMO, of joint sec-
" retary rank, who “look after”

each ministry and state. Above
them are some additional secre-
tary-level bureaucrats and
above them a couple of secre-
taries. The principal secretary,

no Mr Brajesh Mishra, ;} at
the top of the pyramid, |supp-
osedly of the same rank arld pay
as the cabinet secretary “(“the
first among equals”) and the
Railway board chairman.

A ministry moots a proposal,
which then works its way up all
the way to the concerned
minister, who then forwards it
to the PMO for approval or
comment. There the PS or
concerned senior official sends
it all the way down to an under-
secretary or a deputy secretary,
who drafts a note that works
itself back up all the way.
When approved or denied, the
concerned ministry does not get
to know the reasons because
the internal PMO note is
removed.

Explaining the functioning, a

senior official said the PMO |

has to exist as a conduit
between the ministries and the
Prime Minister.

“After all, the PM has to have f

all the facts before he can
decide and neither the cabinet

nor the groups of ministers can |

go into all the details,” the .

official said.

“This Prime Minister has |

been accused of being too soft
and wanting consensus to carry
everyone along. But ultim-
ately”, he said, “the cabinet
decides. Decisions are not made
by the PMO. The PMO only

assists the PM with details.”

That statement is, however, at
variance with the general
narcention.
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Bofors: Court

-extends warrant
against Ottavio
Quattrocchi

PRESS TRUST OF INDIA
NEW DELHI, MARCH 19

- ;
A DESIGNATED CBI ciy
today extended the ndn-bailaulg\
warrant (NBW) issued against
Kusla Lumpur-based Jtalian
s c;n;nedo.ttavio Quattrocchi, .
E T \
Bofors pay-off gsteh ® Rs Gerore :
Special Judge R L Ch
hearing the sensgitive Case(f:(?rut%]%
first time after Ajit Bharihoke’s
transfer early this month, extended
the NBW till further orders
foﬂomg CBI's submission that
extradition progeedings against

Quattrocchi in'a i
| Quatsoccing Mlaian o

- Besideés Quattrocchi, Europe-
based Hinduja brothers . —
Srichand, Pfakashchand and

~ Gopichand, former Bofors agent
Win Chadha, former defence
secretary S K Bhatnagar, then
Bofors chief Martin Ardbo and the
Swedish arms’ manufacturer AB
Bofors have been chargesheeted
in the case.
They have been accused
ctiminal conspiracy, cheating and
corruption in the Rs 1,437-crore
deal for the supply of 400 155-mm
Howitzer guns by Boforscompany |
toIndiain 1986.
| The courtdirected the CBI to
supply legible copies of certain
documents to the Hinduja
brothers and the Bofors company,
now renamed as Kartongen Kemi
Och Farvaltning AB, by the next
date and adjourned the
proceedings for March 30with the,
- direction that the case file be sent
to the High Court which is
i scheduled to hear on March 23 the
. Hindujas’ pleaseeking permission
| toleave the country.
. Thedirection came in the wake
of applications moved by ,
Hindujas’ counsel Arvind Nigan !
and Bofors counsel Alok Sengupta
saying certain documents supplied |
bythe CBIwere not legible: /'
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V.
~ Offence as Defence
~ Brave Néew World of Bluster & Bombast

W\ vV \\'j\ >

LACE: The PM’s official resi-

dence. In one room, BIP office-
bearers are meeting guests. One
among them, a gent in powdered
wig and black goggles, stealthily
hands over a brown paper packet.
The crisp notes go into the party
coffers and he’s told that his job
will be done. Satisfied, he hurries
out ONLY TO BUMP INTO
NELSON MANDELA AT THE
EXIT. Mr Mandela, who’s being
seen off by Atalji himself, looks at
the shadowy figure in some puzzle-
ment. Atalji explains that since the
BJP has outgrown its party offices,
it now functions out of his home. “
He’s the BJP’s guest, not mine,”
says the PM.

Fiction? No, not if you went by
the logic of the dramatis personae
involved in the Tehelka melodra-
ma. After all, there’s always a
throng at ministerial homes. The
distinguished, the undistinguished,
they are all there. And why fuss, if
in the merry melee, the twain
should meet? Rewind to the tell-all
tapes and you have virtually the
same scene enacted at the defence
minister’s residence. A shady arms
peddler meets Samata Party chief
Jaya Jaitly, donates into the party
kitty and departs with the assur-
ance that the minister will be lob-
bied, should the need arise. If Ms
Jaitly’s wigged and goggled guest
doesn’t encounter a visiting digni-
tary, it’s only because the defence
minister is away.

Just where does one begin? Of
course, arms agents have been
around for aeons. Of course,
they entice big bracket politicos.
So this is not to express wonder-
ment at the nexus. What is new
here is the arrogance of those
caught in the act. Bangaru Laxman,
George Fernandes and Ms Jaitly
have been feverishly studio-hop-
ping, saying, “SO WHAT?” So
what if the line between party and
government got blurred? So what
if slush money was accepted for the
party? So what if a favour was
promised?

The old lot surely pale before
this brave new brigade. Rajiv
Gandhi went blue in the face deny-
ing he was bribed by Bofors. It evi-
dently didn’t occur to the poor man
to say that he took the money on
the Congress’s behalf. AR Antulay
paid with his job because he took
money by cheque for a trust float-
ed in Indira Gandhi’s name. The
harried man went around town, ac-
count book in hand. Rut ne e tnd

By VIDYA SUBRAHMANIAM

to go. It must sadden Arun Shourie,
who ousted him in a fit of moral
outrage, that his current friends
don’t even have an account book
to show.

The Tehelka investigation can be
questioned for its methods, for pos-
sible motives and even for certain
discrepancies in the transcript. But
there is enough in the tapes — di-
rect and circumstantial evidence —
to nail the culprits. Both Mr Lax-
man and Ms Jaitly knew who they
were talking to. At the meeting, Mr
Laxman acknowledges the impor-
tance of political influence in push-
ing arms deals, mentions the role of
key PMO figures in this regard, and
finally, after taking the money, asks
for the next instalment in dollars.
Later, his secretary sets out in de-
tail the deals that have been
clinched by his boss. Yet, Mr Lax-
man has a single line defence: The
money is for the party.

Ms Jaitly knows too who she is

IN BRIEF ————

« Defence corruption is not
new but the arrogance
of those caught in
defencegate is.

¢ The line between party and
government has been
totally erased

 instead of cleaning up its
act, government has begun
an elaborate cover-up

meeting and why. This is clear from
the fact that the meeting is
arranged by a petty industrialist
with dubious political and defence
connections. Also present is a
freshly retired Major-General.
Indeed, both these men affirm in
a previous shot that they will
brief Ms Jaitly on what is expected
of her.

Just why should a Samata Party
well-wisher, intending only to do-
nate to the party, be accompanied
by people who are quite clearly
playing the role of middlemen? At
one stage in the tapes, Ms Jaitly
herself provides the answer. She
says “these things” have to be test-
ed, further that “eventually they go
on quality and price.” So, the donor
is not a simple donor. He wants Ms
Jaitly to intercede with the defence
minister to have his product tested.
Which she agrees to with the provi-
so that she would do so if the tests
are not ordered in due course.

Ms Jaitly has been arguing that in
a democracy anyone should be
able to forward complaints to
the authorities, in this case the de-
fence minister. Yet, she forgets that
Mr Fernandes had complaint box-
es installed outside his office
specifically for this purpose. The
idea presumably was to cut out
precisely this kind of personal lob-
bying. Secondly, what about the
money? The donation and the re-
quest for a favour came from the
same person at the same time. It is
irrelevant that Ms Jaitly doesn’t
herself touch the money — the un-
fortunate Mr Laxman was obvious-
ly unaware of this elementary pre-
caution — but asks for it to be sent
across to the party. It is equally ir-
relevant that in the end the money
may not have been donated at all.
She thinks the money has been do-
nated and she promises a favour.
That is as close to quid pro quo as
you can get.

More amazing is the way the
NDA government as a whole has
bought the story. Mr Fernandes
sees nothing whatever wrong in Ms
Jaitly’s conduct. And why was the
Samata Party working out of the
defence minister’s home? Because
the party had no money. Really, Mr
Fernandes? What would you say to
some of us, including perhaps this
writer, putting in an application
seeking office space in the defence
minister’s house? And, may we
please also be allowed to forward
complaints?

In the end, none of this is funny.
Not the fact that the once sacred
line between party and govern-
ment has been so nonchalantly
erased. Not the fact that the de-
fence establishment can be so easi-
ly penetrated. Not the fact that
Mr Fernandes has been re-elected
convenor of the NDA, with the
promise that he can soon go back
to his old job. And certainly not the
fact that the prime minister lavish-
es praise on Mr‘Fernandes and in
the same breath announces a judi-
cial inquiry to probe him and oth-
ers.

The prime minister could have
used the opportunity for a
complete clean-up — not just
of the defence ministry, but the
PMO, which by all accounts has re-
placed the cabinet. Instead,
all indications are that ‘Operation
Cover-up” has begun. Had

Rajiv Gandhi been alive today,
might have told Mr Vajpaye¢jlst
why this is not wise.

THE TIMES OF INDIA



PM orders
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probe in

! HT Correspondent
New Delhi, March 16

PRIME MINISTER Atal Bihari

Vajpayee today announced an
inquiry into the tehelka disclo-
sure by a sitting or a retired
Supreme Court judge, in a tele-
vised address to the nation.
To counter the gravest crisis
i faced by the NDA Government
till date, he repeatedly harped on
the security risk that the country
has been supposedly exposed to
by the tehelka episode in a
speech laced with nationalistic
rhetoric.

He promised to get to the bot-
tom of the scandal and punish
those found guilty. “I have decid-
ed to get to the bottom of the
whole thing and clean up the
system.”

The Prime Minister expressed
hope that the country would
emerge stronger than ever at the
end of the inquiry. “We are in
touch with the Chief Justice of
India to name the judge who
would head the inquiry We
expect the commission to submit
its report in four months.”

Even as he heaped praise on
NDA “stalwart” George Fernan-
des, he assured the nation that
the morale of the armed forces
would not be allowed to suffer.
“We would not allow anyone to
compromise the security of the
nation at any cost.” He also
expressed distress and anguish
at the way arms dealers can
freely access top officials in the
armed forces.

He held the Opposition respon-
sible for stalling Parliament,
where the Government, he said,

had hoped to discuss and “dis-
sect” the exposé.

“Two political leaders against
whom allegations have been
made have tendered their resig-
nations. I will not allow defence
forces to be used as a shuttle cock
to make allegations and counter-
allegations... Let us rise above
the day-to-day politics.”

Vajpayee said leaders of all
political parties should sit
together and initiate reforms
across the whole range of politi-
cal and administrative life. “This
should cover the electoral sys-
tem, funding of parties and the
way cases against officials and
those in public life are to be
investigated and processed.”

Striking an emotional chord,
he said: “I have been in full view
of all of you for 52 years. At no
point have such allegations been
made  against my colleagues.

Jud

y\;#‘

€Xposé

That is by itself sufficient to
make them of the gravest con-
cern tome.”

Meanwhile, in a strategy
aimed at breaking the deadlock
in Parliament, the Government
is understood to be contemplat-
ing a move to seek a vote of con-
fidence in Lok Sabha. A decision
on this is likely after consulta-
tions with crucial ally Telugu
Desam Party, which has 29
members.

A day after one of the key
allies withdrew support to the
Government, there were prob-
lems in another one, with two
senior JD(U) MPs questioning
the propriety of the JD(U) Par-
liamentary Party leader Deven-
dra Prasad Yadav to write a letter
to Vajpayee demanding Fernan-
des’s resignation.

More reports on pages 3and 9
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Tehelka expose

Probe by sitting
"judge unlikely

By Harish Khare |

NEW DELHI, MARCH 17. The Chi
Justice of India, Mr. A.S.
Anand, is believed to have
turned down the
Government's request that a
sitting judge of the Supreme
Court be spared for
conducting an inquiry into the
Tehelka expose. The Prime
Minister, Mr. Atal Behari
Vajpayee, had announced the
Union Cabinet’s decision to
hold a judicial probe in a
national broadcast on Friday.
Though Union Law Ministry
sources said a formal request
(for a sitting judge) had been
sent today, it is learnt that Mr.
Justice Anand was sounded on
Friday evening before the
Cabinet met. He is believed to
have firmly told the
governmental interlocutor that
it would be difficult to spare a
sitting judge; hence, the caveat
in the Prime Minister’s
broadcast of a “sitting or

| retired” judge.

The probe will, in all
probability, be undertaken by
a retired judge. The
Government is not obliged to
consult the Chief Justice in the
choice of a judge in case a
retired judge has to conduct a
probe.

The Chief Justice’s
reluctance is being explained
as part of a well-formed belief
that the apex court should stay
away from probing politically-
sensitive cases under the
Commissiop of Inquiry Act,
1952. Thefudicial fraternity

was unhappy with the
controversy that followed
when it spared a sitting judge,
Mr. Justice Wadhawa, to probe
the burning of Graham Staines
and his two sons in Orissa.

In the case of the Tehelka
probe, the reluctance is even
more pronounced. [t is evident
that the Government expects
the inquiry judge to clear the
name and restore the honour
of the former Defence
Minister, Mr. George
Fernandes. No sitting judge of
the Supreme Court is likely to
accept the brief.

In the recent past, probes by
sitting judges — like Mr.
Justice Verma (lapses in Rajiv
Gandhi’s security), Mr. Justice
M.P. Thakker (Indira Gandhi
assassination), Mr. Justice
Ranganath Misra (the 1984
anti-Sikh riots) — yielded a
rich crop of political
controversies.

Political bickerings apart,
there is a feeling that the apex
court was already burdened
with a heavy case load, and
sparing a sitting judge would
not help matters. After the
tragic railway accident in
Punjab in December last, the
(then) Railway Minister, Ms.
Mamata Banerjee, had
announced in Parliament that
a sitting judge would probe
the mishap; she made the
announcement without
consulting the Chief Justice of
India, and later had to be
satisfied with a retired judge.

More reports on Pages 8,
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OON after George Fer-

nandes assumed office

he had complaint boxes
installed at various defence
offices in a simplistic bid to
check irregularities. Last
February, in the wake of
allegations of kickbacks in
purchases, he referred all
major deals since 1986 to the
Central Vigilance Commis-
sion and Comptroller and
Auditor General for scrutiny.

. Corruption in defence deals

was recognised, but obvi-

i ously not remedied. And this

has cost him his job.

The opposition would be
cock-a-hoop, so would some
of his other detractors. But

~all the political advantages

that accrue from forcing a
minister to quit would hardly
suffice to tackle the central
issue. It pre-dates the
George-era in South Block.
That is neither an excuse nor
a justification, only a pointer
to the need not to miss the
wood for the trees. Continu-
ing to turn a Nelson’s eye to
the host of filthy ground
realities would only perpe-
tuate the malaise.

The orders are always

massive: whether in terms of
valte or vnlhnmaoe 1

cost George Fernandes his job.

WHO WILL CLEAN UP?

der 1t opaque. Graft, middle-
men o\ fixers, and polltlcally-
directe kickbacks have be-
come the order of the day.
Regardless of which party is
in power.

Bofors and HDW had hit
the headlines, as had the
Jaguar deal some years ear-
lier, then suspicions were
aired over the SU-30 — there
has been no major acquisi-
tion that has not generated

By KEITH FLORY

tapes there are “claims” of
having facilitated the SU-30
deal.

Since equipment of western
origin is essentially produced
by private companies and
government controls on ex-
port relate more to policy
than specific
deals there is
always suspicion

Time was when dealing with
the erstwhile Soviet Union was
assumed to be “clean”, but
then there were political
strings attached

some degree of suspicion.
Time was when dealing with
the erstwhile Soviet Union
was assumed to be “clean”,
but then there were political
strings attached, or funds
flowed indirectly to party
coffers.

Why is it then that the

4n hn -

N~ e

of commercial

on a couple of them, but
there are even blgger fish
around. Sharks actually,
whose jaws are wide enough
to take in officials in civvy
street and politicians too.

To have attempted to elimi-
nate agents was myopic. For
without them the forces
would have little chance of

“inducements”.
The same is now true of
dealing with Russian firms.
Memoranda may still be
signed at ministerial levels,
contracts are executed with
manufacturing concerns.

Still new to the game, the

THE, STATESMAN
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being exposed to new and
competing technologies and
equipment, not just through
brochures and manuals but
live demonstrations. When
the govemment adopted the
‘no agent’ stance it willy nille

/Corruptlon in defence deals was recognised but obvnously not remedied. And this has now

Is there a solution? Nobody
has come up with one so far.
A change of government did
not work — Bofors may have
blasted Rajiv in 1989 but the
sleaze has continued. Sack-
ing officials in the defence
forces and the ministry will
have only marginal effect. A
JPC or judicial probe into
what is now dominating the
media and public mind will
serve a limited purpose un-
less it leads to a completely
new procedure.

Yet even then it must be
remembered that systems
are only as good as the people
who operate them. To expect
the defence establishment to
remain clean while surroun-
ded by murky waters is not
only wishful thinking, it is
dishonest. As one leading
political personality quietly
observed: “Is hamam mein
kaun nanga nahin hain?”
Who is the real victim — the
beneficiaries are numerous
— of such corruption? The
national exchequer? The
forces’ reputation? The image
of the nation at large? The
ones who suffer most are the
simple qoldlers Thelr faith in

T O R - A



" Army officer, 37

officials susperde

By Atul Aneja v() A ", Defence Minister, Mr. George Fer-

; Y\ nandes, held a brainstorming ses-

NEW DELHI, MARCH 14. The Govemn- sion today with the Chief of the
ment today suspended a senior Ar- \ Naval Staff, Admiral Sushil Kumar,
my officer and three Defence nd the Defence Secretary, Mr. Yo-

Ministry oﬂiglals even as the Army gendra Narain, among others.
ordered an in-house court of in-

quiry in the wake of last evening's Debate over Barak missile

disclosures by the website tehelka- Meanwhile, a heated internal
.com about the corruption in de-  debate has been generated within
fence deals. the defence forces about the pos-

According to an official state- sible fallout, especially of the con-
ment, those suspended were Ma-  troversial Barak missile - deal.
jor General P. S. K. Choudhary, Government sources said that
Additional Director-General,  while the Navy expressed interest
Weapons and Equipment Wing, in importing a ship-borne anti-

Mr. H. C. Pant, Staff officer to Ord-  missile system, there were differ- |
nance Factory Board, Mr. Naren-  ences over the service of the Barak

dra Singh, Assistant Financial system. According to one view fa-
Adviser, Ministry of Defence, and  vouring it, the Barak’s advantage is
Mr. P. Sasi, Assistant in Army its portability and user-friendly
Headquarters. characteristics.

A “competent authority” or- Critics, however, said the Ba-
dered the suspension on the basis  rak’s ability to destroy incoming
of a “‘preliminary inquiry.” Sourc- missiles travelling at supersonic
es said the statements of the al-  speeds was questionable. Its ac-
leged beneficiaries were recorded.  quisition, therefore, on operation-
More suspensions were expected.  al grounds could be risky as some

Other serving officers, allegedly of India’s neighbours already had
involved in the scandal include or were likely to acquire superson-
Brigadier Anil Sehgal, Director, Di-  ic anti-ship missiles.
rectorate-General of Ordnance Objections were raised on other
and Supply (DGOS), Lt. Colonel counts too. The Barak, which costs
Sharma, in-charge procurement the exchequer around Rs. 100
Air Headquarters, and Major Gen-  crores, is inordinately expensive as
eral Manjit Singh Ahluwalia. a modern Indian naval warship

The Tehelka disclosures trig- comes for around Rs. 500 crores.

outside the Defence Ministry. The  fitted on the Viraat aircraft carrier.

gered a series of meetings in and As of now, the Barak has vbeen)/
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~ WEBSITE ‘EXPOSE’ ON DEFENCE DEAL PUTS NDA GOVT. IN A SPOT -

Laxman resigns; ready
probe, says Govt.

Bangaru
5f0|'

\

By Harish Khare

NEW DELHI, MARCH 13. The BJP
president, Mr. Bangaru Laxman,
resigned tonight after he was
shown accepting large wads of
currency from a fake “defence
manufacturer”’. Mr. Laxman was
caught with a “‘smnoking gun” by
the investigative team of an on-
line website, Tehelka.com, in a
story “of how the suitcase people
are compromising Indian de-
fence”.

The Tehelka revelations have
created a first rate political crisis
for the NDA Government, and Mr.
Laxman became the first victim.
Nor is it likely to be the only one.
A reluctant BJP president was re-
portedly asked to meet the Prime
Minister, Mr. Atal Behari Vaj-
payee, late this evening, and was
persuaded to step down, much
against his own inclination.

The Union Cabinet which met
this evening for its weekly meet-
ing had to put aside the scheduled
business, and, instead, took note
of the political fall-out of the ex-
plosive Tehelka exposure. The se-
nior officials, who otherwise
customarily attend Cabinet meet-
ings, were asked to leave and the
political principals are under-
stood to have evaluated how to
counter the embarrassing disclo-
sures of dirty deals and dirty
money in defence purchases, that
too in an establishment that
wears its probity and its patriot-
ism on its sleeve.

Mindful that the Opposition
would be raising Cain in Parlia-
ment tomorrow, the Union Cabi-

net, in a stajement, noted: The
attention g#the Government has

Bangaru Laxman

been drawn to the Tehelka tape.
The Government is ready and
willing for a thorough debate in
Parliament and an inquiry, if nec-
essary. The Government has
nothing to hide. The guilty will
not be spared, no innocent repu-
tation will be allowed to be tar-
nished.”

‘Govt. must fight it out’

Though the Government media
managers tried to suggest that the
Defence Minister, Mr. George
Fernandes, too has offered to re-
sign, it is learnt that in the Cabi-
net discussion, Mr. Fernandes
was most vociferous in arguing
that the Government should fight
it out. The two Houses of Parlia-
ment are likely to witness heated
moments, with the leading Oppo-
sition party, the Congress, feeling
that it has now got its “Bofors”

against the NDA Government.

The revelations were presented
by the website at a press confer-
ence, narrating a telling tale of
how defence middlemen, politi-
cal operators, politicians and offi-
cials went about accepting money
from “‘a fictitious arms manufac-
turing company, based in Lon-
don.”

As many as 34 individuals ac-
cepted money from the purported
representative of the fictitious
company, called West End. The
company presented itself wanting
to peddle non-existent “‘ostensi-
bly fourth generation hand-held
thermal cameras” to the defence
establishment.

The overall impression the Te-
helka revelations create is to doc-
ument how the corrupt ways of
defence purchases have become
institutionalised. To the extent no
product was sold or purchased,
there can be no allegation of ac-
tual corruption; but, the whole
“Operation West End”’ adds up to
a massive stink.

The ruling establishment finds
itself in a politically embarrassing
corner. In particular, two leading
lights of the NDA — Mr. Bangaru
Laxman and Ms. Jaya Jaitly, Sa-
mata Party president, — have
been shown to be “on the take”.
The website has presented video
images of the two accepting mon-
ey from the West End; Mr. Lax-
man at his residence on January
5, 2001, and Ms. Jaitly at the resi-
dence of the Defence Minister on
December 28, 2000.

It is an unseemly sight of the
BJP president personally accept-
ing wads of currency notes. About
Ms. Jaitly, this is what the website

Fernandes

transcript notes: ‘“After hearing a
lot of talk about R K. Jain, treasur-
er of the Samata Party, being the
briefcase man of George Fer-
nandes we at West End decided
that a direct approach was called
for. The series of meetings with
R.K. Jain proved to be a goldmine
of information about past and
present defence deals. It incrimi-
nates beyond redemption De-
fence Minister George Fernandes
and the Samata Party.”

The Tehelka has managed to
deprive the BJP and the Sangh Pa-
rivar of their pretensions of being
above corruption. Mr. R.K. Jain is
shown to be educating the Sama-
ta leadership how money could
be made for the party in defence
deals; at one point, Mr. Jain re-
vealed that Ms. Jaitly insisted on a
three per cent rather than a two
per cent commission on a Rs. 600-
crore defence deal.

On the other hand, Mr. Raj Ku-
mar Gupta, who is identified as
defence middieman and as a na-
tional trustee of the 4SS, is shown
to be entirely indifferent to the
ethical issues.

The Tehelka transcript has this to
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Jaya Jaitly

“Within the RSS, Gupta

trustee. His proximity
with both Prime Minister
Vajpayee and L.K. Adva-
ni is lore. Both have been
tenants at his properties.
He has also helped es-
tablish the RSS head-
quarters at Jhandewalan,
Delhi in 1967.”

ends up giving a clean chit to the
Prime Minister, and daringly sug-
gests that ““the Prime Minister has
no guts to say he should be given,
not the party.” And, then, he goes
on to add that even Mr. Ranjan
Bhattacharya, Mr. Vajpayee’s fos-
ter son-in-law, would not intet-
fere. “And Ranjan knows my
strength in the party. The RSS.”

The various purported middle-
men bandy about names such as
Mr. Brajesh Mishra, the Principal
Secretary to the Prime Minister,
Mr. George Fernandes, Mr. Hiren
Pathak, the then Minister of State
for Defence. The Tehelka camera
has on camera a number of serv-
ing and retired Army officials and
Defence Ministry officials.

Calt for PM’s resignation:

Pay}/

say about Mr. Gupta:

is known as a ‘super

|
i

Curiously enough a
boastful Mr. RK. Gupta



i By Our Special Correspondent

“'NEW DELHI, MARCH 13. The Opposi-
"tion parties today demanded the
Prxme Minister’s res1gnat10n in
the wake of ‘revelations” made
‘by an online news website, Tehel-
ka, on corruption in a defence
“deal, even as the Bharatiya Janata
“Party president, Mr. Bangaru Lax-
man, caught on camera, could
‘not but confirm that he had ac-
“cepted Rs. one lakh “for the par-

B ty‘,’

" Mr. Laxman’s 1mmediate reac-
[ion was that his “conscience is
“clear”and there was no question
,,of his resignation, but later to-
plght he put in his resignation pa-
.pers, apparently prompted by the
Prime Minister. It was perhaps
.the most elating day for the Op-

".position since the NDA govern-
ment came to power, and it was
,-also the most embarrassing day
for the BJP and its partners like
. the Samata Party. The BJP, in fact,
mamtamed a sphinx-like silence
on the allegation of corruption in
,,the defence deal. The party vice-

npresident, Mr. Jana Krishnamur-

«thi, and spokesperson, Mr. Vijay

~Kumar Malhotra, said they had
not yet seen the tape, although it

/had been televised throughout

.-the day on the Zee channel. In-
stead, they defended Mr. Laxman

_on the ground that he was only

. faking money for the party — a

. line which brought to mind a sim-

.Jdlar plea during the Jain ‘hawala’

sdays when Mr. Sharad Yadav
went on television to say he was

««being honest by admitting that he

+had taken the money to fight elec-
tions, as all politicians do, and in-

-deed must do.

“+ However, all this was before

‘Mr. Vajpayee sent for Mr. Lax-

{'man. After the meeting, Mr. Lax-

: man announced that he was
resigning, but he would clear his
name later.

The Samata Partv camn wae at

the centre of the ‘revelation’ story
as its president, Ms. Jaya Jaitly,
was “heard” on tape negotiating
and directing how the deal was to
be done and how the “boss,” Mr.
George Fernandes, wanted it
done.

Cong. bays for PM’s head

The Opposition charge was led
by the Congress and the Left. In
three separate statements, they
demanded the immediate resig-
nation of the Prime Minister,
whose position, they said had
been severely compromised, and

CWC discusses ‘expose’

NEW DELHI, MARCH 13. The Con-
gress Working Committee
(CWC) tonight briefly dis-
cussed the expose by Tehelka-
.com, party sources said
without disclosing the strategy
it would adopt politically.
The CWC, which had met to
finalise resolutions to be
adopted at the AICC session at
Bangalore beginning March
16, “briefly discussed the is-
sue,” they added. — PTI

who had lost all moral right to
continue in office. The deputy
leader of the Congress Parliamen-
tary Party, Mr. Madhavrao Scin-
dia, said “the matter concerns
national security, we want an ex-
planation from the Governrhent
on what seems to be irrefutable
evidence, if the Government can-
not refute these allegations it has
no moral right to continue.” The
party spokesperson, Mr. Jaipal
Reddy, was equally unsparing: “it
is not individual Ministers or offi-
cials, it is the Prime Minister who
is accountable for all this.”

The opposition clearly sees this
“bombsheil” as holding all poten-
tial of a huge scandal that could
exnnse the NDA Government. “In

boas 7;

@ " Opposition demands
v resignation of Valpayee

the history of this country, we
have never had such explosive
evidence of corruption, it is
equivalent to Pokhran 3,” said
Mr. Reddy, adding: “it's not just
money that changed hands. In-
dia’s national security has been
severely compromised.

The CPI (M) Politburo saw in
the scandal a confirmation of its
worst apprehensions about the
deep and widespread corruption
in the government. The CPI Cen-
tral Secretariat said Mr. Vajpayee
had lost his moral right to govern
after the revelations and allega-
tions of corruption against the
BJP chief and politicians belong-
ing to the NDA. “Compared to
this, the Bofors scandal appears
to be a minor episode,” said the
CPI(M).

Laxman sees conspiracy

As the scandal broke out, re-
porters made a beeline for the
residence of Mr. Bangaru Laxman
who described the affair as “polit-
ically motivated’’ and a “political
conspiracy” not only against the
BJP, but against his position in the
party because he was a dalit.
Some people came, not defence
dealers but traders, they wanted
to donate money to the party, he
accepted it. QED. What was the
big noise about?

As for Mr Krishnamurthi, he
drew a distinction between the al-
leged defence scandal and Mr.
Laxman’s role as shown in the
tapes. There was nothing to con-
nect Mr. Laxman with the alleged
scandal, he only took money for
the party, What the party felt was
that the entire show had been
meticulously planned and there-
fore taped, and this established
that it was part of a political con-
spiracy. What the party was not
able to explain is why officials and
others said what they did, even if
their rivals had planned a con-
spiracv. Mr. Laxman had himself
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hinted that his ‘dalit"\status could

be a factor that madq some plan |

to dethrone him, and\there were
some politicians who felt that
there could also be other factors
internal to the BJP that may be
behind this ‘revelation.” After all,
Mr. J.K.Jain, the expelled national
executive member, has been
shouting about a mother of all |
scandals for the last several |
months.
PTLUNI report:

The Samata Party said it never ‘
provided or discussed any de- .

fence deal nor interfered in any

aspect of the work of the Defence !

Ministry. “Any claims made by
anyone to the contrary is com-
plete faisehood,” the party gener-

al secretary and spokesman Mr.

Shambhu Srivastava said in a
statement.

PM must quit: Laloo

The Rashtriya Janata Dal presi-
dent, Mr. Laloo Prasad Yadav, de-
manded Mr. Vajpayee's
resignation and congratulated
Tehelka.Com for ‘‘exposing the
murky deal.” He said Mr. Fer-
nandes, Mr. Laxman and Ms. Jait-
ly should be arrested. Every
thing had been captured on cam-
era and now these people could
not deny their involvement in the
case. Mr. Vajpayee should apol-
ogise in public, he said and added
that there was no need to probe
the matter as the truth had been
unraveiled.

He threatened to launch a
countrywide protest against the
“corrupt practices” of the NDA
leaders if Mr. Vajpayee did not re-
sign by tomorrow evening,.

Thackeray wants probe
Meanwhile, the Shiv Sena su-
premo, Mr. Bal Thackeray, said
Mr. Vajpayee should not resi
but instead order a probe |
matter. He thanked
for showing grace i
party chief.




’ in key deal
_Payoffs’ in key deals

9/0/\}40 By Atul Aneja — ‘)”\5
NEW DELHI, MARCH 13. The website, Tehelka, has alleged the involvement of
payoffs in key defence deals including the Sukhoi-30 planes, Barak anti-
aircraft missiles, the Advanced Jet Trainers and laser-guided Bofors am-
munition. ﬂj

According to the portal, a network of middlemen includipg ¥r. Mohin-
der Pal Sahni, a Honorary Consul General of Belize, the BJP President, Mr.
Bangaru Laxman, his Private Secretary ,Mr. Sathyamurthi, Mr. Raj Kumar
Gupta, a RSS national trustee and Mr. Sudeep Choudhary have been some
of the main beneficiaries of the multi-crore Sukhoi-30 de

In the negotiations for the Israeli Barak ship borne anti-aircraft missile,
the main players who allegedly benefited include arms dealer Mr. Suresh
Nanda, the Samata Party president, Ms. Jaya Jaitly, Mr. RK Jain who is
both a national Treasurer of the Samata Party and defence middleman, as
well as the Defence Minister, Mr. George Fernandes.

Mr. Fernandes, according to the website, was involved in overruliyg the 41
objections of his previous Scientific Advisor, Dr. A.P.J. Abdul Kalam. Mr.
had opposed the import of an anti-aircraft system and was instead
pwshing for the induction of the indigenous Trishul missile which has
een undergoing trials. While overruling Mr. Kalam’s stance, it was
planned that the Barak system would not be positioned on key Indian
warships in one go. Instead, orders would be placed for mounting the
weapon only on the aircraft carrier INS Viraat. Subsequently, the Barak
missiles would be placed on six other ships, but only after such a demand
had been internally generated in writing. Ms. Jaya Jaitly allegedly accepted
Rs. one crore from Mr. RK. Jain who had been paid this amount by Mr.
Nanda, ostensibly as donation for the party. The entire deal is estimated at
Rs. 560 crores. While these contracts have involved pay-offs, the one
relating to the purchase of Krasnopol laser-guided artillery ammunition
appears to have compromised on quality as well. According to the portal,
Major(Retd.) S.J. Singh was the key middlemen involved in this deal.
These purchases worth Rs. 150 crores were concluded even though the
failure rate of the shell during trials was very high. Out of six tests, this
ammunition performed adequately only once.

Corruption also surrounds negotiations for the over $1 billion cont?ae&-v
for Advanced Jet Trainers. These trainers are necessary to impart ad-
vanced combat training to pilots. The website points out that the Russian
firm MIG-MAPO, which manufactures the MIG-AT trainers and is one of
the bidders for the contract had quoted the lowest price and had agreed to
part with a commission of 10 per cent to Mr. R.K Jain. However, the deal
could not be concluded as the manufacturers had been unable to get the
required certifications of airworthiness which were necessary to enable
their export. Competition from a rival middleman, Mr. Sudeep Choud-
hary, who had borne the expenses for ferrying the MIG-AT planes for one
of the air shows in Bangalore, may have also come in the way.

The contract for upgrading 130 mm. artillery guns to 155 mm. caliber
has gone to the Israeli Wy],tam of Israel on the initiative of Mr. Fer-
nandes, the renort said —

<HE HINDU



- crores. We already
- direct investment.

oming to know that BJP Presi-
dent anﬁaru Laxman had taken
op himself the mantle of swinging
corporate kickbacks, we looked at a
way of agproachu)g im in a costless
manner. For a-while RSS trustee R.K.
-Gupta was asking for a sum of Rs. 25
lakh for an introduction to Laxman and
etting the job done. Sahni, the other
efence middleman, himself had puta
figure of Rs. 14 lakh. West End, obvi-
ously, had no budget of that kind. We
. talked to H.C. Panf. He offered first to
take us to Saheb Singh Verma, BJP
P, who would then af a cost of Rs. 1
lakh take x’s to Laxman. Eventually,
Pant sent Mohan Singh, PS to former
Mini of State of Defence . Hari
\Fl‘a“l\(at’ lzoLaxm
enkatesh, nan's personal secre-
tary. katesh mtrodgges us to Lax-
FERRE 02 AR ot
KA: Sir, || am from Westen
Intemational. :

BANGARU LAXMAN: Hmm...hmm.
TEHELKA: So | am chief representa-
tive. It's written in my liaisoning this

thin
AI?'GARU LAXMAN: Hmm, hmm. -
%EHE.LKA: ...s0 we are inferested in
India investment, Around...we are inter-
ested in 2001 to 2002 ea\(;ound 5,000
dy moved a proposal
to PM that telling, him . tha foprgi n
C d we would like
to introduce our night vision for

TEHELKA: Can' | show you? This
is.. thisis thesproglosal. ’
TEHELKA: Sir, this is hand.... This is

ann

the materal.... This is themmal...hand-
held thermal camera.
BANGARU

MAN: Hmm...hmm.
TEHELKA: Already | talked to defence
R e G ShanagarY.
BANGASY LAXHAAN: Ry on also-

s Hmm.
TEHELKA: So they are willing to take
our item. it is a very g item, com-
ared to- CSF-Thomson and El-Op.
...they are our oqmpet.’..compeg-
tors. That everything is set u
Now | need...uh...your favourtoB
Secretara.
BANGARU  LAXMAN:. ..
ms.l.,.bm...no.._.atwhatmme
TEHELKA: The p'%posal is...if Defenc
Secretary will send the...al.... Alread;e/
the file is with the Defence Secretary.
ﬁlergiaddeywlt‘\ich ii'étmhatth e o pot.
ey will use or not.
So they'll send the file 1o Defence Sec-

there.
efence

know

retaré. L
. TEHELKA: So what should we do,

thinking on these lines. So if Defence
Sgcretasrg will agree, so our company
%vglct:e es%rft-hstgg. Wr?j will get around
rug s order.
tBhl;NgARUwh mh H _l-hnm“ hel"mmo' 0 are
Eeo e who.,.who wi is?

TEHELKA: Yeah, - P i
BANGARU LAXMAN: | mean, there
must be some committee, which must
have c;?x in. N h )

H o, that is they've
approved. That PNC will open Janua
first week. Before we haveE;. Sir, thenr'g
is one reason !'lf tell you very frankly,
openly. So in the bureaucratic and in
the political level, they will not allow in
the third company into the fray. Rea- -
son, two compamies are alrea f‘m’ sup-

lying. The next meeting with BJP

resident Bangaru ' Laxman takes
lace in the New Year. By now, the
oken advance of Laxman had been
whittied down by West End to Rs. 1
lakh_from Rs, -5 lakh. This after pre-
senting a gold chain to his other secre-
tary, Sa ¥amu i, and a token
amount of Rs. 10,000 to Raju
Venkatesh. Al this for the sole purpose
that they would project West End as a
very big and credible company to'Ban-
?aru Laxman,

EHELKA: | have met Mr. Gu
BANGARU LAXMAN: This

P tgb not

know because.... I
TEHELKA: No, sir. What wilt glve...my
identification? Mr. Gupta told me he

arranged the meetm%.
BANGARU LAXMAN: Lleave Mr.

FURIE kA Okay, 1 will,
BANGARU IAN: You have come

directly. ) .
TEHELKA: | have come directly. | have

my credibility. My company's having the
cr\édibility. I“éon* n 8

bility, 1 de eed to meet through
ou, Mr. Gupta.
BANGARU® LAXMAN: Okay, don't

argue. . . )
TEHELKA: Mr. Gupta told me, "l will
think abgut it." So | said, "1 am an Indi-
B RSN
AN: He told you?
TEHELKA: There is.. .there is...no need.
You do not ask comFany to do every-
thing for you.. every time. Sir, we have
some.. .promotlona!‘pro*egts, There is no
problem...absolutely nothing? Hain! lam

- asking you?
ARHOARU LAXMAN: No...l don't know

- know.

yd

how you...you came into his contact

TEHELKA: No. | contact that.. they...they
approached ., us. Th?x told_they _are
domg lisisoning work of BJP.” That
fhe...he is a trustée of RSS. SH then Murli -
Madhavan told me that he talkegbt? ou
for 10 lakhs. And you asked for 201akhs
.. for this issue.... éAX boss came to
"It Mr. BANGARU LAXMAN
takes Rs. 20 lakh?" then he asked me
not to give. That is the thing, sir, | want
fo nead clarification. Sir, | can...{ can.. |
can come directly to you? There is no
need for F?arty men. o
CB)ANC?A U LA'%(han\t'l(eg%u n<1:ome direct.
ne day casual S| im....
‘BaA,‘I;lGXHU LAXMAN: We ~have...he
said. ) o
BANGARU LAXMAN: .. He said how
things we don't normally involve....| said

okay.
TEIXELKA: No, that. No, we have a lot
of other things. Power projects and lot
of things we have. You know, once we
are starting from the binoculars. You
knovtv.t se_'vg_roacl:I times lhe 'iiaSk ) niaﬁt, "
want to intreduce.... | will go to intro-
duce’ Mr. Bangaru.... M. %ANGARU
LAXMAN." 1 said this, *I am an Indian. |
don't know Hindi very well." So | said,
Yes, | am an Indian. | can go directly
meet...meet him. I have the company
credibility there. = Company's just
Ilke...blgg‘er than Tata. You know, | can
o dirsctly to meet "Mr. BANGARU
1l '!‘A"g"t'?
jon. isn't it?
BAN MAN: Accha, -
TEHELKA: Isn't it? There is...| don't
need an* commitmerit from ¥.ou also.
BAN U LAXMAN: All right. Meéting
32 A Kkt . Satva
A: Altright. .. -
BANGARU LAQMAN: Directly contact

e can understand my posi-

me.
TE3HELKA: Hmm? .
gﬁ“GARU LAXMAN: Talk directly.

GARU LAXMAN: First he [Sathya-, -

murthi] will fix up appointment.
A Vi, 2ppointme
"EHELKA: Sir, can...can ) give you one
lakh¥Mpipees for it? For atoken: My.... -
TERELKA: Sir, my boss is -here.
In_..in...a...in Oberoi executive...executive

suite.
BANGARU LAXMAN: Accha. )
TEHELKA; So he also wants to meet

ou.

BANGARU LAXMAN: Accha.
TEHELKA: So, can you arange the
appointment tomorrow? Can  you
arrana%’?

BANGARU LAXMAN: Tomormow?

TEHELKA: . S0....
TEHELKA: So he will come and meet
éou. So will you...uh...what | told io Mr.
atya that matter.
BANGARU LAXMAN: Hmm.
TEHELKA: For the party fund.
TEHELKA: i have five lakh rupees.
BANGARU LAXMAN: Hmm
TEHELKA: And toda
lakh rupees. For just the begirining. A
New Year gift. .
BANGARU LAXMAN; Hmm, hmm.
TEHELKA: Okay? But...but.. but, tel me
sir, very frankly, Mr. R.K. GUPTA told
me arranged the meeting. Outside

BANGARU LAXMAN: | do not know
what exactly transpired between you
nd him. He just...he was inentioning.. ..
EHELKA: .ka¥1.A ) .
TEHELKA: Sir, this is a small gift.... small

ift.
gANGARU LAXMAN: Oh, no, no...
TEMELKA: It's a small gitt for the New
Year party. Right?
ens the drawer,

éBangaru Laxman g
akes money from Tehelkaand -puts it

awa
TEI-{éLKA: New Yea); party fund, hain? .

One lakh rupee, hain?
TEHELKA: And then. . rupee.
BANGARU LAXMAN: When do you...?
TEHELKA: Tomorrow. Rupee of dollar?
BANGARU LAXMAN: Dollars. You can
%«ve dollars. )

EHELKA: Okay. We can give you dol-
lars.-Sir, we need your biessing.

introduce us to Raju -

mm.
I will give you one

BANGARU LAXMAN
BIJP president
“You can give in dollars” |

JAYA JAarTLY | '
Samata Party president
“I would only request
George Fernandes’ office ’

BRIG ANIL SEHGAL -
Director, DGOS ,
“There is no fixed amount to
say how much Fernandes
takes”

May S.J. SINGH
Middleman
“You can call me a fixer”

R.K. JAIN

 Middleman, national treasurer,

Samata Party
“I can’t do it for less than 10
per cent in this deal, the PM

* will be involved *’

Raj KuMar GuPTA
Middleman, national trustee,
RSS

“I am expecting commission
this year of Rs 100 crore”

MOHINDER PAL SAHNI
Middleman, cor syl general,
Belize '
“With Bengar u, we have to
pay money straight away”

MaJ GEN P.S.K. CHOUDARY
" Additi(nal director general,

ADE, WE

“Betvveen the two companies,

who gets the ministry’s job.

Thai:’s on commissien”

BRrAJESH MISHRA
Adviser, pri
.in PMO

ncipal secretary

GEROGE FERNANDES
Defence minister

Tehelka.com managed to sell the Lepage

It all started with Senior Section Officer S

Investigated by ANIRUDDHA BAHAL ¢& MATHEW SAMUEL 6&‘? )

90, the ALION and the Krueger 3000 to the Indian defericé establis
. band-held thermal cameras and, needless to add, non-existent.
ashi Menon, in the Ministry of Defiznce, wanting to make some money from arms dea

TJaya Jaitly is
‘the second wife..
But not officially

married to Jaya

Jaitly. She’s
president of the

party also. So
there are two
defence
ministers. One is
-George
 Fernandes,
another is Jaya

Jaitly. The
scz'enti)%: adviser

is also above
George now. He

gave me one
crore rupees.
But I want to
give it to the

party.’
—

bment — ostensibly fourth generation

lers. Tebelka.com floated

a fictitious arms manufacturing company, based in London, called West Ei1d International. It was in s ei ] in
4 Jictitro ‘ 1y, ba . earch of a product whose indent existed in the
‘Ind;an Army. It also wanted to get an entry into the lowest end of the defence chain and work its way upwards through the Indian scenario of graft.

~  Sashi Menon and Brigadier Anil Sehgal, the'd

Your work will be

upta also WiIKs doouT now ney pulil
up « project from Brazil for two-and-
a-half years. How they employed

. TEHELKA: Haan.
R.K. GUPTA: Out of 40 crore order,

Generals and Brigadiers from ﬂ%éw’%ﬁéu pose 'it:s one crore per annum.
e Epl-?é)LKA Hmm.

&

r

Army and spent Rs. 10 lakly gt
how they are confident .abo I'és
order before December JE=Rarmoving on.
Cuepres detaile furthor hoiw ho will handls
the project. He is confident of doing the
praject within 6 months.

R.K. GUPTA: And we take from them. in
six months the project will be built up.
Comglete proa'(ec! will be built up.
TEHELKA: Okay, oka{,‘ okay. )
R.K. GUPTA: Then at the highest level...
TEHELKA: Hmm. : .
R.K. GUPTA: Secretary of Defence is
the highest boss.

TEHELKA: Okay, okay. i

R.K. GUPTA: That "Sir, we are interest~
ed in this project. How should we go?”
Once you have built ground below. Then
he will Gupta admits say, "Okay, | will
charge this much. One per cent, one-
and-a-half per cent." Then rest you
manage below. Everything. Users and
other . _ things.... nen . when 40

crores...total expense how much is pos- .

sible...six per cent, seven per'cent, eight
er cent.

EHELKA: Yeah.
R.K. GUPTA: Okay?
TEHELKA: | got it. o
R:K. GUPTA: Then we give...when the
tender is given to us...we are the lowest,
we have been granted... They'll place
orders, open the LC. It is very, very
Clear. . - ,

Gupta admits to expecting commissions
of around Rs. 100 crore in the year 2000.
He says if the Deferice Secrefary wants
money, he will give it with his ‘own’

hands. . ) )
R.K. GUPTA: | have direct relations with
-the Defence Secretary.
TEHELKA: Sir, Naresh Nigam entered
Lhe plan and | had some doubts about
im. ™~ . }
R.K. GUPTA: Nigam is a small type of
erson. Give him 10,000, 4,000, plane
ickét to Bombay. We oblige him.
TEHELKA: Okay. - .
R.K. GUPTA: How does it matter?
When the game is big, when | am
expecting commission this year...myself
i 100 crores...

commission. ..

TEHELKA: OW )

R.K. QUPTA: Why should | bother about
* him, giving him, two, three, four, ten

TEHELKA: Yeah, yeah, that's all.
R.K. GUPTA: | don't care.
TEHELKA: Okay, okay. -
R.K. GUPTA: He's a'small timer. )
TEHELKA: Now ! fgot it, the picture, sir.
R.K. GUPTA: Defence Secretary when
he wants money, I'll give him with my
own hand. That, "Sir, this is a cheque
worth two crore..." So V'll tell your princi-
gal to deposit in his account.

EHELKA: Okay. : ‘

TEHELKA: That's ail.
R.K. GUPTA: And this party people...that
they are supposed to setfle for two per

&

.

R.K. GUPTA: For gne or two crore.

i) 5%
4t TEHELKA: That also. .that also is sanc-

tioned... .one crore”?
"KL GUPTA: No, 1. Just

the order is with us...LC is with us...then
we are paid. Drawdown 30 per céent pay-
ment they give, no? Twenty per cent
payment.” When you get the payment,
thén you pay them. Which account, they
will nominate it. Send. Finished.
TEHELKA: That's all.

R.K. GUPTA: Now we have beaten
everybody. Americans had come,
Israglis_had come, South Africans had
come. European friends.
Paused . .
EHELKA: Sir, Defence Minister, he will
not take the money. :
R.K. GUPTA: Who? .
TEHELKA Defence Minister. . -
R.K. GUPTA: We have already tied with
Jaya Ja:(tlx.
TEHELKA: 'ﬁe-ug)? ) :
R.K. GUPTA: Samata Party General
Secretary. R ;
TEHELKA: Okay. . )
R.K. GUPTA: Defence Minister. One or
two per cent. We'll settle with Jaya Jait-.
ly. It's her job tgc?ive him or not give him.
ur file is signed. She takes the money.
TEHELKA: That's all.
{?upta makes desture] )
hockingly, fuelled by a sense of his
own power, he talks again about how he
cut-up Ranjan Bhattacharya in a deal.
Bhattacharya has a reputation as a fiver-
dealer. The ‘?ory details. ..

R.K. GUPTA: Ranjan Bhattacharya is .
- doing for himself. He is Prime Minister's
son-in-law. : Do

TEHELKA: Yeah."
R.K: GUPTA: You know that?

TEHELKA: PANT Sahib told me.

R.K. GUPTA: He is Prime Minister's
son-in-law. I've cut him into pieces. |'ve
gone through- the party. PM can't say
no. Party's getting 100 crores. He won't
say, "No, my son-in-law's getting 100
crores, Leave it." We are his father's

fatherll_pointing to himseif}.

TEHELKA: Yeah.

R.K, GUPTA: And he doesn't know my
name also, though he has been comin
to my office hundred times. He doesn
know that my uncle has cut me to
nweces. ‘ . -

e calls me yncle. |'ve cut him to pieges.
He doesn't know it: Who's the man who
has taken half the order and we're left
hiﬁh and dry. He's still tr¥m to find out-
who is the man behind it. He can't find
out. If he find out then I'm not a geod
operator. [T gets up and shakes Gupla's
hand] .

LE B3
TEHELKA: Okay. No, the pecple lold
me. Mr. PANT also told me. In fact,
users also_told me that- this man is
behind CSF-Thomson. -
R.K. GUPTA: Then they get more:
money.

fisten. When'

done: RSS trustee crore to

v

Yisewhere, the brew is. siumerine..

Jain, treasurer of the Sama ta Party,
being the briefcase man of George Fernun-
des, we at West End decided the.t a direct

“approach was called for. The seriizs of meet-

ings with R.K. Jain proved to be a goldmine
of ~information about past and present
defence - deals. ¢ incrimingies  beyond
redemption Defence Minister { 5eorge Fer-
nandes and the Samata Pariy. Jain was
conned by emphasising the siz e of West End
as a group, the contributions it would make
to the Samata Party fund an 1 to Jain's own
coffers. An introduction 1o ;/ain. ’

R.K. JAIN: | am the nali¢.nal treasurer, |
have given you the card. "The treasurer is
close 1o the boss becewuse for money
matters he has to talk to the treasurer
only. Even if he tatks to "tQ others, he has

to talk to the treasurer.
- TEHELKA:

: Bilkul, natu rally. ...
R.K. JAIN: Please cor sider that it is not
hidden from the treas.urer that the party
is getting mbney: Money is’ withdrawn
when | Pass the ch? :iue, when | sign it.
And why should ie? | would take
money oply in heu*o_ [ xvork}done for you.

Jain explains what. his role will be for
West End. He alst> %oes on to narrate
the details of one: o

.deals that he did for Samata party, when
the party had nc, money and had
come to_power. Suresh Nanda of the
Crown Corporation paid them Rs 1
crore for help in getting the order of 250
Armaoured Recov/ery Vehicles for a Slo-
vakian company X
R.K. JAIN: Arrrioured recovery vehicle
was my first ca se which | did it for Slo-,

vakia.

TEHELKA: Ok ay.

R.K. JAIN: When George was Defence
Minister.for te first time. After one year,
then he beca me another Defence Minis-

ter. »

TEHELKA: Y 'eah, ¥eah. .

R.K. JAIN: T his is1am talkmg about the
first time whien he became the defence
minister. A's soon as he became the
defence .inister, after six or seven

TEHELKA : Qkay.

R.K. JAIM: Suresh Nanda approached
me for amoured recovery vehicle. He
was the ¢ .gent for the Slovakian compa-

ny. oyt
TEHELK A: What was the product?
R.K. JAI N: Arm

TEHEL! (A: Ch! Yeah, yeah. .
R.K. JAIN: There were 250 vehicles
were there. The tender was worth say
250 crores.

TEHE!. KA: Okay.

R.K. J AIN; There were two...three, com-
petiticns — Slovakia, Czechoslovakia
and 1) yere was a company from Poland.
TEHEF:LKA: Okay.

R.K. JAIN: Boomer. X

TEH ELKA: Yeah, yeah, that jet plane

and even‘thln%l

R.K. JAIN: Nanda approached  me.

Czechoslovakia's price was the lowest,

%ec .ond Slovakian, third was the Poland.
E HELKA: Haan, Haan.

R.'€. JAIN: He said, "l will g%e you one

cnore mﬁi% in advance..." .

TIZHELKA: Okay. * °

R.K. JAIN: "You get disapproved the

ia st one...Czechoslovakia because they

are so lower that we cannot match their

eputy director.in ' DGOS, give it the two
and an entry in'to the gravy train.

‘Nanda paid Rs
Samata’

Ye,ars
, this order.
E|

the first defence
just’

oured recovery vehicle.

price.” ,
R.K. JAIN: "It you can push fm out
Delegation is going on to the...delegation
has Been ordered to ?o to Czechoslova-
kia. Stop this delegation, and technical-
ly reject this company. Here are the doc-
uments.” .
TEHELKA: Hmm.
RXK. JAIN; "By which it's Provad that
this company is closed for the last two
. They will start only after getting

ELKA: Yeah, yeah.

R.K. JAIN: "1 will give one crore rupees.
/(}réd 1 will gnée hou. ..if they are techmfglly
isapproved, then you are my agent.

TEHELKA: Yeah, y a9

: Yeah. ~ .
R.K. JAIN: “For this particular perks and
| will gou so much of commission.”
TEHELKA:

: Okay.

R.K. JAIN: | sa¥d, “Fine.” He gave me
the correspondence. | took the corre-
8 cﬁ\dence to George.

: Hmm.
R.K. JAIN: And he said, "All right, I't
reject it." He is a very intglligent man.
Next day he called Rajiv Gobd.
TEHELKA: H

: Hmm, : .
R.K. JAIN: He said; *Ring up to this Indi-
an Embassy in €zechoslovakia and fird
out whether this company is closed for
the last two years or not."
» TEHELKA: Hmm.
RXK. JAIN: And he rang up. It was
closed.,
TEHELKA: Hmm. X
R.K. JAIN: He told me, "...said the com-
%any is closed for the last two years.
here is no point of a delegation o go.
And therefore this company Is technical-
ly disqualified.”
[.y!am 's phone is ringing.]

TEHELKA: Okay, it is manipulated.
R.K. JAIN: He wrote straight away on
the file himself. He never goes and
orders to a Joint Secretary. He wrote it
himself, and sent the file ‘back. Nanda
gave me one crore rupees. He called
e, "Yes, Mr. Jain, the file has come
down. Like )g?u know George..."
TEHELKA: Yeah, yeah.

R.K. JAIN: “The file is down, my work

has been done, | am very hagp?/. You

take your one crore rupees. said,

“Fine, give ittome.™

TEHELKA: Yoah this kind of work.

R.K. JAIN: After that...

TEHELKA: Yeah.

R.K. JAIN: After that, the bg&?er could
get lowest into the PNC. Poland

TEHELKA: Okay. .
R.K. JAIN: Then he started rLg\mng
around. "Mr. Jain..." | was very angry,
“You bastard.” And on the instruction of
George Fernandes, Rawv Goba attend
that PNC to see that what is happening
in the case.
_TEHELKA: Hmm. .
R.K. JAIN: Party was wanting money.
\ge just came into the power, we had rio
oney. .

Later, Jain explains to the President of
West End how he lobbied with Defence
Minister George Fernandes to get the Air
Jet Trainer project for Samata Party

R.K. JA_,!N,:.Youﬁnow | worked for your
project initially here. | started with this

roject called Air Jet Trainers.
%Elj-lELKA: Okay.

‘We have been taking Bm];esh S

TEHELKA: And did you see any other

things that...basically how to approach

it? Considerable work has been done

on the users side military they all liked

the product. And they foresee no prob-

lems in it going through. it's the fourth
eneration.

ANGARU LAXMAN: (interrupts):...on
Brajesh Mishra? How?

TEHELKA: That...that defence people
told me, that officers toid me, that
bureaucrats also told me this matter.

Pause]

EHELKA: Do you see that as...

BANGARU LAXMAN: You see, also
there is the PNC [Price Negotiation
Committee]? )
TEHELKA: Sir, there is a PNC there but
there is lot of process there before
PNC. You know they have fo first...eval-
uation, and then short-listing, and then
the PNC will come. You know, they are
not allowed to...third party inside that...in
the evaluation. That is a...

Pause] o

EHELKA: Are you experienced with
defence matters generally?
BANGARU LAXMAN: (nods in assur-
ance). Hmm. No, my experience'is...

[Ilf‘ausel]- i
EHELKA: Mr. R.K. Gupta told me on

| told you, na?

that da
RU LAXMAN: Hmm..

BANG

TEHELKA (continues): That through
you, sir, he can break that one. | sad, !
don't, | don't want to...I don't need any
third party to meet Mr. Bangaru Lax-
man | can go directly to meet Mr, Ban-
garu.” So he asked me 20 lakhs for the:
meeting Yo you. ! said, "If...but in front c.f
me | cannot...| can give that money to
Mr. Bangaru Laxman in a party fund."
Sir, that, that also | told Satya also v/

Politi zal.

are ready to 1?ive 4 to 5 per cent:as .

commission. - [Laxman nods{
commission. That other...that we have
to give...rest of that we have to give siep-

arate.

TEHELKA: Do we do it with the ‘trea-
surer? | don't know how do we pro ceed
in this. Do we wire transfer the meiney?
BANGARU LAXMAN: Yeah, year . I will

tell zfu
TEHELKA: Okay.

Pause]

EHELKA: Do you see any prob'iems in
that? | mean, we...we are not saying
that...that this has to happen, in the
sense that it's sacramount. But even if

we have a 25 per cent chance, we're
wiIlingto take the risk. ]
BANGARU LAXMAN: /nodding):
That's true.

TEHELKA: So tell me what exaclly is
the procedure? If you could just fell me
the details. . .

#

BANGARU LAXMAN: Look...no. Prob-
ably you may be knowing the proce-
dure better than me.
TEHELKA: Yeah, yeah. That's why |
was here. But things don't move in
india‘'without some political....
ANGARU LAXMAN: Yes, that is true,
vided. ... We shall try to do that...
HELKA: Yeah.
Pause] )
ANGARU LAXMAN: (con(inutngz: So
far we have been taking the helg of Bra-
jesh Mishra to organise this because
rajesh Mishra is there on a number of
committees apart from Principal Secre-
tary to Prime Minister.
TEHELKA: Okay.
.BANGARU LAXMAN:
defence issues, he sy
TEHELKA: Yeah!
BANGARU LAXMAN: (continuing): We
normally turn to_him because he has
access 1o the Defence, Foreign and
other related ministries.
TEHELKA: Yeah. °
BANGARU LAXMAN: But in this you
said that somel
TEHELKA: Yeah. | don't know how true
that thing is. | mean, it's just that some-
body told us. 1t could be wrong. We're
not sure.
BANGARU LAXMAN: Yes. | will...(nods)
TEHELKA: And basically, is he the only

And any

person with influence? I'm sure you

carry more influence thas him.
BANGARU LAXMAN: it's like.... No,he
deals with the bureaucracy....
TEHELKA: Okay. .
BANGARU MAN: (continutng):
And also conveys the views of the

bureaucracy to Prime Minister. So he is
the liaison between the bureaucracy
and the Prime Minister
TEHELKA: Prime Minister. Okay.
BANGARU . LAXMAN: - So...therefore,
whatever we tell 1o Prime Minister, he
also normally have a word with Mishra.
TEHELKA: Okay.
BANGARU LAXMAN: And then certain
things he will say that “No, no, you con-
vey this to Mishra..."
TEHELKA: Okay.
BANGARU  LAXMAN  (continuing):
*...You pass on this information 1o
Mishra....” That's how things here....
TEHELKA: Okay. So basically he is the
tynchpin in all the dealings?

axman nodsi

ANGARU MAN: He is. But I'il find
out al! this information.
TEHELKA: Okay.
BANGARU MAN (conﬁnuinge: But
since this is a...the superior thing, 1 think
they shoutdn't have any kind of...
Tehelka (completing Laxman's sen-
tence): Major roadblock on it?

1 Jain:

Ced

\

i %'smem. o - .

K. JAIN: Again, l+ust do my job. How
do { do? The scientific advisor is also on
the above of George Fernandes now. He
gave me one croré rupees. "You keep it
with you. Whether this order is bemq
done “or not done, | don't care. But

¢ want to give it to the party. You give it

and please try and help me. Mo e¥ is
not a problem." i went and paid.... | told
“Jaya Jaitly, "Look, s0 much of money he
has aquad¥ iven to me now. If you
accept it, that means we have to do
something for the party. If you don't
accept it; well, I'lt go and gfwe it back.
But only accept it when we feel that we
can do something. Otherwise, he won't
say anx}hmg to me, but he won't feel
good. He won't feel nice.’ She sai
Give me time for two days.” She kept
the money. After two days, she says,
*I've spoken to the boss.’ Don't worry.
He said he'll make everything fine.” The
file was called. He wigte on the file:
"V/kra‘ng is. our main ship, is the ‘main
vessel. -
TEHELKA rg’nterrupts): That's your air-
craft carrier?

R.K. JAIN:-Yeah. "Pakistan has the sur-
faec;s-to;'sgcr‘fa,cw%sec}bs. And oﬁr ship is
very well equi ause we have...air
landi ...alrtaﬁe—oﬁ....“ :

TEHELKA: Yeah. :

R.K. JAIN: (continuing): "We can't leave
this ship, you know, like this. So in my
suggestion, in my view, at-least one sys-
tern should be purchased. And put on
our main ve:

ssel,
* TEHMELKA (interrupts): That is INS Viraat
(int 4o t)to af

also. He ive thatto....
eah, & INS Viraat. .
EHELKA: Yeah, INS Viraal. 5
R.K. JAIN: Yeah, not Vikrant. INS Virat.

Sorry.

YEHELKA: This is for INS Viraat,

R.K. JAIN: INS Viraat. And he told me,
*Look, Mr. Jain, I'm doing it, 'm overrul-
ing the comments of the scientific advi-
sof, s0 it is not goodita. allow seven
pieces in_one g&ai Because we have
seven ships. Na m. geven ships
who are real fighters. But-téll your com-
?any that they should try and push from
he  down level. That after one is
a?proyed, 'No, no, we can't do with ohe.
Al ships' are very important. Please

aflow us to buy ali 'seven.’ Then I'll give
them the perrnission to bug and pur-
chase the rest of the six."_Same thin

ened after six months. The file wen!

ha S
in because Nanda man-

to the boss a
aged to, you know, )
managed to- get a letter in the name of
George Fernandes, that "This is very
“imporiant. Without this we can't sur-

TEHELKA: So Mr. Kalam took the

m%e ? L

RX. JAIN: No. . .

TEHELKA: Not Kalam?.

R.K. JAIN: Not Kalam. Kalam, because

see. Kalam was overruled by George

Femandes.

TEHELKA: Qkay, okay.

TEI;ith,I).KA: How much was the deal

worth?

R.K. JAIN: 560 crore. E_iﬁhty, crore was
ne giece. The deal is still going on. The
NC is going on. It's not yet through.

The final ne%%ﬂation is glng on. X

TEHEgivKA: e percentages are decid-

isit? .

R.K. JAIN: Yeah. At least what my party

from the bottom he .

things that it needed — a defence produc?
ere are 2
efence ministers

ﬁ;lr(t. JAIN: That three per cent to the
arty. .
B.K.yJAIN: But for my"se\f also...

In an explosive revelation, R. K. Jain
continues to spell out the incredible cor-
ruption .and compromise of the Indian
defence at the highest level. He explains
how the actual” monetary transaction
takes place in a defence deal, and how
much money he has made for Samata
Party - so far - Rs. 50 crore, for himselt a
rathér substantial sum of Rs. 10 crore, In
e beginning, he speculates about
whether the Prime Minister forwarded
some of the Sukhoi fighter aircraft
mon%\{-to George Fermandes .
TEHELKA: That's . G..G... Geor%e
Fernq)ndes, had nothing to do with it?

Okay?

R JAIN: (nods his head): Maybe the
PM must have got some money and for-
warded to George Fernantles also. That

| tatl..
TEHEI,)KA: »Forwarded it to you and not

to him?

R.K. JAIN: Not necessarily because

sometimes they have given the...

4Both laugh] o
EHELKA; You normally use Zurich-or

which Rlace? - :

R.K. JAIN: No lnorma%ly...for this kind of

transactions, | normally use a different
? ﬁ.'.:_.a third man. :

: Okay.
R.K. JAIN: ’SeeY’m_onB/ecqncemed...like
| talk 1o somebody in Delhi.

TEHELKA: Okay. L .
n.K. JAIN: He will come and sit with me.

e will give me the guarantee of that
amount, which I'm giving it to him in his

account,

TEHELKA: Abroad?: :
R.K. JAIN: Lhave a guarantee here.
TEHELKA: ka% Bank guarantee?
R.K. JAIN: Not bank guarantee.
HELKA: Verbal guarantee.
R.K.-JAIN: Verbal guarantee with one or

two common S... .
R.K. JAIN: As soon as the mc_n'lex_r:‘s3
transferred, we show him the slip.
mongls being transferred. .
TEHELKA: Then he gives you the equiv-
alent in Indian ruRgeg. .
R.K. JAIN: Then he gives...
HELKA: Okay. .

K. JAIN: That's the way they do it.
Sometimes my brother needs money
abroad. All t? Then | push it to my
brother'saccount. .~
TEHELKA: Okay. Which is the biggest
fransaction you have dong? :
l‘l.l'('i JAIN: I've done the Sultam.

TEHELKA: How much was it worth?
R.K. JAIN: That was 600 crores. Three,

ger nt for me. . .

EHELKA: So that was worth how

much to you? Half a per cent of 600
re

ﬁr.?(. JAIN: Nothing much. .

TEHELKA: That's quite a lot of

money.

R.K. .yAIN: You see, the kind of...

TEI;ESLKA (interrupts): Half a million

R.K. JAIN: Jaya Jaitly is the second

wife. But not officially married to Jaya
Jaitly. She's president of the

H

also. So there are two defence minis-
ters. One is George Femandes, anath-.
er is Jaya Jaitly. .
{Both laugh)

help: Bangaru

q__axm'an nods

EHELKA: Okay.

BANGARU MAN: At...in any case,
I'll.... What would be, the total worth of

e.? ‘
TEHELKA: It could be anything above
200 crores, as theg say. So about 50
million dollars to 60 miillion dollars. But
then, if you give us the whole order,
then that's, like, much more. It'll ?o up
10, like, 600 [crore], so that would be
about, | guess, 180 million dollars or
something, Two hundred million dol-

lars.
TEHELKA (continuing): That's...that's
...it's much easier for us to transfer
funds abroad than deal within india.on
a day-to-day basis. So we'll come fo
know 4tomorrow or something? s
there... don't deal with.... There's a
Mr. Rafhjan Bhattacharya aiso, f'm toid.
Is he also important?
BANGARU LAXMAN: Well, he is a
family member of Prime Minister.
TEHELKA: Okay.
BANGARU LAXMAN: And...he does
something, But these things | don't
think he will get involved.
TEHELKA: Accha. | was told that he's
ggt a... mean, lots of projects and all
ing moved. | don't know how far it's

BANGARU LAXMAN: Maybe. | don't

say that he might be involving himself in
many other things.. But as far as
defence things are concerned, | don't
think he has much.
TEHELKA: Yeah.
BANGARU LAXMAN: Somewhat in
gow‘er projects. This and that.
EHELKA: Yeah. | believe in Enron he
had a major hand to play. And would it
be like.. their accounts, | believe...
mean which banking nerve centers do
you operate in? Do you use Zurich or
which cities do you use? - -
BANGARU MAN: You have to
consult our treasurer who will be deal-
ing with this.

in

Tlg.HELKA: Okay.

BANGARU LA)?IMAN: t will have to find
out from him first. | have taken over

recently. | was not dealing,with these
matters earlier... .
TEHELKA: Okay.

BANGARU LAXMAN: = (continuing).
...when | was in party. So | will have to
check up from him. In such cases

what ..

TEHELKA: Okay.

BANGARU AN: And so far, you
have yet to start. Certain things are
in...stift in the pipeline. That through
establish agent who maintains a liaison
with the supplier and also with the gov-
ernment.
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ollars! You can give in dollxars,, said Ba

~and the 'l

- | think tha

- Of course, now we go straight

ngaru

‘It has been
going on for
7 years, the
agent was
screwing’

taken project two rs, three years to

there are
ou have

. cent.
TEHELKA: Yeah.

DEEPAK GUPTA: Ten per cent is your
expense. Commission in this business
is 15 Ener cent. T
TEHELKA: Total commission? .. -
DEEPAK GUPTA: Then you ag)aké five
per cent. I'm tatking from af-agent's
point of view. e *
Deepak also explains who he will use to
geEt 0 General ghoudary.

EPAK GUPTA: | know two people
who know Gen Choudary.
PR BBbn. oo s Doopat

3 : One is al
p

TEHELKA: Hmm.
DEEPAK GUPTA: And the other man is
a chap called Sharma. He works for my

FERELIA:

TEH : Haan.
DEEPAK GUPTA: But | prefer Chhabra
toSharma.
TEHEL :Okg¥.

DEEPAK GUPTA: Because Chhabra
will deliver goods. Sharma has 3, habit
that fnr_s'tanve the money. !
TEHELKA:

: Hmm. .
DEEPAK GUPTA: First give the money,
then we will see. - -9 . 4
TEHELKA: Hmm.

Deepak also introduces us to a second-
rung defence fixer called Rakesh Nigam -
who claims a direct in with Defénce
Secretary Yogesh Narain.

RAKES“ NI : No, no. The commis-
sion you spelt out, 17 per qen_} that will
come at a later stage. We wi l, not ask
you for a letter or anything until we are
sure about whether we can perform or
not. But to make a breakthrough within

-that 17 per cent there is goung to

be...there could be Something
teething problems. Teethin
es...which you have fo meet.
that's what | am asking you. ~*
TEHELKA: You see, xou are talking
about the token amount?
RAKESH NIGAM: Yeah.

TEHELKA: Token amount is if you can
arrange a meetmﬁ with this man
Deferice Secretary. lt's just a half kind of -
promise from his level, It won't be work
out in 2000, it maybe in 2001. Now on-
the-sgot | can give two lakh rupees. -
RAKESH NIGAM: Mr. Mathew, | will
give you 25 lakhs of rupees.

nown as |
expens-
much,

You
arrange for my mesting with one of my
contacts...with Defence Secretary. Peo-
le here talk in crores, you are ‘talking
o lakhs and five lakhs. .. .
TEHELKA: Sir, this is when nothing has
happened: .

5, MIRANG  Qoyioust . 19
not...it's al %omg to be official.
TEHELKA: Yeah. .
RAKESH NIGAM: Nothir}? off-the-
record. Which will happen. And getting
an access there is itself an opening.
Yeah, we are ?oing to be looked after.
¥.. let's talk in fermS where we can really
make a breakthrough with the business.
Two lakhs, five lakhs, 10 lakhs people
ust throw...for “entertaining. Recently

eepak and | just incurred an expendi-
ture’ of about a lakh rupees, a week
back. . v
Nigam talks about fa deal with former
Minister of State for Defence, Harin
Pathak, in which he gave him kickbacks

worth Rs. 1 crore. .

TEHELKA: Did this man introduce lot of
finance last year. Financial advisors and
some defence officers...those who are
related W.E. | am n:t blaming him. If

- minister is unable to reach him, then
how can...? .
. RAKESH NIGAM: Very strange, Harin

Pathak is a very bold person. One or
two jobs he did for me, we
exchanged bags. And things moved
ve smooth‘lXihA .
'CI"E I;l.KA: ich one? in the foreign
eal? ‘

RAKESH NIGAM: Yeah.

RAKESH NIGAM: That is the very rea-
son that you have been in this business
and have not been able to make a prop-
er breakthrough. Your own, your person
whom you aré naming théir own minis-
ters... one job...just for a break-
through. For six years this project, they
were not getting any breakthrough. |
was ﬁgmg corlnpﬁ‘t(l elog from comp:&
nies like... e haudhary a

Nanda. | ggveeo gne CR and things’ start-

i‘%ngl‘.lm CR means?
o e 4
RAKESH NIGAM: US. .
TEHELKA: One crore?

RAKESH NIGAM: For MTR.
TEHELKA: MTR is?

RAK| i : Germany. ,‘
TEHELKA: Okan that is a ¥|AL thing.
RAK NIGAM: HAL thing.
TEHELKA: What.was that? L
RAKESH NIGAM: ,En%nes. For_six
years they "Végre gettmgt; cked in Delhi .
and jan agent was screwing
TEHELKA: So Mr. Harin Pathak... -
RAKESH NIGAM: Yeah, but | don't
want to name and very few people know

about this.
RAKESH NIGAM: Very few people.

RAKESH NIGAM: | will ?ive you an
example of MTR. You must have heard
of Daimler Chrysler?
TEHELKA: Which one? |
R Kl.;dsgl NlG&gl:MDalmler Chrysler.
ercedes . Mercedes is a very
,small,pro}e(‘:’te%r them. Daimier Chrysier
isa bna &oup for Hefence. )
TmEaHE : Daimier Chrysteg .in Ger-
ny? - R
NIGAM: Massive...bloody this
thing. And | am doing job for them.
TE : In the ministry? .
RAKESH NIGAM: in the ministry.
TEHELKA: t'fne you succeed in,
TEHELKA: InHAL? That is a jet trainer,
t...'no? :

RAKESH NIGAM: No, no, no. This isdor.
the. ALH. Advanced light helicopters.

ALH.
TEHELKA: OkahAlready sj‘gged deals?
'RAKESH NIGAM: No, not deals. Just...
TEHELKA: Breakthrough? .
RAKESH NIGAM: Got a breakthrough.
TEHELKA: That is a big thing.
RAKESH NIGAM: it has beén
for seven years. And the bl
agent was screwing these people. Dr.
isher and Heinz. 1 gave him results
within a time of 20 dax\s.
TEHELKA: Do the same for us also.
NIGAM: No, no. We have to
develop a confidence in each other.
Everyone...look, in Delhi, Mr. Mathew,
ou will find bloody out of 100 people
peopte who will tell you, *I am this, |
am that and | am -accessible to the
Prime Minister.” Little do you know that

. the?l‘gre only accessible to the gardener

of the Prime Minister.
TEHELKA 'Slaugﬁ): Thatis true.
RAKESH NIGAM: | have been in this

pusiness for...J own a very low profile.
RAKESH NIGAM: You may not even
heard of my name b){ now.

TEHELKA: Yeah, firs am
RAKESH NIGAM:
appointment, | came to know gne-and-
a-half months back. | told DEEPAK
GUPTA. He said, “"Nigam sahab,
Rakesh bhai, really | am astorjshed...
And the rapport”i have, is seen to
believed.

CERd

s to West
End's first meeting with R.K. Gupta. It
was Pant who took us there. Gupta
straightaway talks about his Atal Behari
Vajpayee connections’ and what the
Prime Minister has told Bangaru Lax-

man. 4
R.K. GUPTA: PM told BANGARU LAX-
MAN, whatever Gupta says, do it.
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THE TEHELKA TAPES

It’s in national interest to consider all:

here’s a small wait at Defenre Mmuler
George Fernandes's house for-“discussions”

-with the president of the Samata Party, Ms Jaya

Jaitly The meeting has been organised by Surendra

Sulekha and General Murgai is also there, besides -

Member of Parliament Srinivas Prasad and some

others. The sequence begins with Sulekha asking for

the Rs. 2 lakh token money due to Jaya Jaitly for the

first face meeting. On this occasion ‘e are carrying

two camera devices so that in the event one of them

malfunctions, We have a back-up.

(Surendra Sulekha walks in}

SURENDRA SULEKHA: Packet is where?

ELKA Packet...that money’s in the brief-

SURENDRA SULEKHA: That you take in this
hand. That give to me because... I'm handling
that matter.

TEHELKA: Okay, okay.

[Sulekha looks up, calls to someone, pre-

sumab. totake e briefcase. 3
TEHELKA: No, | will take, | will take. You take
one envelope

SURENDRpA SULEKHA: Okay, you just give,it.

g'ehelka ‘starts takmg out money from the
riefcase and wrapping it in a newspaper.
Sulekha now comes clearly into the frame,
bendin,

SURE RA S LEKHA: You want coffee or

TEHELKA (contlnues wrappmg) No, that's

SUKENDRA SULEKHA: Our director...it will not

look nice.

TEHELKA: No thanks.

SURENDRA SULEKHA: Not

Just...cover if.

[|'_He tumns around ta check the door.]
EHELKA: No, | will cover it. Just put it.

SURENDRA SULEKHA: Let's take it.

g’ ohelka gets up and prepares to follow
ulekha out.

TEHBLKA: That also | want to show her?

fook nice.

SURENDRA SULEKHA: What is the need for -

that?

‘TEHELKA: No?
gURENDRA SULEKHA Madam, he-. |s Mr.

," E

EHELKA:
SURENDRA SULEKHA: He'’s dealing in elec-
tronics gnd...
JAYA JAITLY: Yech...

- SURENDRA SULEKHA: | am also joining them.

JAYA JAITLY: Hmm.

SURENDRA SULEKHA: Now they'll be startlrl
something with the Defence. He's broug%
something for the party.

JAYA JAITLY: Hmm.

4._13&& Jaughs]
: S0 l m from Kerala.

JAYA JAl LY: O

MAJ. GEN. MURGAI | Have been telting him for
a lon ge ! told him, “You maybe a specialist
|n tex |l but now you must dwerstiy into eler;-

JAYA JAITLY: Till now, luckily | don't Hhink too
many Tpeople -have become t00 enamoured by
that Il now evergme was going to IT..

KA: Yéah eople are interested in it.
MAJ GEN MURGAI: I'm talking venture capi-

tal in IT onk
JAYA, JAIT{Y Hmm. :
MAJ. GEN. MURGAL: See, those people who

have madelotof money in..

,TEHELKA éprofe {ring the’ packet of money,

mterrgr an [...can | give it to madam?
?:ves the package to another man

standm 0 the right of the screen and folds

hands. JAYA JAITLY acknowledges the gos-

ture.] .

MAJ. * MURGAL: This

JAYA JAITLY Please ‘send thls to our rmz's-
?EH r. Snmvas rasad B

IAvAT e ks the. hosting the Nangnal

Co neil.

:  Okay, okay, okay.
LY: We have two days wi
people Will be.going.
TEHELKA kay okay, okay.

]
e'!'relka folds hands in a greeting] ' - . .

- JAYA JAITLY

rea t,:'

JAYA JAITLY The Natlonal Council elects the
National Preslde ...

TEHELKA: O ‘F !

"JAYA JAITLY' hatis a once in tvvo year affalr
TEHELKA: Oka: ,Xnd

JAYA JAITLY: a new executm= the whole
intemal elections of the party finishes and
democratlcall a new presn ent is elected. .
TEHELKA: Okay, okay, o ay.

thaf process...

[Tehelka laughs and e rest of Jaya Jaltly’s
sentence is inaudible,
JAYA JAITLY (contmumg) . We new some

" help because he said, “Look, “I'can do &0 per

cent expense, You do ‘the rest.”

* [Téhelka laughe lo

{con‘t'iz’i‘l’)lng) Sothe rest -what-

SJAYA JAITL

ever contnbutlont

TEHELKA: Y .

JAYA JAITLY (Nontmumg ..Wecan mana;e
nee your : blessing

a'd (Iaughs) We need your blessing also for
MAJ GEN %JGA' This company is makmll
&Iaya Jarﬁy

or -commercial selling. And also
nce

make a m |n Defel
g‘AY JAITLY: Hmi

{;Al And now they are going

AJGEN. MURGAL That is what they're

domg And they are makmg these night-vision

-binoc

JAYA JAlTLY Naturally probably as far as |
know tracause | don't know much’ about these
things, but you all have to...whenever some new

. entry into.. -entrant into the field, they have totest..

MAJ, GEN. MURGAL: Thatsnght :
JAYA JAITLY ontlnumsq) ll that .
MAJ. GEN. MURGA!: for that testing, a

uest has been made.’
'JAYA JAITLY: Hmm.

MAJ. GEN.. MURGAI: Thatwe' woutd llke“{om

give...and.. bur item should be tested. G
what happens is that lot of requests keep on

coming. So'we want that at least...ours being a
proj rcom_P w
JAYA JAITL Eventually they go on quality

an
A..F GEN. MURGAI: That's nght But initially
they have to short-list.
JAYA JAITLY: Hmm.
JAYA JAITLY: If there's any way...if they are
refusmg to test it, that’s...then we can Step into
the picture. In normal ¢ course, they would be...
SURENDRA SULEKHA: They should be...
JAYA JAITLY (contmum ) If they dre
impressed with either the pnce or the look or
whatever, there has to be something which
-would attract their attention.
- TEHELKA: Yeah.
JAYA JAITLY: .. towards it.
MAJ. -GEN. MURGAI: So somewhere the...if
they dont then probably your help may be

Je%A JAITLY: Yeah.
MAJ GEN. MURGAL: .. .at least test the equip-

JAYA JAITLY: Yeah, if they don't,"we -can
always say, “Look you mustn’t treat anybody
unfalrt Give everybody achance.” -

KA Yeah, yeah, yeah.

JAITLY: That s nght If there is any unfair
&racttce we can ste|

iHere is the only justtce
'I EHELKA: Yeah, é

UREN%RA SULEKHA (continuing): Absolute
juesti
JA\YA JAITLY: Becauseif we.. .if we try to favour
any/body particularly, specrally when we don't
knaw a thing, then we maybe domg injustice to
sorr‘.'ebod dlse.

TEH.ELKA: Yeah.
JAYA JAITLY: But if we say, “Look don’'t do
injustice to anybod! eJ " And if somebody is
being nfair treat not being called...

TEHEL KA:
JAYA JAITLY (continumg) ..somebody else is

AJ. GEN. MUI?tGAp Yeah that’s right. That's
%RENDRA SULEKHA Where is the justioe?

VA4
aya Jaitly

bein favoured and you're not even bemg
TEHELKA: Oka:

JAYA JAITLY ?contmumg) ... then we'll say
“Look... oupleasedo .because thentheres

in our mterest
TEHELKA: Okay

" JAYA JAITLY: .
" sider all.”
TEHELKA: Ol x{
JAYA JAITLY ou then take the best, whichis
at the best
SURENDR SULEKHA Okay.
JAYA JAITLY: So if any...that whole thlng is

goin%lvvrongi“l then we can step in if need be.
0, we need that, at this stage we
need that. Twa com
not allo wm the ﬂ'lll’ company to the picture.
MAJ. That's ng
JAYA JAITLY No why shoul they not? .
me cross
URENDRA SU’EEKHA First...whether they do
or not, then we will see..
JAYA JAITLY: First you’d be...you'd be apply
g( Then you'll naturall ﬁrab an or»portumty {}
them, “Look, now | have applied. Are u
gomg to respond to me at all or pot?” If t
say, “No, no”, “we can't’, “we don't know
“we'll let you know”, and" they don’t sound very
convrncm then we'll see.
SURENDRA SULEKHA: Then we'll see.
JAYA JAITLY: But otherwise...after all when
somebod applles. they can’t just say, “We'll
u

EHELKA Yeah eah, yeah.
JAYA JAITLY: If ey say, “Yes, certainly we'll
consider your thtng and get back to you by such
and such a time..
TEHELKA: Oka

‘'JAYA JAITLY: yIf they do that...] reaIIy don't

know how they function at all.

SURENDRA SULEKHA: Firstxyou have to

1%pl then Yl'h u have to wait for the response.
at already...that process.is over

S%RENDRA SULEKHA: We Il have to wakt the

..it’s in national mterest to con-

anies, they are...they are .

: JAYA d

reseonse Then l...in case..

AYA JAITLY: After a reasonable time you can
chat with them and say...send them a réminder.
And then if they don’t, we can ask.

TEH LKA: ( ('

MAJ. GEN. RGAI (addressing Tehelkag
You see, sometimes, as"Madam has very righ
ly brought out, thlngs are movrng in right direc-

fion.

TEHELKA: Okax
JAYA JAITLY: And also, you know what it is. |
have no...| will not have’ any direct this thing. |
would only request Sahib's office that some-
body is ndt being considered even. So please
send a word down that if anybody is fairly offer-
ing a good quality thing at'a good price, they
should also be considered. '

TEHELKA: Okay.

JAYA JAITLY: Now...when that

don't want anybody to feel that lanybody has

’ MXJeﬁt;::TS??GAI. That's true

JAYA JAITLY: Becduse we don't have any
extra interest in ariybody. We have extra interest
in the good quality and good price.
SURENDRA SULEKHA: That's right.

JAYA JAITLY: In the interest of the nation. So
that we’ll ensure that they don’t neglect you.

TEHELKA: O X
JAYA JAITLY: After that, it's up to you and your
gEHELKA 'Fhat’s all. That's all we're ‘expect-

.tha
m.l GEN. MURGAI: So let's go?

TEHELKA: That's two lakhs. Two lakhs.
élaﬁa Jal% é
SULEKHA: Thank you very much.

. JAYA JAITLY: Thank you very m

gL converse in Malayalam for a whrle]
HELXA : Isn’t George sahib here?

JAYA JAITLY: No, he's not here.

TEHELKA if there are any problems, can 1

ome
Y’((ou oagn ime anytime. Give me
the detarls Just give'me a call if there is no
response.
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IJUNQUOTE

S trustee R.K. Gupra talks. abaut how

much West End will contribute 10 the

- arty fund, how the commission per-

centages will be divided, how he finished

both Ranjan Bhatmrlmna and - Brajesh

Mishra, Principal Secretary to- the Prime
Minister, in one deal.

R.K. GUPTA: This minister is a_fool.
BANGARU LAXMAN is a useless.fool.
PANT: Yes. :

R.K. GUPTA: ...You teli him this, this
work has to be done. .
PANT: If Bangaru telis him..

R.K. GUPTA: To whom?

PANT: Who should we ask 10 do the

work?

R.K. GUPTA: We should tell Bangaru

that Brajesh Mishra should order from
Defence Ministry.

PANT [turning to address TEHELKA]:
Brajesh Mishra, principal aduisor to P
he will order the George Fernandes
De¢fence Minister, or recommend some

of this
TEHELKA (mterrupts We
PANT & R.K. -GUPTA:
Defence Secretary.
TEHELKA: Sir, we are ready to give the
party fund also, no problem. The token

R K GUPTA: No, rio. What is the total
cost of the pro;ect'? .

TEHELKA: Sir, total cost of the project
»s a big one.

PTA: How much? :
TEHELKA Now we- are expecting...we
‘will get around 40 crores or 50 crores
Small lot.

R.K. GUPTA: How much is the commts‘
suon Elven to the party?

KA: Tell me Sir..
TEHELKA- ..
nowadays fof the binoculars..

hand-held..
R.K. GUPTA (mterrw:ts) ,l got some
order for Russrans

R.K GUPTA They give 12 to 15 per
TEHELKA Yeah

(together)

1 will tell you, ‘sir, that
in the

R.K. GUPTA: But they take back 50 per

cent themselves. The rest is given. Out
of that, users, they take one per cent...
TEHELKA: The ake two per cent
R.K. GUPTA: Users? :

. TEHELKA: Yeah,

R.K. GUPTA: Okay. They will take two
ger cent. | have glven only one.

: Yeal
UPTA And the Defence’ Secre-
wrlI take...
HELKA: One per cent.
R K. GUPTA: One.. oneand-a-ha{t per
cent, He'll settle with ane.
TEHELKA Yeah
R.K. GU PTA Plus there are other...
TEHEL . bureaucrats. ..
R.K. GUPTA ..bureaucrats. Joint secre-

taries, all the others...from where we:

have to start,
TEHELKA: Yea| .
R.K. GUPTA: lll get it done for guick.
R.K GUPTA: No problem First angaru
wrll speak to him, | will... lus
we'll also bridge them. Party fund,wr be
at least two—three per cent.
TE : Okay. Ready to give. No

RK GUPTA: I'll get it done, My job.
TEHELKA: Ready.to give. No problem.

K. G(JPTA (pointing to PANT): He's
like our younger brother.”Whatever he
orders, it will be done. Because our rela-
tions are not from today. When Mr.
Tewari was Finance Minister, since then
we know him.

PANT: :\(Ax son from the US just came.
TEHEL Yeah, yeah. . .
-R.XK. GUPTA: This my,..son won’t han-
dle...! will handle persofially. Myself.

TEHELKA: Sir, Ranjan also...Mr. Ranjan
i
|ki K. GU A: But he has been asked to

eep o
TEHELKA Cka ay.
R.K. GUPTA: In‘'one deal...l killed Ranjan
and Brajesh Mishra both. Got through
directly. PM blasted him.

use,

K. PTA: There are ways to do
things. First we will make a plan. Your
order is ready?

EHELKA: Yeah, everything is ready.
R K, GUP? A: There we're wantlng some

T%HELKA Sir, if a political pressure will
be there. So, already, sir, they've short-
listed. Sir, and there is a bug kickback..

gomg in the users’ side and bureaucrat-

will order and opportunity: Paswan

George on this:
RSS trustee

R.K. GUPTA: Not like this. Give one
crore, two crore...don’t give them per-

centaEg-
KA: Three per cent.
R.K. GUPTA: They are not bothered
about percentage
HELKA: Haan.
R K. GUPTA: They are bothered about
“what we'll get”, money!
TEHELKA: kay
R.K. GUPTA: Like for now, you will not

gve one crore or two'crore.

ANT Give one or two, that’s it. Let's
one.
T HELKA: One. One crore.
R.K. ‘GUPTA: It's the first order. First
take the order and get them under your
thumb. Then.. first you give more, then
oy give less.
EHELKA: Okay.
(Within the RSS, Gupta’s known as a “luper’
trustee. His proximity with both Prime Min-
ister Vajpavee and L.K. Advani is lore. Both
have been renants at s properties. He has

also helped establish’the -RSS headquarters

in Jhandewalan, Delhi, in 1967.)

R.K. GUPTA: With this party,
bullt their RSS headqua ers in '67.
TEHE KA: Del

Delhi?

K. GUPTA: DelHi. In ‘67 | spent more
than 50 lakhs of rupees to build that
headquarters.

TEHELKA: in ‘577

R.K. GUPTA: ‘67.

TEHELKA: ‘67. In Jhandewalan?
PANT: Jhandewaian. :

R.K. GUPTA: It’ s butlt by me.

TEHELKA Hm

K GUPTA' lt s built by me. Free of-
TEHELKA Oka ay.
RK. GUPTA: We know . anybody

there...you.go there and say, “Who made
this? It's very good. Who made it?"-And
they wilt tell you, “It was made by Raj
Kumar, a RSS worker, frée of cost.” An

the% tell thus to everyone

R.K. GUPTA They re telling thts to
gveryone.

RK. GUPTA: In  Emer gency

gave...given them one crore 10 lakh s

when nobody was even prepared to lis-

ten to telephone calls. And $500,000. .In

London and USA.

TEHELKA: Okay.

R.K. GUPTA: And became the sole

trustee of Friends of india Society Inter-

national. This is a society fioated by Mie.

I'm still sole trustee. When you come to

me, | will take you to BJP. You will sée
how.. .see how they respect

TEMELKA: Okay

TEHELKA: You are basrcally from RSS’7

",Gupta nods

ANT: He's the trustee...

UPTA: You have to have this big
heart [r_lphakes a gesture) if you want to
work. This much | can guarantee you,
your money will never go waste. | obly
ake Eersonal responsibility.

TEH LKA: Thank you, sir. Thank you.

UPTA: Because | can force'them.
TEHELKA Hmm.

R.K. GUPTA: f can &ks0 slap on the face
if they don’t do the work. If it's not paid
back, I will have to pay the money. | will

g E¥l don’t wol
ELKA: Snr, i have full faith of you.
Hundred per cent faith.
R.K. GUPTA: Monday evening | will be
on your work. But yeu have to have
some moneé
TEHELKA: Okay, | have [ .
R.K. GUPTA: You know.. .[now explains
along with hand gestures)..."Sir, this is
five lakh rupees.”
TEHELKA: Okay.
20!(25GU(I:T A:‘When lkdo the work...
-25 lakhs in my pocket
TEHELKA: Hrmrh

] put

"RXK. GUPTA: | W|lI just go and grve to

Defence five

these Like retary..

lismisses with hand_gesture] -

Then k/ed Prakash Goyal. Five lakh
rupees far the partyt “Can | take this
ﬁork sir?” Then 1"go to BAN

You just give them for no
work There are people who don't

TEHELKA We have to give... BANGARU
LAXMAN

R.K. GUPTA No, not BANGARU LAX-
MAN. Ten lakhs is tao less. | will give to
Defence Secretary.

TEHELKA: Oka h/

R.K. GUPTA: Then Ved Prakash Goyal,
treasurer of the party.

TEHELKA. Okay. ~Treasurer of the

E K. GUPTA. Treasurer of BJP.

we have -

(Brief snippets of thq comical meetings with
Telecom Minister’ Ram Vilas Paswan, and
Minister of State for Petroleum Santosh

Gangwar. Meetings with Finance Minister ,

Yashwant Sinha, and Samata minister Digvi-
Jjay Singh were also fixed but West End didn’t
go for them as we had reached a stage with
R.K. Jain where he was gettingrestive at the
lack of ¢ delivery of the promised muney }.

[Cameta shifts. T1, now in view to the

extreme right side of the screen, places’

his calling card on the table in front of
Paswan A man in a black cap is seen
sitting to- Paswan's right Paswan
picks, card and inspects it.] -

TEHELKA: Fm Alvm D'Souza, President
of Westend International. ngh technolo-
gy are&s in defence. And-we were look-
at a‘%&nd of private? pfojects in India.
Obviously. VSNL and . We

plan to come in. We have huge ptans to

mvest provided the opportunity is
%WAN milin Now, they've
o ened all th(gt o) Y
TEHELKA: Yeah.
PASWAN gturnlng to mani in cap sitting
to his right): now it is only is opportun|~
and opportunity.
ause
SW N: = you have got any papers

" toda

TEHELKA Yeah. They withheld
PASWAN: Yeah, just'give me, I'll give it
to'my officer, she'll gurde you and Tt just
el
[PASWAN dials number.on phione to his
left and speais into the mouthpiece. f
PASWAN: This "is D'Souza Alvin
D’'Souza. He is President of West End.
He's interested in Internet the I1SP. He
will meet you now Talk to him:

ASWA han
enerally about the tele-

com scene an like, eéncouraging the
lndnans to take the opportunlty

PASWAN: | trying to We've opened all
the fields, see {spreads his afms).
Exce tthls interational gateway

KA: Aaah!

PASWAN Otherwise everything is open.
The basic availability with the ong -dlis-
tance, the Internet .

wre-Sathyamurthi talks about the Sukhoi deal. He confirms the
involvement of R.K. Gupta, Sudeep Choudhary and Bangaru
Laxman in the deal. And says that Bangaru Laxman has 5-6

different forel n accounts.
TR 8

Kay, fine. That's fine. My boss yesterday also
asked Mr Bangaru .about you. | can fix the deal

cers can fix the deal with M. Satya. He said, “Yes”. Now Mr.
Gupta told me he done the dsal of Sukhot-SO in India. That is

SATHYAMURTHI Itis true.
ELKA G
SATH

ta told me. It’s a big deal, na?
I: They were here about a
Sukhoi. Nobody knows that in my. office. They know that some

TEHELKA: When do you plan to .open
this international atewax

PASWAN: International this internatiional
this long-distance we had eavtier
planned for 2004, but now- we have
announced that 2002 sometime in 2002,
And if you want that submlttlng rates .all

this

TEHELKA: Give me that thmg as
PASWAN: All the we 'have all the
amounts..

TEHELKA: Madras, Singapore ?
PASWAN: Yes.

Here we chat with Mrn/ster'of State for

etroleum Santosh Gangwar. In a few
days time hé was about to leave on a

" roadshow to Europe and the US)

GANGWAF\‘ ,You are based from?
TEHELKA: I 'm based in London.

NGWAR: London? -

HELKA: Yeah. We represént a com-
pany called West End international,
which are interested in
GANGWAR; | am there on 17-18
TEHELKA: Oka ay.

GANGWAR: 17-18 }1'be in Houston.
TEHELKA*Houston
GANGWAR: Road show our oil our min-
lstry are in for exploratlon blocks. Any-
Vi be otn
l}—llELKA ht now we are lookin
sourcnng cru

to buy from the open market.
GANGWAR: Open market, by OPEC
countries, by contracts, national compa-
nies Iraq . Actually our demands are very
much. That's why we have 10 And that'$
why actually our indigenous production
is 30 per cent. And they are importing 70
per cent. And in the terms of urgent
rates, in respect of rupees, we are
80 000 crore rupees. .
HELKA: Per annum?

(A breather here before. we go for the sprint.
Ler's get an overview of the profession, of
defeme middlemen, in India, from Colonel
Berry'who in his nine years uf liasoning’ has
worked with all the big players.)

TEHELKA: You've been in the liaisoning
field for how lort?

LT.COL. BERRY: For about nine years
now,

EHELKA: Hain!

TEHELKA: 7, 8 %.

with my...offi-

- rou
month back.

* LT.COL.

-LT.COL. BERRY:

e oil from countries, o herv
. than which have already sourced them,

You got?
SATHYAMURTHI | am quite hap cf
TEHELKA: Sukhoi is a historical deal, baba! -

SATHYAMURTHI: Yes.
TEHELKA: 34,000 crores of rupees. So did Mi". Gupta get”
SATHYAMURTHI: Gupta is also involved.
TEHELKA: Gupta...and Sudeep Chaudhary gJs¢) involved? )
SATHYAMURTHI: He is not, he is not the ofily one. It lS a
work_. It is teamwork.

EHELKA: That Mohinder Pal Sahni |nvolved’7
SATHYAMURTHY: Yes.
TEHELKA: He was?

TEHELKA: Nine years?

LT.COL. BERRY: Yeah.

TEHELKA: So where all you just take me
throu 8h those nine years? )
LT.COL. BERRY: See 1"l tell you
TEHELKA: And the blggest deals that
you have done.

T.COL. BERRY: Yeah I'l justdo a
TEHELKA Briefl \y %

BERR asically this is the
main thing | mean

* TEHELKA: Y4

eah.
LT CO@Ia BERRY how we are going to
EHELKA Yeah.
and whlch are the
ways and means of doing the things.
TEHELKA: Okay.
L.T.COL. BERRY: See, basically, initially |
started with Mr. lem Khanna whom
you wanted to
meret also.
TEVELKA: Okay.

Khanna, yeah, yeah.
LT .(COL. BERRY: By Y

Yeah. Because there

. are: only three-four names which rotate

around here. Because it is very secretive
ancl, you know, one has to be very, very
cautious also in this field. Mr. Vipin
Khanna, Chaudhary and Nanda. These
are th e three names which you'll always

TEHEl. KA: Mathew was _telling about a
Mr. Sauani.

LT.COL. BERRY: Hmm? Listen. See,
these gré first rung. I'm talking about the
first ruri¢). First rung is these three. Then
after thai' second rung, you know

TEHEL K A Vipin Khanna, Chaudhun/ &?
BERRY: and Sur Nanda )

LY.COL.-

TEHELKA Oka

LT. CO(lj_ BERR Yea(h And thenl in 'th
second rung, you know, people like
Sahni, Gupta, even RK: Gupta's broth-
er. Those gulys are there.

TEHELKA: Cka F{

LT.COL. BEERRY: There is a Pichoria
also there. There is there are plenty you
know ﬂust tgtng to make therr

LT COL BERl"tY | mean at least giving
an impression. as if they are number one
and ﬁ)that S this is that. So | started
my thing basiciily with Mr. Vrpm Khan-

TEHELKA: Okay.

‘Myself and Mr Laxmai, we
operated in Sukhoi: Sal,

ow much you. got?

SATHYAMURTHI 's a good | ob More thian 7, nearty 8%.
. .

delegation has come. .

TEHELKA: O SATHYAMURTHI: Yeah! .

SATHYAMUR il: Because myself and Mr. Laxman weoper- TEHELKA: Re_:ix_I‘I_y )
SATHYAMURTHI: Yes, | have a...he and him. 1 fxave not met

TEHELKA. That Sukhoi very well...

SATHYAMURTHI: We- operated very .nobody, nobody can

smell.

TEHELKA: Okay, fine.

SATHYAMURT I: That's what you’'ve seen in our offlce you

know we’re very normal.
TEHELKA: Oka

SATHYAMURT¥II It's I|ke a very small needle behind' that
ested place, and we are very cautious.

at money entire...go to the party?
SATHYAMURTHI Yeah. Even the money, what you giving,

kind of a con
TEHELKA:

ive it to the party. We won't take it.

h|m | have not met him. BecauseJ am not close to many peo-

wnll no Ruve 1

TEHELKA:

EHELKA: No, Mr. Gupta, he said. Yesterday Mr. Bangaru
told me that he will give his overseas accounts also. the onl
SATHYAMURTHI: That is a second part. I'fl tell you. TEHELKA: Yeah!

T HELKA: He told me that “I will give the overseas.” You have
yr accounts overseas? | can opéen an account for you.
HYAMURTHI I'm doing it in London now.

SATHYAMURTLI I've told my fnend

TEHELKA: Is very fast. It will not take time. Thatis a blg ben-

eﬁt for...
SATHYAMURTHI Hmm.

TEHELKA The Sukhoi, party got how many percentage?

SATHYAMURTHI: it's a good job.

DEEPAK GUPTA: Now, if you look at the entire
single vendor.

Russian business, . it is all

TEHELKA: O

DEEPAK GUFV'Iy ‘A: Okay? So...there is no question.
See |f we have to buy T-90, then we only have to

TE¥-IELKA Oka:
DEEPAK GUPTA: There' s nothin,

have to buy Sukhoi-30. It is only Sukhoi-30. When

else. When we

indians’ can

“ten

TEHELKA Yeah, Mr. Mohinder Pal Sahni ap roach«ed mealot
of times. He will do the work through
See, | am an Indian, | am not a foreugner I can come and
dlrectl meet 5ou 1F 1 will give Mr. Gupta for a Rs. 1tt lakh. He
lakh to your boss.

HI Not'necessarily. Actually | will tell \/ou

angaru, like that.

SATHYAMURTHI' it's only...we have a very good holt:' on this.
What y_esterday { was tellmg you.

SATHYAMURT it; Because after P. V. Narasrmha Rats\. he is
South Indian who is involved in thlS

SATHYAMURTHI: A(?d this kind of deals in India only South
o

TEHELKA: That is true! True fact,

SATHYAMURTHI: We do in a very systematic way and w3 are

the trusted pgople Maybe our charges may be one or twro per

Nobody else can do.

TEHEEKA Yeah! Yeah! .

SATHYAMURTHI: But we don't cheat people.

TEHELKA; No, no. You know, if we can go througti one or two :
percent, that is nat a problem. | am telling very frankly. But our
work should have the best,

: We have good re

PANT: Yeah, certainly.

PANT: General Chouda
are looking
TEHELKA: |..

DEEPAK GUPTA: If Defence Secretary’s told, can
Defence Secretary ask W.E: to go in for trial?

DEEPAK GUPTA Thatl will do. That I wili do.
TEHELKA: No, that...that | will tell you that difficul-
ties of that also, Sir, | asked this matter also.

is @ man basically they

.| asked this matter also.

f

throu
TEH KA Oka
et any in:
EHE

In the next meetin
for. lems. there would

ns... i

DEEPAK GUP A: Which gives me the access to
ctions dane. .
Okay, ok ay. Co ‘

g Deepak explains what prob-
‘a

work of West End. H said that
petitors Thomson-C3F and El-Op have already

Brajesh Mrshra Now it is only is opportunity Contactmg one

person in . oD
will not help:

Nare.

eneral Murgaz introduced
us to Shukla, the Personal
Secretary to Minister of
State Harin Pathak. The Ketan
Shukla line wasn’t pursued vigor-
ously by West End because of the
resignation of minister Harin
Pathak. However, getting an
order from the Indian Army is not
Just greasing the army and the
politicians. The finance guys also
have to be kepr in good humour.
Brigadier Sehgal puts us through
1o Narendra Singh, Additionagl
Finance Advisor, Ministry of
Defence to bnef us on how things
niove in the maze of the babu
* nambet-crunchers. n thé first =
meeting, Singh accepts Rs.. 10,000
as a token advance. He advises
West End where to concentrate on
and says that things in the finance
world will move only when the

ﬁroduct has been acce tﬁd

ARENDRA t initially
what { think is that your flrst of all, your
product should betried cut by mfantry
or artillery and they should say, you
know, they have seen the produc and it

s veg g(: :

" TEHEL) y‘
NARENDRA SINGH: That is regarding
user trials.

« TEHELKA: So what | have to do flrst?
Already this channel is okay. .

RENDRA SINGH: 1...I.. you know, |

an |ve ou some references.

El
RENDRA SYNGH Once you meet
hertr)t offi crally, you -explain them your
rol
EHELKA Sir, that Ranjit' Issar in the
rdnance is very crucial factor.
JARENDRA SINGH: No, no...see, lam
lling you that these people, what you’
re tall mg ‘is Bhutani, Bunker or ‘Ranjit
ksar or.
nance division. They will come into pic-

fermed ‘only with the procurement of
hings. Before that necessity  and
jcceptability of.the product has to be
here. They should say, -you know, that
Vvhat-you are offering in technology-wise
r performance-wise this is a improve-
nent over what we have already seen.
EHELKA: Y :
- JARENDRA SINGH' So some...and
hen how to get you entered into the
ompetition.
Beputy Secretary  Narendra Sm h
mphasizes time and again that in the
bng chain of people required. to be
. b_‘ reased, General Choudary was the first
k. He advises West End to concen-
rate on gettlng,the E'roduct trials going.
give you one
xample, then you will know*the terms.
fhere is one ‘more very establlshed
lompan -Sa em .

EH
IAREN ASINGH Sa em! Sa em!
Sagem. hich...Toreign

ARpENERA SINGH: Forelgn company.
rench comparny.

HELKA: Haan.

RENDRA SINGH: For the fast .five
years. they are trym% that their product
stould be seen by the army. They have
na been successfutl.

I

ecp

ra Smgh

TEHELKA: Not yet? '
NARENDRA SINGH: Not yet.
TEHELKA: What is the problem"
NARENDRA SINGH: And they have a
ofﬂce in'Delhi.

TEHELKA:,Uh-huh.
NARENDRA SINGH: One General-level
officgr has been posted here.
TEMBLKA: General?
NARENDRA SINGH: One General-level

- officer has been posted here.

will give a parallel line in #e

TEHELKA: Retired?
"NARENDRA SINGH: Retired. _

. TEHELKA: In the Indian Army?

NARENDRA SINGH: French'army.

TEHELKA: Indian Armfy

"NARENDRA SINGH: French army. '

TEHELKA: French arm

NARENDRA SINGH:

Eosted here. They have a office in Golf
inks. All that, | mean, Colonel Sehgal

will, of course, not be aware of these

thlngs beéause hls departrnent is dlfter-

ey o

TEHELKA: H
NARENDRA StNGH So it is not very

" easy...to get an entry is not very easy.

« YOu. see .your pnnclpal’s are  which

com
TEH L A: West End.

NARENDRA SINGH: West End.

NARENDRA SINI H I know,
know...no...actually had...actualk %
when 'you com ared yourself wit

Thomson and all that, | started thinking
that way. It is not that way. It-is off-the-
shelf_itis different entirely.

TEHELKA: It is different.

NARENDRA SINGH: So they will...|
khow now...now | know what will they
do is this emergency requirement.
“TEHELKA: It's emer aen%requlrement
NARENDRA SING emergency
requlrements so far it is not there in our

TEHELKA Yeah.,

NARENDRA SINGH: So, -there are A
will tell you there are number of persons
to be contacted. Contactmg one person
will not help in MoD also. There are
number of pesons. One person’ wrtl be
holdme the ro;ect o

mm
NARENDRA SINGH: One person who
¥l£ll be c(lAeanng the demand.

NAR| ENDRA SINGH. Another person

ure only when theré is a procurement  who will be stttmg in the PNC.
Dro osa Before that they ave nothing TEHELKA lgs

NARENDRA ING,H Right? See. .50
l'EHE KA: O y there will be fdur-five at worklng Ievel!
iARENDRA SINGH: They are con- TEHELKA: Yeah.

NARENDRA SINGH: So 1 am more oon- :

cenlted tlmth people who are at the wark-
eve

HELKA: Yeah.
NARENDRA SINGH: So, then it is
.job, if there are any problems 1 wil ell
you, you will have to handie thls person
or that erson.
TEHELKA: Oka
NARENDRA SINGH. So before
that.. keep, kindly keep quigt on that
and you should not meet an y till
then. And then | will tell fyou if it, 1. mean,
comes to that stage then how o go
ahead. You have to tackle that man.
How you tackle that has to be your..»
[Narendra Singh. smiles and Tehelka
gives him a wad of currency notes,
which Singh takes and puts under the
table between them ]

EHELKA: Sir, this is 10,000 bucks. So
what is my request is that, please
arrange these kind of meetlng_s ‘e can
meet these people in Park Hotel any-

NARENDRA SINGH: Let me tell

y_ou .see, you fet the demand come.
EHELXA: This ,is 10,000., this is

10,000 bucks. Small, this is just a...

TEHELKA: Th?; are the major players s

NARENDRA

major players So...

Gupta

DEEPAK GUPTA: You understand? We don't
catch the small fish. But while the net is put for the

he took up the liaisonin,
Vl}rj-.‘st End’'s comEE

big fish, there are peo le who hoid the net. There is
Defence Secretary, t

fares...
TEHELKA: Hmm.
DEEPAK GUPTA: So | come to know.
TEHELKA: Hmm.

' DEEPAK GUPTA: They know this man operates
from the polmcal area.

ere are some joint secre-

0 be good friends with him.

l-Ymm He is been -

H: These .are the .

QUOTE

Tehelka: What - is the
grapevine?

Lt. Col."Berry: Grapevine is
that he is the -one who worked
for George Fernandes. He is the
conduit. So he is [gestures]. The -
main thing is that. And prior to
that, actually speaking, this deal
_]llSt fell into his lap. “

* See’ when Deve Gowda and
his somewhere. He was
involved in this. Initially. It is
only - lately he has been

_involved to get the kickback: So
it was that thing.

So now that you are already i in
nuiztber of businesses you know
the Indian market, and .you
know Indian culture. Every-
thing is known to. So things
have to be controlled like that.

Lt. Col. Berry: If you shake
hand, it is shaken forever. Oth-
erwise, people will say "sorry".
Like he told you that first thing
is for- them resolution. He has
given you a feeler already that
"Look, if your resolution is
okay, you are okay." Absolute-
ly. Because on resolution, he
cannot force cannot compro-
mise.

Tehelka: Okay.:

Tehelka: This is for INS
Viraat.

R.K. Jain: INS Viraat. And he
told me, "Look, Mr. Jain, I'm
doing it, I'm overruling the
corhments .-of the scientific
advisor, so it is not good to
allow seven pieces in orie go.

Because we have seven ships.
Naval'..réal seven . ships who
are repl fighters. - :

But tell your company that
they should try and push from
the down level. That after one is
approved, ‘No, no, we can't do
with one. All ships are very

, 1mportant

Please allow us. to- buy all
seven.' Then I'll. give them the
permission (o buy and purchase
the rest of the six." Same thing
happened after six months.

The file went to the boss again
because ‘Nanda managed to,
you know, from the bottom he
managed to get a letter in the
name of George Femandes, that
"This is very important. With-
out this we can't survive." So .:

Tehejka: Not Kalam? :
R.K.Jain: Not Kalam. Kahml,
because see Kalam was over-
ruled by George Femandes.

,Tehelka- (mterrupts) I;Ialf a

million doHars.

R.K. Jain: Yeah. But you see,
the place where you're sitting;
you can make any amount of
money you want. Oné deal of
Sukhoi, one deal of air jet train-
ers and one big deal of sub-
marines, or like there was a . In
defence deals are all deals are,
you know, 500 crore, 700 crore.

Tehelka: That's cute. Very
cute. :
RK. Jain: And 1 am basically

the front of Jaya Jaitly and

George Fernandes. If you want,
I can show you-the minutes of
the meetings. It is cyclostyled
in our dtfferent conferences...

national ’  conferences, that

'} whenever party n¢eds money,
"Mr Jain will have to. arrange

that ‘money and give it fo the
party. That's the job of. the
nanonal treasurer. :

Bangaru Laxman: Let me get
i touch with those people. 1
will tell you tomorrow. I will
find out from my treasurer
and I will let you know.

- Tehelka: Then.can you can

you sir, we can work out Ban-
garu line also.

Mohinder Pal Sahni: 1 can.
‘Hundred per cent.. Not. even
ninety-nine. Let's not talk blah--
blah. We should work if tomor-
row we fail even in the techm-

| cal end.

RXK. Jain: Party was wanting
money. We, just came intg the

- power, we had no money.

R.K. Gupa: How much com-
mission do we pay to.each per-
son? The complete equipment
bill is 12 to 15 per cent. But 50
per cent they take back.
Tehelka: Okay.

R.K. Gupta: With Russians
that_is the practice. They take
back 50 per cent.

R.K. Jain: George won't take
money. He won't take money.
Tehelka: Haan?

R.K. GUPTA: No, no, just listen. If Bra-  TEHELKA: Y _ we have to buy Goldskoff, it is only Goldskoff. So DEEPAK GUPTA General P.S.K. Choudary is our.. K. Jai . .
jesh Mishra tells the Defence Secretary, PANT: Ved Prakash Goyal. there’s no competition. PANT: Hi struck deafs and it mig ht be too'late. Then he goes  TEHELKA: O - RXK. Jain: George is not like
It has to be done,” the Defence Secré- TEHELKA: Okay Brajesh. TEHELKA: Yeah, exactly. ¥hat is true. DEEPAK GUPTA Only he takes too muchmoney. If  on to giving details ho\ exactly he operates. DEEPAK GUPTA: And | always tell them, “You Yashwant Sinha takes money
’s the last word. .. [gestures] R.K. GUPTA: Not Brajesh... -DEEPAK GUPTA: But when you bid small prod-  he is ready to give the money, then we can discuss need not be free fnend openl
ELKA: Yeah, exactly. ~ PANT: Ved Prakash it with General Choudary. If he's wﬂlmg to spend DEEPAK GUPTA {con':nurng) Let me explain to TEHELKA: Haa penly. )
[Pant and Gupta talk in inaudible’ TEHELKA: Okay, Ved Prakash. TEHELKA Haan? the money, Pl try. .. ©ou_my operation or you will not understand. ~DEEPAK GUPTA.“You know what to do with your Tehelka: Haan?
nejJ RK. GUPTA: Brajesh’s price is one DEEPAK GUPTA: And it's not smail, let me tell you. TEHELKA: Yeah, sir, I'm wiling to sp‘end no-prob- TEHELKA: Yeah. mone RK. Jain: Yashwant Sinha
R K GUPTA: This Yogesh Narain {went  crore. | don’t want to go to him with A Thermal imaging and Night-Vision binoculars is . DEEPAK GUPTA: loper-\te from the PMO. TEHELKA: H ak
,money DEEPAK GUPTA: | can talk to even Gengral TEHELKA: Okay. DEEPAK GUPTA So, we have good relations. takes money.
PANT Haan, Yogesh Narain.. K’a d TEHELKA Yeah. Choudary, let’s tatk. DEEPAK GUPTA: Okay” /Bra;esh Mishra gives in  Now, at the user level, when it conies to army, air Tehelka: Haan.
R.K. GUPTA: So that.. \...Y o'gesh Narain, UPTA: We will handle them: DEEPAK GUPTA: In fact, there is a PNC on in the PANT All right. How much should we fix the deal s tions. . force...I_have people ‘who are operating in small
lwxll get it sgoken to by the FM Dontworry first week of December to upgrade the T-72...where T%KA Okay. areas. Smali-time agents. They can be worked . ,
l\Y TEHELKA! Okay. 250 tanks are gomg in for upgradation. DEEPAK GUPTA: Right. DEEPAK GUPTA: “Do this, do thns ” “This needs to  upon for clearances. “Clear our money..." “Clear our R.K. Jain: George doesn't take
UPTA: Not PM - himself. Brajesh R.K. GUPTA: You keep Rs. 20 25 lakhs  TEMELKA: O _y be done”, “Thls flle needs to stop....” order..." Because main payment goes 1o bureaucra- money. .
Mnshra is PM. After that Il talk' to read Then blast your work. DEEPAK GUP A: That's an order of about 400 " Deepak also impresses West End wnh his clout in  TEHELKA: H cy and politicians. You see, in order, if you want Tehelka: His - i h
Yc_xrqesh mlyself I know him very well. He HELKA: Okay, Sir crores. Okay? Theraafter, they are going to glve other areas. DEEPAK GUPTA «...this files needs to begin.” political interference politicians take four-five ehelka: ks image yean,
want t : cent, bureaucracy takes two per cent, user ta es yeah  very socialist back-

at somebody should tell him.

akaﬁﬂ Then I'll teli BANGARU LAX-
TEHKELKA: Hmm
R.K. GUPTA: That “Sir, this is a 40

crores worth order. Out of this party will..
Hovr mar -, o res will it get?”
TEER v w2 per cent. That's very

e

‘.l

(A' a later meeting, Gupta discusses the
modalities further. He admits to gtvmg the
BJP 3-4 crores every month.) :

TEHELKA: No, | am telling that,
because we have already spent more
than 45 lakhs of rupees. PANT:
R.K. GUPTA: That is your. ]0b We are
spending crores.

TEHELKA:

another 750 o”l?“s Like this they will carry on.

a
DEEPAK GUP'\YA So...yours is hand-held, which
would be for the infantry, | guess? PANT: Yeah.

DEEPA'!{( GUPTA: Te‘ﬁ me one thing. -’

DEEPAK GUPTA If secretary s told..
PANT: Hum?

. ’: . ‘ . : . — -‘M’ “ . ‘ ‘ ‘ - —

ou briefl
efence,

DEEPAK GUPTA: Let me tell
profile. My job profile is Power,
munication and highways.
TEHELKA: Aviation?
DEEPAK GUPTA: Htghways Highways.
TEHELKA: High

DEEPAK GUgTA And these four areas...whatever
money that has LO go to the government, goes

my job
elecom-

TEHELKA: Hm

DEEPAK GUPTA So we ar«: in a area of big fish.
We catch big fish. We don't catch small fish.
TE : Hmm, hm

HEL mm.
DEEPAK GUPTA: We catct the big fish. If you B

want to catch the big fish, it is *'5 per cent business’
EHELKA: That is true.

DEEPAK GUPTA: It is 35 per cent business.

TEHELKA: Hmm.

only one per cent. Eight per cent. Maybe one or two .

ger cent expenses.

EHELKA: Again tell me, politician will take?
DEEPAK GUPTA: Four-five percent.. -
TEHELKA: O ka_\,y

DEEPAK GUPTA: Bureaucracy will take two per

TEHELKA Okay. N

ground and everything all
that?

R.K. Jain: It's not easy to give
money to George.

N

n




' THE TEHELKA TAPES ~

I was pl to goto TI

Here Sathyamurthi talks about the Sukhoi
deal. He confirms the involvement of R.K.
-Gupta, Sudeep Choudhary and Bangaru
Laxman in the deal. And says that Bangaru
Laxman has 5-6 different foreign accounts.

TEHELKA: Okay, fine. That's fine. My
boss yesterday also asked Mr. Bangaru.
. about, you. I can fix the deal with
my...officers can fix the deal with Mr.
Satya. He said, “Yes”. Now Mr. Gupta
told me he done the deal of Sukhoi-30 in
India. That is true?
SATHYAMURTHI: It is true.

© TEHELKA: Gupta told me. It's 'a big
_ deal, na? :
SATHYAMURTHI: They wergé here
about a month back. Sukhoi. Nobody
knows that in my office. They know that
some delegation has come.
TEHELKA: Okay. L .
SATHYAMURTHI; Because myself and’
Mr. Laxman, we operated... '
TEHELKA: That Sukhoi very well....
SATHYAMURTHI: We " operated
very...nobody, hobody can smeil.
TEHELKA: kan fine. :
SATHYAMURTHI: That's what you've
seen |r|1 our office, you know we're very
normal.

Sehgal: I will |
tell you where:
to go, whom
to meet

This is how Tehelka started its investigation

SASHI MENON (to Sehgal): Today we
got that Malaysian binoculars. QA man-
ual. Quality Assurance...call it as manual
type. i think you might not have seen.

oday there.. there is g bunch of...one
?/l?a?ak' booklet is there. Sponsored by

gn:é?:"ﬁiL SEHGAL: | know. I've seen
at.

SASHI: Haan. . :
BRIG. SEHGAL: ...in which ADC has
r}fvn\;tveg that {Ais should be handed over

o W.E.
SASHI: Haan, W.E. Of course. .

TEHELKA: Sir,'you have to tell us what
are the things which, what we should

do. . because., this is a field. ..

BRIG. SEHGAL: This is a very vagt field.
It's a ve'% very vast field.

TEHELKA: We are the people who have
absolutely no. .. ’

E}ashl comes and sits next to Sehgal.]

RIG.. SEHGAL.: Okay. o
BRIG. SEHGAL: (continuing where he
left off), ‘There is an”annual require-
ment...what | foresee. . .at'present, of pre-
sent equipment of...about 10,000 1l
tubes per yeat. And in the next four to
ﬁvei_&ears I'have not yet calculated.
TEHELKA: Huge purchases. And those
Beop!e who are geared...

RIG. SEHGAL: .. \.l?lood period. { stay in
the background.... What I'am telling you,
- don't discuss it with anyone. It's just

‘between...not meant for your ears a{so,

but then...
SASH!: That way you can puthin a peg

and greé)are it.

BRIG. SEHGAL: If you can find® some-
one to manufacture the ammunition.
That'salsoinabigway.
TEHELKA: Where do ¥ou want me to
go...from Russia, Israel? | have got base
in New York, | hav ta base in Cana-
da, frgentina, Chile [ have got. :
BRiG. SEHGAL: See, now these |!

TEHELKA: France. They'li be coming to

you. oo
BRIG. SEHGAL: France they've been
happily...l'll be very frank. You have to
break this...this thing...of BE-Delft. BE-
Delft is a PSU, which was...India in¥est-
ed. As of late, there has been a certain
golicy that nothing would be imported.

heré are many people who are really
interested in that. So you have to getthe
nexus broken up at'the top. And.this

BE-Delft thing... ’
TEHELKA: [f | become their authorized. ..
BRIG. SEHGAL: But BE-Delft is not tak-.
ing anyone else. )

TEHELKA: Okay. - .

BRIG. SEHGAL: BE-Delft is Bharat

Electrical (sic) Delft. Delft is Holland.
TEHELKA: Holtand. Okay. )
- BRIG. SEHGAL: Holland has branched
out from itself after the sanctions.: US
sanctions. What you have to do is get
little . open...because they have been
talking big. Yeah, we can do this much.
But he [referring to SASHI} is aware of it,
how much-less. They have been taking
us, taking us for a ride. And somehow
the bureaucracy also. And thm'as have
been badly manipulated in the Ministry.
P'll be very frank with this. Things have
been - manipylated in the -Ministry |
tgat...delay'thmgs deliberately, to suit
them. : .
gDrinks arrive. TTheﬁ toast each other]-
RIG. SEHGAL: He doesn’t have.. .there
are so many other things also which:are
coming in this. Like you have spares. |
can give you which spares™indent was
mad8. | can give you the last procure-
ment Rrice. enerally what happens,
what the scene is. They are not aware
till the lastminute what rate it was takes .
at. That I can calculate and you will alsd
do. Everyone has been coming up with
an offer. But | said, “Look, first giveme
10 lakhs, then.we will talk.”
TEH| +If they are not ready to place
the information "then the question of
talking further does not arise. -Who
wants to discuss the future? Sir, in this 1,
‘my people are very clear. They have
straight away said that “You go ahead
and you be a part of the venture.” It's
“not as if | am separate...would need a

uide. .
gRIG. SEHQAL: | can help in so many
things. I will tell you where to go, whom

1o meet.
TEHELKA:  Everything...meaning...you '
tell me everything. - .
BRIG. . SEHGAL: But then, see, I can
S

El

ou the way.

TEW Y.KA: Bilkul),/
BRIG. SEHGAL:
move on your own. . }
TEHELKA: Yes, yes, sir. Once wyou
show us the way, we’ll automatically fol-
low it. . .
Soon enough comes a demand 10 be enter-
tained in a five-star hotel. Brigadier Sehgal
comes. there with a Lt. Colonel Sharma, who
is_an army officer posted in the Air Force

rocurement Section.

ere, they are ententained and disclose how
to proceed. o
LT. COL. SHARMA: Because those
kind of PNCs [Price Negotiation Com-
mittee] and negotiations are done at the
ministry level. We don’t involve miriistry
in our world: We do it directly.

But you'll have to

~

Major-Ge

MEHTA: ...no, liaison.in a way also refiects some-

lanning

# Colonel Saval alyo takes us

TEHELKA: Okan ‘

. SATHYAMURTHI: It's like a very small
needle behind that kind of a congested
gla‘ce, and we are very cautious.

EHELKA: That money entire...go to the

£ -
YAMURTHI: Yeah. Even the
money, what you giving, we give it to the
‘garly, We won't take it.

EHELKA: No, Mr. Guptg, he said. Yes-
terday Mr. Bangaru told me that he will

glxe his overseas accounts also.
THYAMU

THI: That. is-a sécond

;In_art. I'll tell you. :
EHELKA: He told-me that “I will give
the overseas.” You have.any accounts
overseas? | can open an account for

ou. .
éATHYAMURTHI: I'm doing it in Lon-
don now. :
TEHELKA: Okaxl.‘ Co
SATHYAMURTHI: I've told my friend.
TEHELKA; Is very fast. It will not take
time. That is a bi efit for....
SATHYAMURTHI: Hmm.

TEHELKA: The Sukhoi, party got
manneercenta_ﬂs? .
SATI URTHI: It's a good job:
TEHELKA: Hain!

N

how

SATHYAMURTHI: It's a%o0d job. More
than seven, nearly eight'per cent.

" TEHELKA: Seven, eight per cent. Yo
ot? How much you got? L

THYAMURTHI: | am cwite happy!

EEE‘?'KA: Sukhoi is a istoricaF deal,
abal . -

SATHYAMURTHI: Yes. .
TEHELKA: 34,000 crores of rupees. So
did Mr. Gupta get? .
SATHYAMURTHI: Gupta is also
involved, :
TEHELKA: Gupta...and Sudeep Chaud-
hary also involved? .
SATHYAMURTHI: He is not, hé is not
the only one. It is a group work. It is
teamwork.
TEHELKA: That Mohinder ‘Pal Sahni
involved? :
SATHYAMURTHI: Yes.
TEHELKA: He was?
SATHYAMURTHI; Yeah!
TEHELKA: Really?
ATHYAMURTHI: Yes, | have a...he and
him. | have not met him. | have not met
him. Because I"am not close to many

;‘J_eorf»le, : . -
EHELKA: Yeah, Mr. Mohinder Pal
Sahni approached me a lot of times. He
will do the work through Mr. Bangaru,

Gen. Ahluwalia: If

“you want to make

Label for Diwali

to Major Gener-
al Manjit Singh Ahluwalia, . - :
Director General Quality Assurance. Gen.
Ahluwalia starts off cauttously, then in no
time is swinging deep-in it. Though
Ahkluwalia’s role kicky in a litle later, he
advises West End on the matter.

MAJ. . GEN. MANJIT - SINGH
AHLUWALIA: Currently they are taking
from a French company already. -
TEHELKA: CSF-Thomson. - . ‘-
MAJ, - GEN." AHLUWALIA: See what
happens is; understantf the systems.”
Before we start procuring, you carry out
user-trials. N :

Having done the user trial, we start the
procurement process, which has start-
ed. There is alreaé:foy a linkage. If you
think anybody is dding it without: link-
ages, it is stupid to believe. The linkage
*is there, It has started, it has been trial
‘evaluatéd, found successful, it's been
booked. Now why: shouid that man put
in a new bloody spoke?

%IOIZJQ pause; : .

AJ. . AHLUWALIA: It's already
coming M. | doubst it, you can try it. Gen.
P.S.K.” Choudary is "the person. Why
should he do it, tell me?

‘l'_'or‘rjg pause, . »
AJ. GEN. AHLUWALIA: Fine, no
problem, I'm dealing with it in the
sense.... You see, | don't do this procure-
ment ex-import. That is capital work that
is done by the ADG, W.E. Once it is
introduced item, then we wili place the
indents. Then we will do it. Even if it is
imported it will be done by PPO. i it is
incﬁgenous, we will do it here. As of now,
it is still a W.E.-item, and it is not likely.
And at this juncture...let. me tell you...
Organisationally, not talking of the other

- benefits which’ you are suggesting for

that Pe’rson which he would also be get-
ting rom the other person. - .
MAJ. GEN. AHLUWALIA: You have to
create a network and let me tell you it
has got, Kou know, because the carrot
at the other -end is big for everybody.
-You need very deep pockets. Let's be
, very clear about it. '

“LT.’COL. SAYAL: No, that is under-
: st%od. That is the first step: ) )
MAJ. GEN. AHLUWALIA: So if you

want it, if you have that type of a thing
only then venture into it...because you
know why? Now understand, if you are
talkin%'a out a deal which is 20 crore
here, 60 crore there, make a profit of 6
_crore, saala; if you come to my house to
mest me on Diwali, you can't talk with-
out bringing Blue Label. If you are talk:
ing of bloody making a couple of crores
‘of ‘rupees, you can't give me bloody
- Black Label also? Isn't it?
clear about it. )

- TEHELKA: True fact, sir. * )
MAJ. GEN. AHLUWALIA: Sg; if, when
- you are talking big, you got 13 also pro-
ect big. You have had access to me
t;ecause you know ma [pointing towards
Sayal]. If under .normal circumstances
you want to-meet with me, torngrrow,
you say...you are ta.lkinlg in terms of mak-
-ing g deal of a couple of crores, you
't tell me to come and have a meal

with you at blood{ DSOI. H
MAJ. GEN. AHLUWALIA: Then you
- have to say, “Sir, if you want th: tger—
.son.want’ to meéet Gen PSK
" Choudary...” you say, “Sir, can we have
‘dMinner at Maurya Sheraton?” “ °

AJ. GEN. AHLUWALIA: (continuing) |

am talking of the;bare minimugn. |.am
o o q? Diwali,

Let’s be very

"talking about when you come f

* you come and say, “Sir, goodievéning, - MAJ

- sir.” Then you .give me bottle of

. LT. COL, SAYAL: RC...HundreHl Pipers...
MAJ. GEN. AHLUWALIA: Youknow, be

clear about it. And it's going on for don--

key's years. And you're getting blaody

_small bits. of, information oyt of that
chap. ?o‘t“f.‘.in two éirs, thre%t'years'? a”

chap waqts to know bloody up from
there, “Yaar, I've already invested you
so much. You tell me where is the file?”
Now just to fin where the file is, and
what is the position about it, it would
have cost you easily 25-30 thousand
rugees. . -
TEHELKA: Barabar. - .
MAJ. GEN. AHLUWALIA: ive been
here now two years, | must have met at
least 35-40 (feopple. Every other ff#*%"
» knows bloody Putin. Eveg/body knows
Geoné;e Fermandes, everybody knows
bloody Putin, everybody knows bloody
Saddam. Then they say “get this done
for me pow.” | . :
Wiast
that...”here is a letter. | have got agency
from bloody exports.” There are 25 bug-
gers who_are carryin% a letter from
exports. This is big. The ¢arrot at the
other end is one bloody deal. This Kaun
Banega Crorepati will go into f#'%”
bloody. .. fall laugh) So, therefore, unless

KA BER ARTWALIE s wsa. s

GEN. AHLUWALIA: And.

while, very interestingly, Gen Ci hnudaryv rang Mathew
Samuel of West End asking for some_ help in lobbying

- est, with - you.

‘we be seen with

“thing.

“law was a chairman

. into...so he got into the all-important

a massive bloody_system, there is no
place for. friends. There is no place for
singleton. It requires ver¥)deep pockets.
Nobody talks small. I'm being very hon-
est __Every single
is...hame dropping is the smallest'part of
the whole bloody transaction. And 1 also
ended up with bottles of Black Label,
Blue Label in this bloody business.
Because it is easier to come and bloos
talk; as { said, if you're going to:tal
about a couple of crores, even to say
“good evening”, ‘you have to present
that bloody “good evening” properly. %
TEHELKA: Thdt's true, very triie.
MAJ. GEN. AHLUWALIA: So it's not
small; you. are doing nothing, just to
keep theé contact alive. What do, you
achieve? Nothing. Because the time
spent is three years. And the moment
you show Certain stinginess, that indi-
cates that the-bloody joker doesn’t have
any strength ih him. The bloody contact
breaks. Please understand one thing,
there is a network in‘the . whole thing.
There are 20 different people who has
ot decision-makiny ‘power at' Stage
|wo ‘can say at that particular paint in»
time recommend or not recommend to a
particular thing.  Right? That is his

authority at that stagé. That authority is -

two years before the final deal is struck.
Okay? Today | say | am that man. | have
to say. today. whether | should say “Let
me...let us trial and evaluate this thing.”
That's all my decision-making. That |
have to say...suggest that we include this
firm for trial evaluation. Once 1 have
included it'in trial evaluation, my utility is
fost. I. have no power after-this. If it is
found fit or not, somebody else down
the ladder will take the decision. Now |
have done my work today. My work is
done, whethar y q,baueﬁsucrc,eedeq or
not succeeded. You are teling me to
write on a‘ﬁle«‘?tpcomm%d'ﬁd irm AB
included in the list” for some reasons
which | have to justify and do my work
for a deal which is...40-50-60 Crores,
now how much will you give me today to
do this? After which | have ro-role to
play. If I have written 'yes', I have written
'z/es‘...you get your 60-ctore deal...| want
it upfront todazl. U
MAJ. ‘GEN. AHLUWALIA: It's &'Rs. 60
croré deal and it's a very important.line |
have’ to write thére. !m_na is_written
today...) take that ling...do it's a 60 crore
iving you a hypothetical.fig-
ure, it's a 60 crore deal. How much will
you say that you have to take now, tell
me? Or for what amount should | put my
neck out to write that important line? So
it's not a Maurya Sheraton dinner (afl of
MAJ. GEN, AHLUWALIA: So where d
. AHL LIA; So where do
ou go? Everybody wants to aim big.
ou have to assess it. This is how itis.
go
ou where it
ep pockets
pockets.

Your organisation can do:it...then
ahead but ther ‘as | told
stands. And-when | say
that means blaody: dee‘)N
Please let's be very clear. When | say
deep pockets | mean deep pockets. .. Itis
not chicker feed; I'm telling you at dif-
ferent stages, different fellows will come

into in...and a lot of people have nui-

sance value. | may not be-able to do
an¥1hing. 1 might not be able to help you,
but 1 can ruin it. That man has got a nui-
sance value. A

Our next neeting with General Ahluwalia
takes place 10 days later. Here he accepts a
token bribe of Rs. 50,000, which is never
delivéred to him. .

AJ. . GEN. - AHLUWALIA: General
nor myseif, Dhillon, Mehta,

Ghoud:
&Y ..want to be seen there, just to

would

eat food. We go five tirnes & weéek to the -

bleody hotels in any case. Why should
r. Mathew? | don't
know from before who Is the representa-
ive 9 )
Fn j ou 'e‘seeifz?
TEHELKA: Exactly. That is a true fact.
MAJ. GEN. AHLUWALIA: It doesn’t
hap{)en like that; it's unlikely to happen.
That's what | was trying'to explain. It
doesn’t happen like that, and those peo-
ple th%eare big: players in this damn.
ey are...they are hosting parties
every day, not for them; ¥gere are 20 dif-
ferent items in the singles¥.in thig pipes.

ELKA: Oke;x.
"MAJ. GEN. AHLUWALIA: There is a

arms dealer called Mr.
‘ou must have heard of
him. Bloody everywhere he roams
around in a 500 SELMercedes. Okay?
TEHELKA: He is a retired general?
MAJ. GEN. AHLUWALIA: No, no, his
claim to fame was (fh}at,his brother-in-

of Alp...

MAJ. GEN. AHLUWALIA: ...So he

famous blood
Chaudhary.

iG
deal. So from the MIiG deal he got into
other deals. . . :

So it is a big...big game, each of these
order is ‘worth thousands. They have
people representative - sitting and just
waiting. So it is a'big groupx.l

neral Murgai: I thought

MAJ.GEN.CHOUDARY: No problem..|

person

company. m_d 10 people. walk-

fike that. Se, | am an fndian, | 4m not a
foreuqner, 1 cgh come and directly meet
ou. If | will give Mr. Gupta for a Rs. 10
akh. He will not give 10 lakh to your

boss.

AS\AtTHIIYAIML'l,nTI: Not necessarily.
ctually | will tell you. -

TEHELKA: Hmm’

SATHYAMURTRHL: It's only...we have a

very good hold on this. What yesterday |
"f'léfi telling you.

: Okay.
SA‘THYAMURTKII: Because after P.V.
Narasimha Rao, hé is the only South
Indian who is involved in this.
TEHELKA: Yeah!
SATHYAMURTHI: And this kind of
degls in India only South Indians can do.

Nobod else - can do.
TEHEL :Th%t is true! True fact. |

SATHYAMURTHI: We do in a very sys-
tematic way and we are the trusted peo-

ple. Maybe our char%e.s may be one or
two per cent higher than... o
TEHELKA: Yeah!.Yeah! H T
SATHYAMURTHI: But we don't cheat

geo'fle. ) . .
EHELKA: No, no. You know, if we can
go through one or two percent, that is
not a problem. | am telling very frankly.

‘5 lakhs for man who takes
-Yyou there, one for the party

Let’s come back a bit to our old friend R.K.
Jain of the Samata Party. For the president
of West End, Jain was busy organizing meet-
ings with Cabinet ministers-the likes of Rom
Vilas Paswan and Yashwant Sinha. Also
ministers of state like Santosh Gangwar,
Digvijay Singh and five-six Members of Par-
linment. The purpose of the exercise was to
show off his access. make money from oFga-
nizing the access and further money. by bro-
kering any deal with any of these ministers.
In fact, Jain thought, the big group that West
End was it would have.a ‘project’ for each of
the ministers. Though none of the ministers
had anything to do with West End's defence
project, we decided to und®take the exercise
if only to show the porousness of our politi-
cal svstem and their shocking susceptibiliry
0 money power.

R.K. JAIN (interry, tin%(: Hundred per
cent. With Sharad Yadav, with Yash-
want Sinha we can do 100 per cent
work. With Digvijay Singh...1am not lying,

TEHELKA: Okay, tell me. -

R.K, JAIN: They are there...

TEHMELKA: Sir, | know...I' know your

frankness | like. e o

R.K. JAIN: Then? | don't want to give

u false commitments. Whatever | say

scause | am not naming 10 people.

Shdrad Yadav is 100 per cent. Yashwant

Sinha is 100 per cent. Railways’ Digvijay

Singh is 100 per cent, Mamta Bannerjee

70 per-cent. . RS

TEHELKA: Okay.

R.K. JAIN: Ram Vilas PASWAN, again,

99 percent...

TEHELKA: Hmm. |

R.K. JAIN: One per cent, why | am not
saylm‘;/. because...one_is very close to
Ram Vilas PASWAN. The party is sepa-
rate, Now PASWAN has gone and made

another party. )

Importantly.  Finance Minister Yashwant

Sinha stands indicted by Jain hugely for his

corruption. Sinha even managed a loan of

Rs. 30 crore for one€ of Jain s Dusiness proui-

ers and just because Jain was a fellow politi-

cian. he took a paltry Ry, 50 lakh pay-off.

RAK. JAIN: George won’t take money.
He won't take money.

TEHELKA: Haan?

R.K. JAIN: George is not like...Yashwant

inha . mgngy openly..,. )
FERBER TR et
R.K. JAIN: Yashwdnt Sinha takes
money. ) N
TEH : Haan, : B
R.K..JAIN: George doesn't take money.
TEHE_LKA: His image. ..yeah, yeah. .. verY
socialist background and everything all

that? : )

.R.K.JAIN: it's nét easy to give money to
George.
TEHELKA: Hmm
R.K. JAIN: | told you that day aiso.
TEHELKA: Yeah, yeah, you told me the

But our work should have the best. -
SATHYAMURTHL: First we'll short-list it.
And _this, if you- give him the dollars
today...so_that your, your credibility wilt
increase. ’ :
TEHELKA: Okay, today I'll give the dol-

lars. h .
SATHYAMURTHL: Okay.  Security

HELKA: $31, 500 | will gi

- Wi Ve U,
;E‘;’HYAMUR‘!‘H : it’s sixgo'cl)é%k. he'll
T

befree. -
IE?E%KA: Hmm. Yeah.
AMURTHI: I'll makeé sure that he
[l u there...10-15.. .you know. You
meet Bangaru-ji. Depends on his sug-
stion, If it is necessary, wecan... -
EHELKA: Mr. Bangaru, how many
acctﬁmw fo?‘ ? One or two?
?AT YAMURTHI: He must be having
ive, Six.
TEHELKA: Five, six? ]
SATHYAMURTH: Different places.
TEHELKA: In his own and party? In his
own? Fine. In Swiss bank, there is.rio
problem, we can transfer any time. We
can have, we can have...wire fransfer.
SATHYAMURTHI: What | was planning
to do...actually | was supposed to go to
Thailand last week.

same.
R.K. JAIN: He does limited work and
he’s not very keen of having commission

and all.
TEHELKA: But Yashwant Sinha will take

money?

R.K. JAIN: Haan?

TE : Yashwant Sinha?

R.K. JAIN: Haan. Yashwant Sinha takes

money. Digvija Singh takes. monen

Sharad Yadav takes money. PASWA

takes m:ﬂer. . . :

TEHELKA: If t will give you.

R.K. JAIN: Yeah.

TEHELKA: You done an¥ big work too?

R.K. JAIN: Yeah, yeah. t loan. Just

by chance | told you that day, | got loan

from Yashwant ‘Sinha to one- of my

brothers. 30 crores, just | think it has to

be oEened now within four-five days.
LKA: Ol

TEH : Okay. ) ,

R.K. JAIN: | gat... Yashwant Sinha have

very good... terms and conditions with

one of my colleague MP.. N

TEHELKX: Okay, Okay.

R.K. JAIN: He will..: hé's a BJP'MP.

HELKA: What is his name?

R.K. JAIN: He's Rudi. :

TEHELKA: Oka¥1. Which State? Bihar?

RAK: JAIN: Yeah. There are numbers...

that's what |... you know...

TEHELKA: Sir, in 30 crores slot how

much you paid? . - oo

R.K. JAIN: Haan? -

TEHELKA: To Yashwant Sinha?

RK. JAIN: What this... ' getting .this

know... this was my own group. One of

‘r% comfany having a joint collaboration
h an {talian company.

TEHELKA: Okay, Okay.

R.K. JAIN: Sorry Korean company. The

plant is in Surat. All the machinery was

iven by the piant people.
%EHEI](A: Prmmm.
R.K. JAIN: And here we do the opera-
tions. We have expanded on it. That is
whg, whatever we had to give... our MP
wa Iﬂeﬂ:!.'dl e ume. STl pald i 00
lakhs of rupees.
TEHELKA: Yashwant Sinha?

‘R.K. JAIN: Because it was my own

work, not.a party man.

R.K. JAIN: Why do you... you are not
concerned. You see Yashwant Sinha is
not & . honest ° man
Tﬁl({E : Haan. . : )
R.K. JAIN: He takes mioney from every-
bod .
TEI-&LKA Okay. )

R.K. JAIN: Everybody in the sense
whom... with whom he has a little rap-
port... rapport with, he'll take
morniey. s‘ hot only thateln George Fer-
nandes... therd aré certain difficilit offi-
cers and difficult ministers are there.
TEHELKA: Okay. -

R.K. JAIN: There

fou cannot approach
him. But Ranjah

ttachariee can be...

ailand: Bangaru aide

EMELKA: Okay, okay.

EA. AMUR#‘I: D{xring that time |
was m&&sed to do that. .
TEHELKA Okag{(. N .
Now, to go back in time and bring you
up to date about where West Efid

had reached with some of
channiels it had opened. Major General
Murgat (Rétd.) had suddenly assumed a
ve%key rol® as far as End was
coricamed. He was going to be the per-
son to introduce West End to Jaya Jait-

ly, Major General Choudary of' Weapons'
aynd ¢ ént, and L.M. Mehta, the
additiond! defence secretary. Gen. Mur-

gai himself was being motivited at suffi-
cnen})mtervgls ‘with sums.of aroung Rs.
25,000 and ‘tHe promise of fulure
employiment with West End at & doflar
salary. Here Gen. Murgai is_introducifg
West End - t6 * Sure) Sulekha,” an
industrialist from Kanpur, who. has
strong links with the Defense Mifiistry.
Sulekha has been supplying clothjf %
the Indian Army for the-last Oyeafs%nd
is close to Jaya Jaitly, president of the
Samata Pa '

e
MAJ.GEN. IXURGAI’: Come, | am bring-

ing together two industrialists...
ejeg all laugh dnd sugake hands]

Y/

can be approached by 15 people.
TEHELK%EHmmm: viee gp

R.K. JAIN: But... you see fike Yashwant
‘Sinha also c¢an be approach‘edvby differ-

at..

TEHELKA: People,

R.K. JAIN: You should always need a
man who is... because this will heip you
in the long run. tomorrow after three
months you are well into the job; you
have already paid money for the first job.
Your' secon i
Because your channel is already opened
through §omebod¥. But you have got
yoyr one job done through Bangaru Lax-’
men Next time you have another job
then Yashwant Sinha will 'say, “My foot,
bastard! Every time he goes'to Bangaru
Laxman what do | do? 1 am not getting
my share.” So it is alway# better to have

a connaction where you know that the -

minister...the man who is doing the job is
etting the money.

: Okay. D .
R.K. JAIN: ... Tan lakhs to five lakhs.
TEHELKA: Yeahb%eah.
R.K. JAIN: Fivetakhs for a man who will
take you there.
KA: Yeah. = .

K. JAIN: And one lakh give for the
?a . That's what we talked about. But
or Yashwant Sinha if we clinch, it will be
little mare. Then itis better. .
B e e if yoi h

K s antds upon... if you have
big work; if you have a small x;o'rk, 1
should be alf right. Let it go at that.

TEHELKA: No, this is not a big work. )

This is small work.

R.K, JAIN: Then let it 7go there.
TEHELKA: Ten lakhs?

R.K. JAIN: [nods his head]

TEH : Plus five lakhs. to that MP.
Which MP? .
R.K. JAIN: Rudi. )
TEHELKA: Okay, done. In his home?
R.K. JAIN: Now,

Ha? Now the (qb’f tirre v tthod.
-TEHELKA [interrupting]: Can we %2 with
money inside his ministry? There's
checkma...
JAIN: He won't discuss about the
money and all that in front of you. The
m n%{wm be %iven seg’arat_ew.
TEHELKA: To that MP?

£

to beE{iven to Yishwant Sinha. -
Hi : | haan.
JAIN: The money given to Yashwant
Sinha, you will come to.know gbout at
the meeting. Now if Yashwant Sitha will
happily listeh to your talk, offer ypu tea
and".coffee -and talk about support}
you... when you come out from meetin
im you know that.
JAI {continugng%:
hayi én alv him the money te-the
T ¢ Yeah, yeah.

...then naturally. § will
MP.

MAJ. S.J. SINGH: in the dgfence. | am
talking in the defence. It wiipa Russian
missile. Bomb. This is laser-guided
bomb. It was not being cleared and...
TEHELKA: Due to what? -

AJ. S.J. SINGH: Various reasons..

irstly, out of six tests, it was only one
test which was successful. Five test
failures. Then the bureaucracy was not
at all in favour of it. They wers totally
against it inspite of pressure from'some
angles. So these were the various rea-
sons and there were options available
to them from French people, from Ger-
many, but, ultimately, we were able to
push it through as for the Russian...and
now it is a repeat order. L
TEHELKA: This is called smart ammu-
nition something? .

AJ. 8.J. SINGH: Yeah.
TEHELKA: Same thin}gwf’" o
MAJ. S.J. SINGH: Krasnopol is the
name of te bomb.. .
T%IELKA: The bomb will go around 14
akhs. -
MAJ. S.J. SINGH: The total deal was of
5,000. it was 150 crores. Now the fresh

JJ sorder will be again,  There aré lot of
‘ mmyns-. Lbut'#gain bacgpse of my
nok. .becatise this is"beifig used by

the artillery

. TEMELKA: This will be used for the
. Bofors.
au J. SINGH: V.

VA, { 8 gunis...so it
depends on the -charg¥ now...Anothat
| bomb which is being propagated.
mﬂ. : Same American cothpany?
+MAJ. §J. SINGH: No, no, "one’is
Krasnopol...is Russian. The - other is
from . South. Africa. Now the South

| Africans are pushing it. throi
agent. So my job is not only 1o block
that, but to see that the repeat order-is
iven. Now we are watting for the terms
0 be cleared as to wh if ' do this
job how much will you give me. i that
] understanding takes place we wili Clear
this project. If it doesn’t take place,
someone eise will take It. itis 38 simple
as that...mathematics s very simple.

S.J. Singh: T belong fo the
same place as Indira, Feroze

.
Major Singh reveals his relationship with
Sahni, boasts of Mis relationship with a
friend wha is ‘the head of the set up’ today. -
He boasts abowt how he got a (k% ce job
cleared bj his “riend in three days. . °
MAJ. S.J. SINGH: May | tell you some-
thing. | am not employée of Mr. Sahni.
Number 1."Number 2, we:'met to be
associate of each other. ‘ .
TEHELKA: In the ammuynition busi-

ness? ‘

MAJ. S.J. SINGH: Yeah, from project
1o project. And | was introduced to him
by a common friend. | had gone to my
common friend for a diitferent job and
dn the.due course of the coriversation,
he found out my connagtions: in the

. ministry.

He mentioned something and 1 sdid,
“| can help you out if you want," without
knowing what he was meaning. imme-
diately he jumped on the conclusion
and he rung up Sahni...friend of mine. |

would like you to meet anyway. MAJ.
S BINGR S0 mEPs fbw e gt
into...and he said, “This is my job to be
done”.and he had tried this through
yeople and he was unable to get
done.
: Which one? The smart
ammunition? . '
MAJ. 8.J. SINGH: Now the particular
bureaucrat he wanted to reach, he

could net reach. He tried his best and
tho: dople were kicked out from
there. Now this bureaucrat is an old

\f/r&ﬁnq of mirlt?1 for last 1f Sthyeari. Okay?
0 i$ now the hedd of the set-up.
TEH&KAHe is the Defence Secre-

, §.d, SINGH: Anyway.
TENELKA: tis gxcellont! . «
MAJ. S.J. SINGH: Ok?. Now He is a
friend of minte. So | said, okay. | asked
him, “This is the job to'be done. Can

do it?"-So he laughed and said,

Now the bastard_ has caught hold of

"He used this word, I said, “Why are
you calfing:..?” He said he tried his best
and | have kicked out everyone. | have

not afflowed-an to talk to me, So !
said,- “Forget about it. What you have .
done, xgu’ ¢ll me now. This is the jbb
that is 1o be done.” i

MAJ. %&' ;Nrg'vy: | belong to & piace |
: C?T%L aﬁﬂRY:indira Gandhi's... - |

J, S.J. SINGH: Indira Gandhi, Rajiv
Gandhi...Now Indira Gandhi's late hus-
pand Fgroze Gandhi, | worked with him

EHELKA: Okay, that's excellent.
MAJ. §.J. SINGH: Okay. Indira’ Gand-
hi's family we knew inside out and thay
knew us inside out. We are ex-zamin-
dars of that place. We don't belongto a
gaeﬂn s family, Okay? - :

ELKA: B&ca! feudal landlords.
MAJ. S.J. GH. My educational
backgroung is...] .am M.A. in English
from - Lucknow University and also
M.Sc. in Military Science from Staff

College of... .
T I'-?EiKA‘ You are from NDA or from

MAJ. S.J. SINGH: No | am a direct
entry, 1 am from the NCC.

.'S.J. SINGH: From Rae Bareilly
we shifted to Defhi in 1960. We rhigrat-
ed to Delhi from that time. | have...l was
in Services, in Army. In ‘71 war, |
became war casualty and was boarded
out on medical grounds: with B0, per
cent disabiffty.” o .

But no.one can see | had any disabil-
ity. | was injured twice in ‘65 war and
‘71 war and | was awarded... recom- -
ménded for MVC. )

L T e

n. 8o bal i , | got...barf
ggtmldon't write ty am‘ran anything.
| don't talk about My ary Bickrot
gecguse that is a:ng%aﬁve point to de.

ecause then you IS8 your access to
friends. . s Co
Major Singh also gives.an example of how
he’s manipulating the Price egon’ation
Cormmittee in a deal worth Rs. 480 crore.
Each one of the 6-7 committee members
will get cbour .25 per cent each.

Jor trials.
Major

if you can spare the car...

General Choudary issued a trial evaluation

other.’

job ‘will go very slowly.

| have to tell him now, e

JAIN: Thé‘ﬁ‘ia::?‘wm'bé” Vg o tHa MP

TE?IELKA: Yeah, yeah, yeah, but they don't
know that one. They given this kind of...
MEHTA: You can make public relation, sales pro-
motion; there can be so many designation.’
TEHELKA: No problem.
[Mehta takes his gold chain gift.]
[The camera frame moves to C M Mehta and General
Murgai. Tehelka gives Murgai a box having gold chain
to present it to Mehta. |
MEHTA: No, no, no, no, nahin, nahin.
MAJ.GEN. MURGAI: Sir, this is nothing. .
MEHTA: What shall | do with? This.
MAJ.GEN. MURGAI: Sir, there is nothing sir.
Murgai places the box under the table.]

EHTA: Please, no. . .
Mehta picks 'WJ the box| L
MAJ.GEN. MURGAI: Should we leave? Sir, this

g..

MEHTA: Please keep this back.

Q_Camera shift to give the full view of the st
EHELKA: No, no, please.

MEHTA: No, no, it is okay.

T%‘IELKA: Nothing, sir.

MEMTA: Nahin, nahin this is not good.

ting room. |

.
The above way the first meeting with Mehta. Mean-

with a CVC official who was examining a corruption
case against him. In this last meeting with Choudary,
he relents more or less. West End tells him he will get
Rupees five or six lakh initially.

MAJ.GEN.CHOUDARY: One thing you shouid
be clear in your mind. As | explained to you fast
time, this is not a one-man show. : )
TEHELKA: Yes sir. That | know very well sir...

MAJ.GEN.CHOUDARY: So what you must do is,.

start contacting somebody from the ministry. You
might be having contacts there in his office. From
then you starf pushing things to us. You see
results in even If you are not there. Works are
very.... See if you have already contacted the min-
ister There is no need .
.. TEHELKA: No need right? That... that is whatl am
asking, that is what I"am asking. Already | have
" met Jay‘sa Jaitly 'and Rajiv Goba.
MAJ.G .
there, Then... then there is no need for you to go
elsewhere. . - ; .
TEHELKA: There is no need. Right? This | want
to... | want to know from you, sir.

“ple. I

N.CHOUDARY: See if you are aiready

‘MAJ.GEN. CHOUDARY: They are the main peo-
) : - ‘ © .. Lanspare,it ghep Itan,..go and meet, ..

_:?%proach you and say this is the response.
HELKA: Okay... all right. There is no problem. |.
have already given the message today. They can
send five or six. Okay Sir, | am moving.

TEHELKA: He should. letter will issue...General
Choudhury. | met Gen Choudhury day before
esterdag/. o
AJ. GEN. MURGAL: Okay.

today or tomorrow to. L M Mehta ?

T: Willit ?‘o

MAJ. GEN. MURGAI: I'll talk to him. Sit down.
TEHELKA: Al right. _

MAJ. GEN. MURGAI: What is L M Mehta’s office
number? .

TEHELKA: | don’t know.

MAJ GEN MURGAL: End of the ..., he’s having ... .
TEHELKA: Oka‘.

MAJ, GEN. MURGAL: Then I'll fix

up.
. TEHELKA: When you need the car’.?

MAJ. GEN. MURGAL: Car?

TEHELKA: For ore hour?

MAJ GEN MURGAI: No, how are you.... You tell
me how are you placed? '
TEHELKA: t...that is...you need not worry.
After one howr You heed the car? )
MAJ. GEN, MURGAL: | thought that if you ... if you

i

. [He picks up the briefcase and-prepares to leave.]
MAJO 8

R GENERAL MURGAI: Okay, all right.
T walks.out, Murgai accompanies him|

TEHELKA: Sir, please tell Mr...L. M. Mehta that

clear that financial equation. Tell Mr Mehta that

clear the financial equation.

MAJ. GEN. MURGAI: The what?.

TEHELKA: That we will like that... like this. That

financial equation. If he will write that letter, we

will give like that.

MAJ. GEN. MURGAI: Hmm!

IAE':IELKA: We will give like that.. finally...to Mr
ehta. y

MAJ. GEN. MURGAL: No, | will tell him that this

much we will give you. .

Additional Secretary L.M. Mehta issued a letter to
Major General Choudhary in the second week of
January. He asked for Rs 2 lakh in cash. He was paid
Rs 50,000 by Major General Murgai as advance in
his office and the rest was promised upon receipt of
the letter. Of course, we just planned to collect the let-
ter and run.

You see we couldn’t go any further. We couldn’t
produce hand-held thermal careras and submit them

order in the third week of January. It was a 26-page
order. General Murgai collected it for us. Mehta’s

dilemma was that he couldn’t o
letter just for West End and h
companies. He did that.

anize an evaluation
to include 3-4 more

.
In the meantime around January 10 our cover had
dlréady blown with Samta Party treasurer R.K. Jain

and BJP President Bangaru Laxman Both had been -

expecting money and were desperately looking for
West End represgntatives. We kept our fingers

cover remained with
ore time.

crossed so that
Murgai for some

eneral

But it was not to be. We delayed by 24 hours our

visit to General Murgai to collect the letter. Our cover

blew. For three days we tried to ambush General
Murgai at his home. On each of those ocassions the
cars of Surendra Singh and General Choudhary were
parked outside. The trio have been in constant con-

sultation to plan a damage limitation exercise.

It’s been nearly two months since the letter was -

issued. We are told they have doctored the files. We
hope they haven’t been able to doctore the despatch

dates.

Anyways, if the Military Intelligence interrogates

the office staff of General Choudhary they shall 'Imve'

the truth.

.,
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| complete with defections and -
batijts

| wards they had nursed

1| had been

=

Congr
to focus
of saffir
By StaHID Fay -

New Dethi, March 13: Saffroni-

sation of education and institu-
tions under the present BIP-led

will be highl
political resolutivis to bé-adopted
at the Congréss plenary sched-
uled to be held i Bangalore on
‘March 17and 18, - . ..
There was 2 movg by a section
of party leaders to Ligve.a sspa-
rate resolution on saffromisation.
A note was sent to party. presj-
dent Sonia Gandhi apprising her
of what was happening in- ‘the
academic sphere and seeking her
support for a separate resolution
“in:view of the-dangerouws long-
term implications of the cmmu-
nalisation of 'school anid ¢oHege
textbooks and institutions such as

But the party high coimdnd
felt that the issue coutd be Hi¢lad-
ed in the political resolutien as
 part of the overall - Hisddtva

agenda being-pursued by the:pre-
sent government. o

Congress- sources said the saf-
fronisation ‘of education;, and
institutions, the Gujarat govern-
ment’s decision to alfow! state
govéinment employees’ 10 take
part in RSS activithes hd Pritrie
Minister Atal Behari Vajpalye
statement terming the demoljtion
of Babri Masjid 4s the ipatifes

for;p a‘ large part of me 'poﬁf&i(‘;al
Parties get
ready for .

‘B PAMELA D'MELLO
Panajt, March 13: ‘Upc(nﬁin&

- clogtions to Goa’s sapital oivs:
civic body hag polarised the
1y ingg&JPgawqgmmw ametit and -
Congress-NGPtombine in
ari unofficial trial of strexgth.
Though 1io political parties
o o B B
polls, the battlelines are drawn
- alolig logse political lines,

incorporations after the
arecounted.. . . o G
* "This time round tle polls for
thie Panaji Municipal Council
is all the more kéen with the
‘anneuncement of a full BJP«. -
backed faﬁet o '
" With 47,000 voters, the
Council’s jurisdictions covers .
two. Assembly constituencies
~ Panaji proper represente¢d
by BJP CM Manohar Parrikar
and its neighbouring Taléigao
‘fepresented by CongrésaMy.
Somniath Zuarkar. :
The seriousness with which
e ruling BJP iy viewing this
poll became apparent When:
the admiristration reorgargised
18 wards, after ¢ voting Het
finalised and the poll
process was officially under-

way. : Lol
Some key sitting councilors
cried foul when they foumf the

‘how reservdd far waren, fore
ing thern to fied theit wivhe

Forget

;
¢
£

By Our CORRESPONDENTE;

| New Délhi, Murch 13:-Nobel

‘laureate. Prof. Norman Beriaug,
the man who is consideréd to be

Monday advised Indian farmers

Prof. Borlaug, who is touring
should take advantage -of the
-opening up of global matkets. To
reap its benefits, he said that
“farmers should move away from
“traditional wheat and rice crops
as it would be difficult for them
to make a break in the interna-
tional market as most ‘of the
wheat exporting countries give
huge subsidies to the grain. He
said India’s basmati rice also has
a limited international market.

Bihar tast week laid stress on the
cultivation - of Quality Protein
Maize. QPM has been identified
as one of the most fmportant
ingredient of India’s mission to
eliminate hunger and malnutri-
tion from the country by 2007.
He 'said diversion of part of the
Indian wheat and rice area té
maize would fetch better prices

and nutrition for the Indian farm-

NDA goveriment at the Centre:
ed in detdil in thé

the ICSSR, ICHR and ICPR.”.

tien of national sentimesnt wWiuld -

|.elections:

father of green feévolution, on

to divert atterftion towards lucra-,
| tive crops. ‘

‘India, said that Indian farmers.

Prof. Borlaug, who travelled in -

s plenary
on policy
nisation

resofution. R .

Meanwhile, the Congress will,
for the first time, adopt a separate
resolution on agriculture in view

.of the difficulties faced by the
farming community = due ‘to
“reduction -in subsidy, lifting of
restrictions on imports gnd inade-
quate rise in the minimum sup-
« port price of foodgrain and insuf-
ficient procurement by the Food
Corporatien of India.”
While Mr Arjun Singh is the
head of the committee that would
* draft the political .resolution, Dr
Manmohan Singh. Mr Natwar
Singh and Dr Balram Jhakhar
will respectively head the teams
for drafting resolutiuons on eco-
nomic affairs, foreign affairs and
plight of farmers, respectively.

Besides the communalisation
of education and institutions, the
political resolution would also
focus on Kashmir and Constitu-
tion review, besides a hast of

_ other issues. The political resolu:
.tion may also clear the way for
.the patty to form a coalition gov-
emment at the Centre. .
- The resolution on foreign poli-
cy would “ekpress concern over
the government destroying
hational  cdnsensus on foreign
policy, ‘éspecially- that-on West
Asia” " -

A senior leader said the resolu-
tiott would undertine that “unipo-
latity is transitory, and criticise
the ,govemment for putting all the

“eggs ir one basket.” .- -

“Goa Congress
files defection

cases aganst
4 ex-MLAS
By OUR CORRESPONDENT

" Pandji, March 13: With the

Congrsocs’ filing dofootion poti
tions ‘against four of its. former
““MLAs on -Monday, the tally of
- Goan legislators facing potential
disqualification rises to 15 in the
~40-member House. .
In less than two years since the

. Jum 19989 elections, the state has

seeti’ three- govérnments in a
- politieal - - chessboard; ~ where
561ty ahd Tvory hive merged to
grey.
sevérr months after they
"left their patent party, the Con-
. gress on Monday filed defection
petitions aginst four of a five
thember group that split to join
the BIP. Six other MLAs who
left the Congress in October arid -
-~ November to join the BIP gov-
ernment now in power, also face -
disqualification petitions filed by
Natiotifist- Congress  Party
leader Wilfred de Souza. _
. “The ball is now in Speaker
Prat@p Singh Rane's court,” Dr
de Sowuza said. Goa’s 1999
Assembly verdict was a land-
slide for the Congress, who got a
¢lear majority of 21 to the BJP’s .
ten but its government did not
even last oyt the year. ’
Congress chief minister Luiz-
“inho Faleiro’s strategy of coopt-
ing smaller regional parties to -
buttress his- strength -against '
other ~ Congress stalwarts,
"':g:wﬂedmn 11 hember split in
" November 1999.

RO

. wheat, rice,
move to maize:
Borlaug to India

ers. Maize has increasing
denmand from food and feed
industries. g

The agriculture scientist, who is
in India to gbpularise QPM, sug-
gested that soybean-maize could
be good. combination for- the
Indo-Gangetic belt which these
days resort’ to just rice-wheat
rotation. He had been to Bihar
along with” agriculture minister
Nitish Kumar to popularise QPM
vatieties during the rabi season.

He said QPM can be.succesful-
ly grown in most parts of the
country during kharif. rabi and
zaid season and agronomic prac-
tices of QPM are same as maize.

Prof. Borlang said while India
had made significant progress in
terms of achieving some- food
security, a lot was needed to be
done. He praised Indian scien-
tists and .farmers for turning the
food searcity in the country to
surpluses. “It is better to deal
with surpluses rather than scarci-
ty,” he-said.

. Prof. Borlaug said the world
can not be complacent towards
feeding an ever increasing popu-
lation. “In 1940s, the population
of the world was only 1.6 billion
and last year it crossed the six
billion mark,” he said.
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THE FORMAL INKING of the deal for 310 T-90
tanks with Russia concludes the extended rounds
of negotiation which, at one time, seemed in
danger of getting bogged down in a disagreement
over pricing. What the Defence Minister had de-
scribed as only ‘a small matter of price” created
a number of hiccups in finalising the transaction
and it wasn't until Mr. George Fernandes’ visit to
Moscow in June last year that hopes were revived
about breaking the deadlock. Complete technol-
ogy transfer has been acquired for this third gen-
eration main battle tank (MBT) under the terms
of the deal, which is estimated to cost a stagger-
ing $ 650 million and under which about two-
thirds of the T-90s acquired would be assembled
under licenice at the Heavy Vehicles Factory, Ava-
di. The acquisition, which will considerably en-
hance India’'s offensive capability, is closely
related to Pakistan's decision to acquire the T-80
UD from Ukraine.

The 1-90 is considerably more expensive
that the 1-72, which India already possesses, but
is packed with features such as thermal imaging
sighting and a laser warning system. Although
upgraded T-72s were reportedly also on offer, In-
dia's decision to plump for the much more ex-
pensive T-90s was influenced by the perceived
need of countering the recent Pakistani acquisi-
tion, on the one hand, and of possessing an MBT
which will effectively serve India’s battle needs
for at least the next two decades. The fact that it
will become necessary to phase out the ageing
fleet of Vijayantas and the T-55s in a few years
from now was another compulsion for upgrada-
tion and replacement. It is now certain that the
T-90 is being looked upon as the fighting nucleus
of India’s armoured regiments. What this means
for the Arjun project will deserve to be closely
watched. The Defence Minister has repeatedly
claimed that the 7-90 acquisition is not intended
at crippling tlie Arjun but only complementing it,

THE T-90 TANK DEAL

0
Y% pe
thereby obliquely suggesting that the Rus¥ian
deal is being effected only to tide over the delay
in the materialisation of the country’s indigenous™
MBT. Although indents have been placed by the
Army for 124 Arjun tanks, fears or doubts con-

nected to the manufacture could well have influ-
enced the decision to V"’ towards oMdtside

sources. A ‘
TORRARYE

This T-90 deal is a huge one\in financial
terms but it is particularly importarlf for Russia,
where the military-industrial establishment is
limping because of the lack of orders from its
own armed forces — a result of the end of the
Cold War and the breakup of the Soviet Union.
The Russians are engaged in actively pursuing
arms exports to countries in Asia and Africa; oth-
er deals with India are in the pipeline, including
that for SU-30 multi-role fighters, TU-22 strategic
bombers, Smerch artillery and the aircraft carrier
Admiral Gorshkov (a replacement for the retired
INS Vikrant). At another level, the very size of the
T-90 deal and other proposed acquisitions from
Russia undermine the view that becoming a nu-
clear power will reduce the Indian military’s re-
quirements for conventional arms. The theory |
that nuclearisation will result in a natural cut in
military budgets is actively canvassed by mem-
bers of the strategic/defence establishment in
both India and Pakistan, the implication being
that the saving on military expenditure could be
channelled into more productive uses. However,
there is no evidence of this having ever taken
place. The T-90 acquisition, which was preceded
by Pakistan’s T-80 UD purchase, is one more il-
lustration that the race for conventional arms will
carry on regardless of developments on the nu-
clear front. The race for nuclear arms and the
race for conventional arms arg different races but
those who run the first inyafiably end up running -
the second as well.

g HINDU
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/ \ Hindujas case
on Feb. 26

b”‘% crores Therefore, the CBI's ap-

hearmg7

By J. Venkatesan

NEW DELHI, FEB. 14. The three
Hinduja brothers, accused in the
Rs. 64-crore Bofors payoffs case,
wanting to go abroad to look after
their business interests, have to
wait till February 26 as their appli-
cations seeking permission to
leave the country have been ad-
journed by the Delhi High Court.

Mr. Justice A. K. Agarwal after
hearing arguments from Mr. Ra-
jinder Singh and Mr. Kapil Sibal,
counsel for the Hindujas, posted
the case to February 26.

Mr. Singh said the three broth-
ers — Mr. G.P. Hinduja, Mr. S.P.
Hinduja and Mr. P.P. Hinduja —
voluntarily came to India and had
fully cooperated with the investi-
gation though the chargesheet
did not list any offence. Mr. G.P.
and Mr. S.P. Hinduja were the
third richest persons in the UK.
and their global business interests
ran into billions of dollars.

Mr. Singh said the brothers had
deep roots in India where they
had invested over Rs. 10,000

7

prehension that they would not
come back to face trial was not
well-founded, and there was no
justification to deny them permis-
sion to leave the country.

On the CBI's opposition to the
Hindujas' plea, counsel said it
was nothing but harassment. He
pointed out that the CBI had not
stated anything about the present
apprehensions and it related only
to future apprehensions. What
had been stated was that if the
trial went against the three broth-
ers they might not return.

The revision petitions were fil-
ed by the Hinduja brothers to set
aside the trial court order denying
them permission to go abroad.

In its reply, the CBI said the fact
that the three brothers appeared
in court on January 19 was no
guarantee that they would not
again elude the due process of law
once they were allowed to leaye”
the country, particularly
they feel the proceedings wére go-
ing against them.

THE HINCU
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310 T-90s TO ENHANCE FIREPOWER IN DESERT

India,

By Atul Aneja Hg/‘
NEW DELHI, FEB. 15. India today
signed a major tank deal with
Russia, which will appreciably en-
hance its offensive punch in the
deserts.

The deal for 310 T-90 tanks was
signed today in the presence of
the visiting Russian Deputy Prime
Minister, Mr. llya Klebanov, and
the Defence Minister, Mr. George
Fernandes. It also caters to the
manufacture of these tanks, in-
cluding its key weapons, in India,
under a Russian licence.

According to an official state-

ment, 124 T-90s would be trans-
ferred off-the-shelf and the

remaining 186 assembled in In-
dia. Mr. Fernandes, who held
Klebanov, de-

talks with Mr.

l

scribed 'tfie Jcontract as “signifi-
cant”’, addirjg ‘‘we want to make

many more Jof these {anks in In-
dia.” - A ce
The tank’ deal, estimated at

$650 million, has been signed in
the backdrop of India’s doctrinal
preference to fight its future wars
in the deserts rather than the
mountains of Kashmir or the riv-
erine terrain of Punjab. Deserts,
according to military strategists,
offer the opportunity of launching
rapid thrusts by mechanised co-
lumns, spearheaded by tanks. Of-
fensive sweeps, in turn, facilitate
the subjection of key command
and control centres as well as
strategic roads.

In case of a war with Pakistan,
the Army is likely to quickly ad-
vance in the Thar desert area to-

wards the communication nodes
around Rahimyar Khan.

Rapid military thrusts in the de-

2ol@rts are preferred on twa other

counts. First, international pres-
sure is likely to shorten the dura-
tion of a future Indo-Pak
engagement. This pressure is like-
ly to be unprecedented as both
countries have developed nuclear
weapons, a matter of internation-
al concern. Armoured thrusts can
achieve decisive military gains in
a short- duration conventional
conflict. Besides, desert warfare
also better integrates the use of
the IAF for ground attacks.

With a 1,100 horsepower en-
gine, the T-90s will also offset the
around 300 T-80UD tanks, ac-
quired by Pakistan from Ukraine.

Russia seal tank deal

The selection of the T-90, as the
core of Indian’s armoured fleet in
the coming decades, has been dri-
ven by key technical considera-
tions as well. Military planners
have been looking for tanks which
can fire missiles, especially while
on the move. Not surprisingly, the
T-90 has “reflecks” guided mis-
siles with a five-km reach. The
main gun, which can rapidly fire
125 mm. shells on account of au-
tomatic loading mechanism, fur-
ther enhances its punch. Besides,
the tank’s laser-guided missiles
can pietce the armour of most
contemporary tanks.

Arjun marginalised?

With the T-90 as the nucleus,
Indian armoured columns in the
future will also include modern-
ised T-72s -and the Arjun Main
Battle Tanks. Analysts critical of
the deal, however, say such large
inductions of T-90s would mean
the indigenously-built Arjun, at

least in the near future, has been A
marginalised. /

During their talks this morning,
the two leaders discussed the oth- ‘
er military hardware deals in the |
pipeline. The negotiations for the |
TU-22 strategic bombers, which
can also fire cruise missiles, apart !
from delivering nuclear weapons,
are at an advanced stage. The next
round of high-level defence talks
are expected next month when
the Indo-Russian joint military
and technical commission con-
venes in St. Petersburg.

PM for Russia in Sept.

At a press conference later, Mr.
Klebanov said the Prime Minister,
Mr. Atal Behari Vajpayee, was ex-
pected to visit Russia in Septem-
ber-October. The process
drafting agreements, likel
finalised during the yi
ready under way.

Indo-Russlan officlals exchanging documents after sighing a major defence deal for purchase of 310
T-90 MBTs In the presence of the Defence Minister, Mr. George Femandes, and the Russian Deputy
Prime Minister, Mr. lllya Klebanov, in New Delhi on Thursday. — PT!
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~ The Hinduja Affair

ONDON: The row over the

Hinduja family’s alleged influ-
ence on the course of British public
life may be described in several
neat sets of contraries — exaggerat-
ed nonsense vs evangelical comeup-
pance; hysterical witch-hunt vs high
justice delayed-but-not-denied, and
so on. But, there are no contrary
views to the single unalterable truth
that much of this would not have
mattered and certainly, would not
have mattered in the same way, if it
were not 2001, just months before
an expected British general elec-
tion. A controversy over rich for-
eigners allegedly buying up British
morals and into the bargain, obtain-
ing passports and a place for a
favoured Asian friend in govern-
ment has particular resonance at a
time when the British people are
expected soon to commune with
their souls and the ballot box.

Even so, like other political scan-
dals, this too will pass. What is likely
to last much longer than the out-
raged morality of the British
tabloids and the public bloodletting
of various factions within the
governing Labour party is the
newly-chastened manners of
Britain’s huge Indian community.
Some would say this is no bad thing
and it had to happen; that the
much-publicised successes of the
numerous, conspicuously rich
Jay Gatsbys within Britain’s one-
million strong Indian community
were riding for a fall.

For some years, Britain’s Indians
have been in the news, basking
mostly in a series of sunshine stories
about unimaginable wealth, sterling
endeavour, sheer grit and old-fash-
joned family values. Much of this
came about because the Indians,
unlike British Jewry, actively court-
ed a higher profile, seeming to revel
in their place in that supremely vul-
gar national ritual, the annual Rich
List and showy parties with the
great and the good of the land. As in
Scott Fitzgerald’s sublime savaging
of the American dream, The Great
Gatsby, they had houses “blazing
with light a tale of the west subtly
unadaptable to the eastern life”,
with its excesses and glamour, its
conspicuous consumption and the
mysterious young millionaire Jay
Gatsby's belief “in the green light,
the orgiastic future that year by
year recedes before us.”

Photographs of the British prime
minister’s wife in an ornate salwaar-
kameez gifted and chosen by the
daughter of Srichand Hinduja at
their annual Diwali crush must

By RASHMEE Z AHMED

surely rank alongside one of the
great PR mistakes of all time. It was
superb as a cameo shot of the ex-
tent of their influence, but it also ex-
cited jealous comment, and empha-
sised their foreign-ness to a people
who value understatement above
all. Prime minister Tony Blair may
once have prophesied great things
for an exaggeratedly Cool Britan-
nia, but Britain essentially remains
a nation of minimisers.

The native boastfulness of the In-
dian import was often crude, per-
haps as Lord Bhikhu Parekh told
this paper with distaste, “an error
routinely made by the first genera-
tion of rich people”, but it made for
easy targets. It was supplemented
by an accidental, extended season
of mellow fruitfulness for anything
to do with India. During the season
of the India hype, the, mood music
was all about the coming infotech
superpower and its awesome com-
puter literacy, with desirable over-

IN BRIEF

« The Hinduja affair has got
particular attention since
slections are likely soon in
Britain

e Indians in the UK have
actively courted a high
profile

e The scandal might push
indians back into their shell

tones of the exotic orient and its
bindis, mehndi, sari-tops and jewel-
bright zari cushions. Bollywood
came to mainstream Britain’s atten-
tion with Dil Se’s dizzying climb to
the top of the film charts. Suddenly,
Hindi movies were being pre-
miered in London’s sniffy West
End. India was hip and its scores of
well-connected podgy millionaires
only the most visible proof of its
mystical strengths.

That was then. Now, the Hinduja
affair has given rise to a new, uglier,
stereotype, that of the rich corrupt
Indian, with a native innocence of
governable standards in public life
and a mulish unwillingness to up-
hold them in a law-abiding land.
Unsurprisingly, much of the Indian
community begs to disagree, though
sotto voce, a cultural conundrum
explained by the recently-ennobled
Lord Adam Patel of Blackburn:
“What’s wrong with any of this? I
represent the minority community.
I take up immigration cases, pass-

\\ (/}reat Gatsby Comes to Life
) ) V/

port cases for any of our people, 1
ask politicians about them. If any-
one has a problem with this, it may
be because they're British and
we are not”.

Even so, the Hinduja family is
now seen as the subcontinent’s an-
swer to that thorn in the flesh of the
British establishment, Mohammed
al Fayed, Egyptian owner of the up-
market London store, Harrods and
several other bits of British history;
desperate for naturalisation as a
British subject. It is Mr al Fayed’s
histrionics, more than anyone else’s,
that might prompt the question,
“Who is this Gatsby anyhow? Some
big bootlegger?”

The new stereotype and Murmurs
of the Indian connection at the
highest reaches of British govern-
ment will have two immediate, if
only medium-term consequences
for the community. It will force it
into a diffidence it only recently and
somewhat recklessly shook off. It
will also prompt the British estab-
lishment to be wary about publicly
embracing Asian talent and enter-
prise. A question mark looms over
British Asian political self-determi-
nation as well, now that its only
ministerial representative, Keith
Vaz, is seen by, say, The Times, Lon-
don as “an unusual minister an am-
bassador to a section of society, An-
glo-Asians, (though) the ministerial
code does not allow a minister of
state to double up (in this way)”. Mr
Vaz, of course, has never denied his
proximity to the Hindujas and his
efforts in support of their passport
applications, though he explains this
by stressing an indisputable truth —
his status as one of Britain's few
prominent Asian politicians and his
role as a conduit between ethnic
community and establishment.

This cultural confusion could per-
haps explain the British Indian
community’s bewilderment over
the Hinduja affair. After all, might
the network created by rich Asian
businessmen not be multi-cultural-
ism’s answer to the old school tie,
the criss-crossing links forged with-
in the highest echelons of the
establishment on the manicured
grounds of Eton and Harrow?
Could Diwali parties not be the
Indian version of discreet port-
stained interludes at stiff London
clubs such as the Garrick? And

can passports not be bought

and sold just as much as British
peerages? These are not black

and white issues, but the trigk
may lie in adopting the Bfiish
practice of discretion.



More revelation’s in Hinduja passport affair

By Hasan Suroor \)\Q) ’ [\(

LONDON, FEB. 3. The “passport affair’” has taken
the lid off what seems like .« can of worms

. designed, perfected and patented, as it were,

! by the Hindujas.

It appears that almost evervone who is aiy -
one in the British political cstablishment, cut-
ting across parties, supped with the brothers
at some point or the other and enjoved a cosy
and mutually-beneficial reiationship untit Mr.
Peter Mandelson inadveriently dropped @
brick hurting not only himself but also expos-
ing the whole network.

There is a picture of the Lory chicf, Me. Wii-
liam Hague, flanked by the three Hinduja
brothers at a party they gave in March 1999 to
help raise funds for the pasty: there is a video
of the Hindujas' famous 194 Diwali reception
at which one of the brothers compared the
Prime Minister, Mr. Tony Blair, to {ord Rama
(“Hello, Lord Rama’ is how he is seen and
heard addressing the PM) while M. Keith Vaz,
addressed the brothers with their initals
“g P and “G.P.”. Then of course there is the
former Tory Minister, Mr. Timothy Kirkhope.
who got himself a job with the Hindujas aftev
he lost the last parliamentary eiccion.  And
it now emerges that Mr. Blair's tennis porier
and party’s fundraiser-in-chiet, tord Levy, ne-
gotiated the Hindujas’ £ one million donation
to the Millennium Dome. f is stated thatin a
moment of cestasy “an aifusive Lord Lewy
hugged Srichand (Hindujui” and foilowed it
up with an equally effusive letier

To return to the Hindujas® party for Mr.
Hague, the guest list included some of the
richest Asians in Britain besides such marquee
political names as Sir Edward Heath and Mr.
Michael Heseltine, not to mention Mr. Man-

delson. According to a report in The Times,
which has 1ot been contradicted, a week after
the event “‘some guests were surprised to be
\ent a letter from Jane Keene, director of in-
ne generation and marketing for the Con-
setvative Party” asking them for donations. “Uf
you give over 1,000 pounds to the party per
annum you can become a member of one of
the treasurers clubs and will be-invited to
events at which you will have opportunity to
discuss the issues that maiter to you directly
with shadow Cabinet Ministers,” the letter
said, explaining how the party was going to set
up 4 unit to promote multi-culralism ete.

‘The newspaper pointed out that the Tory
leader's “own exploitation of links with the
Indian billionaires casts fresh doubt on the
wisdom of his (House of) Commons attack on
Mr. Blair and Mr. Mandelson.”

the more important point is that the
Findujas have been on everybody's wish list.
The Torics used their good offices to raise
funds, the Labour used them to save a cash-
strapped project, and individual politicians
used them to advance their own interests {in-
diectly, Mr. Vaz is said to owe his ministerial
berth to the Hindujas). Is it then such a big
deal if once in a
while they decide to drop by to collect their
bill ?

Hindujas’ plea to be
heard on Monday

By J. Venkatesan

NEW DELHL, FEB. 3. The threc Hinduja brothers,
accused in the Rs. 64 crores Bofors payoffs
case, today moved the Delhi High Count
against the special court’s order rejecting their
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plea to leave india. The revision petitions filed
by the Hinduja brothers — S.P. Hinduja, G.P.
Hinduja and P.P. 1linduja to set aside the trial
court's order are likely to come up for hearing
on Monday.

In the supplementary chargesheet the CBI
had accused the three brothers of receiving 81
million Swedish kroners as kickbacks from
A.B. Bofors company in the Howitzer gun deal.

The trial court had on February 1 accepred
thie CBY's objections that they might not come
back ta India to face trial if the procecdings
went against them and disimissed tﬁi‘wlicar

. AN
nons. 2 W v
The Judge had pnil&e( out that S.P. Hinduj\/

and G.P. Hinduja obtained British citizenship
atter the FIR was filed in the Bofors vase in
1990. Similarly, the fudge said P.P. Hinduja
had obtained Swiss citizenship and under
Swiss law a citizen could not be extradited
without his written consent. Hence if no con-
sent was given it would be impossible for the
CB! to get him extradited to face the wrial.

Notwithstanding the assertion by the
Hinduja brothers that they had fully cooperat-
ed with the CBI in the investigation and be-
cause of their absence from their business
headquarters, their global business running
into billions of dolars had suffered, the Judge
turned down their plea to go abroad.

While the CBI had maintained that during
the interrogation th »y were very “evasive” and
did not answer the main issue at all, the thre
brothers asserted that they had fully cooperat-
ed with the CBI in the investigation and they
would continue to do so.

The Hinduja brothers were granted bail o
January 19 soon after they appeared betore the
court but were directed not leave (ndia
without prior permission.



“Court blow
to Hinduja
hopes of
leaving India,
STATESMA{I NEWS Sﬁ%:: &CL

NEW DELHI, Feb. 1. — The
designated court of Mr Ajit
Bharihoke today dismissed the
‘three Hinduja brothers’ appli-
i:ation for permission to leave
the country.

Mr Bharihoke® daill the
application of Mr SP{Hinduja,
Mr GP Hinduja and Mr PP
Hinduja is dismissed on the
ground of the apprehensions
cited by the CBL §
The CBI had aske thé court
not to allow the brothers to
leave India. CBI counsel, Mr N
Natrajan, said that as the
three brothers are foreign
nationals, chances are that
they might not present
themselves before the court if
they see that the case is going
against them.

Mr Natrajan, mentioning Mr
PP Hinduja, said: “He is a
Swiss national dnd according
to Swiss law, a person can be
extradited only if he/she gives
her consent in writing to the
authorities.”

After the court passed the
order, Hinduja’s counsel said:
“It was an unexpected order.
We will see the court’s order
before moving to the court.”
He added: “We do not have a
copy of the order yet and are
not aware of the reasons which
persuaded the special judge to
reject the application”, adds
PTL
He said the Hinduja brothers
had expressed disappointed
with the CBD’s attitude.

They had taken objection to
the agency’s stand that they
might not come back to India
if the trial happened to go
against them.

The Hinduja brothers had
voluntarily appeared before
the court to honour their
undertaking, he said.

“They faced the CBI
interrogation for nearly 10
days with an attitude of
cooperation. With all their
family and business interests
in India, there is no reason
why they should not come
back.” .

8 CBI inches towards
Bofors conclusion, page 8
# Labour chief brokered .

Hinduja deal, page'!)///
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~ »’*Srichand was granted

cmzenshlp agalnst M16 advice’

By Hasan Suroor

W

LONDON, JAN 30. The Tories gave a twist to the Hin{u-
jas passport affair today, alleging that Mr. Srichaad
Hinduja was investigated in 1998 by Britain’s secret
intelligence service MI6, who recommended that his
application be turned down.

The Tories said Mr. Srichand was granted citizen-
ship against the advice of Mi6 as a favour for his £
one miltion donation to the Millenium Dome and
following the then Dome Minister, Mr. Peter Man-
delson's intervention.

The Shadow Home Secretary, Ms. Ann Widde-
combe, has written to Sir Anthony Hammond, who
is conducting an inquiry into the “scandal’’, to look
into this and also whether the British High Commis-
sion in India was privy to this or helped MI6 in
gathering information about Mr. Srichand’s suitabil-
ity for British citizenship.

According to one newspaper, Ms. Widdecombe's
claim that MI6 opposed Mr. Hinduja's application
was based on a “highly-placed tip-off to the Conser-
vative HQ"".

Ms. Widdecombe told a TV channel that the main
point to be investigated was whether there was a link
between the donation and the grant of citizenship,
and if true, it was a serious case of “corruption”’. She
was convinced Mr. Srichand was rewarded for res-
cuing the cash-trapped Dome.

The Tories also demanded that the scope of the
Hammond inquiry be widened to include the role of
the Foreign Office Minister, Mr. Keith Vaz, in view of
the revelations indicating his close links with the

Hindujas. The brothers are said to have played a role
in Mr. Vaz becoming a Minister, and later hosted a
reception to mark his promotion.

The Times reported that the Hammond inquiry,
likely to be completed by the end of next month, was
“certain to look at a letter from Mr. Vaz to the
Hindujas promising to sign letters they composed to
Mr. Tony Blair and Mr. Mandelson”. It said that only
five days after the letters, signed by Mr. Vaz, Mr.
Gopichand “received his passport on November 4,
1997."

The inquiry would no longer to be restricted to the
controversy over Mr. Srichand’s passport but also
look into the previous cases relating to the efforts of
the brothers to get British citizenship, allegedly as an
insurance against possible extradition to India in
connection with the Bofors scandal.

Official sources did not rule out the possibility of
British diplomats in India keeping the Government
here informed about the Bofors investigations
against the brothers, but whether MI6 played any
role was not clear.

It was also pointed out that MI6 generally did not
make recommendations though the tone of its re-
ports could influence decisions. Meanwhile, Mr.
Mandelson, who was forced to resign for lobbying
for Mr. Srichand — was said to be firm on clearing
his “name", saying he was “hustled” into quitting.
While Mr. Mandelson was reported to be away on a
holiday, his friends were lobbying for his case to be
reopened even as the message from Downing Street
was to close the chapter and get on with business.

THE HINCU
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HINDUJA STORY — MARK II

It is not possible to prove a negative

FACED with documents that establish payments into their ;
accounts in Switzerland by Bofors, Hindujas have had to
revise their earlier story. They had been asserting all along
that they have been falsely implicated and that they have had
no relations with Bofors at any time. There is also evidence
that they have had close connections with Martin Ardbo, the
Managing Director of Bofors, who knows all there is to know
about the sordid deal, and has mentioned them in his diaries
although in enigmatic terms and with Hans Ekbolm vice-
president of Bofors. No longer able to deny these payments in
the face of documents they have been shown, they produce a
fallback story; they admit they received the money from
Bofors but assert that it did not relate to the controversial
gun deal. Ottavio Quattrrochi, made the same change in his
story except that he had told our reporter when he left Delhi
at leisure that he had not had any relationship with Bofors at -
any time and this was published then. For him to say now
that he did rec%ve t}llle money but it related to a?\other deal !
seems an afterthought. ﬁé\x - A n s,
There are several difficulti Ain accep?inétégffindujg) s\eﬁ@y
— Mark II. The first is that it is not possible to prove a
negative. Merely to assert that the money received from |
Bofors related to another deal runs into the following |
difficulties. 1) The Swiss froze their accounts and they remain
frozen. They would have acted only on the certainty that the |
money came from Bofors and it related’to the gun deal, which |
was the subject of the Letters Rogatory. It is unthinkable that !
the Swiss would proceed otherwise. Have the CBI looked into ;
the three separate judgments of the Swiss Federal Tribunal
dated 12 July 1993, rejecting their several contentions and |
fining them SF 3000 each? Indeed some time later the
brothers succeeded in getting the investigating magistrate to
delete items of payments in the same advice, which they
satisfied him related to other items. The simple question is
why did they not do the same in respect of the payments !
disclosed by the Swiss to India, which they now claim related
to other items? 2) The Hindujas, and Quattrocchi among
others were defendants in the Swiss courts and for many :
years; if as they now say, the Swiss have got the deal wrong, |
two consequences follow. The Swiss would not have pursued .
them and it was a simple matter to have proved that the
)4, “ents related to another case to the investigative
«<agls rate before he decided to release the documents to
India. In fact the brothers led the investigating magistrate a
merry dance for many months putting out the idea that they
would agree to release certain documents if the magistrate
agreed to withhold others, they did they not go th#jpugh with
it. They still have a further opportunity. They can prove to |
the Special judge in Delhi, in chambers, what deals the |
payments were for and they would be off the hook. Having |
proved that they received money from Bofors and the i
disclosure came under Letters Rogatory, limited to this gun |
deal, the burden of proof is on them, not on the CBI. i
While under court orders to be interrogated in Delhi, the |
brothers manage to make a trip to a VVIP ghat in g-private :
plane to take a dip in the Kumbh Mela and;re;tﬁ‘anfﬁ in the
same luxury. If the government continues to ‘sy}}m‘r them such

special coyrtesis it sends entirely wrong messages to the
prosecugefs. .



é

~~Hindujas’
reply,evasive, .

says CB
AL

STATESMAN NEL} SERVICE

NEW DELHI, Jan. 30. — The :
court of special judge, Mr Ajit |
Bharihoke, reserved its order

till 1 February on the applica-
tion of the Hinduja brothers to
leave the country.

The court heard the applica-
tion filed earlier by Mr Sri-
chand P Hinduja, Mr Prakash P
Hinduja and Mr Gopichand P
Hinduja, to leave the country
once the CBI has finished their
interrogation.

Special public prosecutor for
the CBI, Mr N Natarajan, ob-
jected to the Hindujas’ plea,
after the agency submitted its

[ ] Edltonal Hmdma story
— Mark II: page 6
% Hinduja fire now
engulfs Tories: page 9

status report before the court.
He said the Hindujas had been
giving “evasive replies”.
Earlier, Mr Rajender Singh,
counsel for the Hindujas, argued
“their conduct is in front of you.
They have given the surety and
if you want another surety they
can give it. Their conduct in the
past has been proof in itself’,
Another counsel for them, Mr
Amit Desai, said despite being
residents of another country

and hence under the jurisdic-

tion of another court, the Hin-
dujas had presented themselves
the Indian courts as they were
anxious to clear their stance.
Mr Desai said the Hindujas
will co-operate with the CBI
whenever they are called for
another hearing in India. But
the CBI counsel objected, saying
if the Hindujas felt the case was

going against them, they will )

# See- HINDUJAS: page 5

/HINDUJAS: ¢
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(Continued

never return to'l c}ia and it
will be impossible td extradite
them on legal ounds,
especially in the ‘case of
Prakash P Hinduja, who is a
Swiss national. ‘

According to Swiss law, the
extradition of any Swiss
national can take place only
after the person gives his/her
consent In writing to the
authorities. If the person
withdraws his consent even
seconds before his surrender,
his extradition can not take
place, Mr Natarajan told the
court. The court also today
issued non-bailable warrant
against former Bofors chief
Martin Ardbo sounding a red
corner alert through Interpol,
reports UNL The CBI also said
efforts to extradite another
accused Italian businessman
Ottavio Quattrochhi was on in |
a Malaysian court and hoped
that it would come through in
the next few days.



Sricha %d\v Hinduja
denies lobbying

" for Keith Vaz

Vaz (left) and Hinduja: More worms out of the can

London
28 JANUARY
INDUJA GROUP chair-
Hman S.P. Hinduja, on
Sunday, described as
“4otally false” the reports that he
had lobbied with British Prime
Minister Tony Blair to make Keith
Vaz a minister.

“Well, I am not the person to
decide anybody’s Cabinet position
but I have been suggesting to the
Labour government, even to the
Opposition, whoever has been in
power, that knowing Britain’s
multi-cultural  understanding,
they should also promote and
introduce in the machinery, min-
isters and civil servants from the
minority communities.

“At no time have [ written or
said anything specifically for
Keith Vaz,” Mr Hinduja told

! David Frost in BBC’s television

programme Breakfast With Frost.
The question pertained to a
report in the Sunday Telegraph

. that the Hinduja brothers had lob-
‘ bied with Mr Blair to give Mr Vaz
L a ministerial job.

“(It is) totally false and more-

" over, the decision is with the

Prime Minister. Who am I to
decide that?” Mr Hinduja said.
Asked specifically what tran-
spired between him and Northern
Ireland secretary Peter
Mandelson, who quit following the
row over the “passport-for-
favour” coniroversy, Mr Hinduja
said: “Well, I just casually
enquired from him, could you
please let me know what is hap-
pening to my application...What is
the progress of my application.”

“I never thought that the
developed world and the people of
Britain, the media in Britain,
would get up one morning and tell
me that this donation (£1 million
for the Millennium Dome), which
was given by my foundation, is
linked with the passport.”

He said it was not only Mr
Mandelson “I enquired from. I
asked a couple of others, people in
the political world, whether they
had any idea about what was hap-
pening with my passport applica-
tion.”

He said that among others, he
had made such enquiries with Mr
Vaz and a couple of other
“friends” too.

Peter Mandelson claimed that
he was “forced” from his Cabinet
job on the basis of incomplete evi-
dence and that he never lied dur-
ing the passports for favours
affair.

Writing at length in the
Sunday Times, he said: “A small
mistake turned into a monumental
disaster” and that he is deter-
mined to fight back to reverse that
error. He believed the inquiry set
up by the Prime Minister would
find him innocent.

He maintained he still has no
recollection of a telephone conver-
sation with a home office minister,
an alleged discussion which was at
the heart of his removal from
office. He said a former civil ser-
vant at the Cabinet office spoke to
him on Friday, saying that a col-
league who handled the matter in
1998 did not remember Mr
Mandelson speaking to the minis-
ter, Mike O’Brien. /o

The Econcniic Time.
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/ﬁKministéi\//
quits overyyl
Hinduja, 1ssue

ol I B A

London, January 24

BRITISH MINISTER Peter
Mandelson, accused of helping
businessman S P Hinduja get a
British passport, resigned on
Wednesday.

Mandelson's resignation came
shortly after he was summoned
by PM Tony Blair to "establish
the facts" following a political
storm over the intervention of the
Secretary of State for Northern
Ireland in the second passport
application of Hinduja, a major
donor for the Millennium Dome
project.

Blair called the minister to his
residence in- the wake of
Mandelson's "about turn” that he
had asked Immigration Minister
Mike O'Brien to consider the
application.

After the two-hour meeting
with  Blair, the Minister
announced his resignation but
maintained he had not acted
improperly in the passport issue.

"I do not-accept in any way that
I have acted improperly in-respect
of any application for naturalj
tion as a British citizen,"
outside Blair's office.

THE HINDUSTAN Tives
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—Srichand interrogation over

Hinduja again.” Mr. Khan said the Hinduja brothers
were replying to all questions.

Emerging from the CBI headquarters after his ses-
sion with the detectives, Mr. Srichand Hinduja said

| ’)/A \ By Our Special Correspondent ?./ /Q,

! NEW DBLHI, JAN. 23. The CBI today again questioned
i Mr. Srithand Hinduja, chairperson of the Hinduja
L group, &n several aspects of the alleged commission

| received by the Hinduja brothers in the Rs. 1,437-
crore Bofors gun deal in 1986.

Though for the time being the agency appears to
~have rounded off the interrogation of Mr. Srichand
7 Hinduja, the CBI spokesperson, Mr. S.M. Khan, said
he could be summoned again, if needed. He said the
agency would question Geneva-based Mr. Prakash
Hinduja tomorrow. Mr. G.P. Hinduja would be
called later.

Mr. Srichand Hinduja has been quizzed by the CBI
every day since Saturday afternoon and today’s ses-
sion lasted nearly three hours. The agency submit-
ted a progress report to the Special Court yesterday
and granted time to proceed with the interrogation
of the three NRI business tycoons till January 30.

Well-placed CBI sources said the agency could
need at least two to three days each for questioning
Mr. Gopichand and Mr. Prakash Hinduja for their
alleged role and receipt of kickbacks in the Bofors
deal. The Hindujas have maintained that the money
they received from the Swedish arms manufacturer
was not related to the Indian Howitzer deal.

Responding to a query if Mr. Srichand Hinduja
could move an application before the Special Court
to go abroad as his interrogation was over, the CBI
spokesperson said, ‘“We will answer it in the court
but if certain issues figure during the interrogation

that he had offered all cooperation to the agency and
hoped that the CBI would come out with truth, “At
the end, everything will be crystal clear.”

The Hinduja brothers appeared before the Special
Court on January 19 after years of dilly-dallying and
were asked to join investigations.

Mandelson denial
Reuters reports:

In London, the Northern Ireland Secretary, Mr.
Peter Mandelson, the British Prime Minister’s clos-
est political ally, strove today to rebut allegations
that he acted improperly in British passport applica-
tions by Mr. Srichand Hinduja.

Mr. Mandelson, who has already resigned from
Government once, authorised Mr. Tony Blair’s spo-
kesperson to tell reporters he had talked to the Im-
migration Minister in 1998 about a passport
application by Mr. Srichand Hinduja. The official
spokesperson said Mr. Mandelson had checked his
records and found that he had talked to the Home
Office Minister, Mr. Mike O’Brien, about the process
of passport applications, having met Mr. Hinduja at
a party.

However, “he did not promote or endorse any
application. There is nothing improper at all in Peter
having been approached at an event.”

THE HINDU
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CBI gets

STATESMAN NEWS SERVICE -

' NEW DELHI, Jan. 22. — The
" Hinduja brothers today received
a setback when a designated
CBI court allowed the inves-
tigating agency another week’s
time to interrogate them for
their alleged involvement in the
Rs 64-crore Bofors pay-off case.
The Special CBI Judge, Mr
Ajit Bharihoke, also directed
the CBI to file a report on 30
January when the court will
take up hearing on their app-
lication seeking to go abroad.
The court’s direction came
after the CBI investigating off-
icer, Mr Keshav Mishra, sub-
mitted that the agency had so
far partly interrogated Mr SP

one

o
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- \
Hinduja, chairman of t
Hinduja group, and would
require at least one week more
to conclude examining his two
other brothers — Mr GP
Hinduja and Mr PP Hinduja —
accused in the case.

Mr Mishra has requested
more time so that the agency
can get more details and cla-
rifications from the brothers.

The CBI official furnished
details of the case dairy of the
agency that started interrogating
Mr SP Hinduja from Saturday
afternoon and continued all thr-
ough Sunday till Monday morn-
ing. The judge perused the dairy.

Earlier, counsel for the Hin-
dujas, Mr Arvind Nigam,
submitted before the court that

week to
Y

\_A

the brothers have k)een cooper-
ating with the €BL “If the
questioning of any of the Hin-
duja brothers was completed
before 30 January, he be per-
mitted to go out of the country,”
he pleaded. Mr Bharihoke said:
“You are free to move an appli-
cation in this regard anytime.”

Asked whether the agency
would complete its interro-
gation by 30 January, Mr Mish-
ra said: “If not; then we would
seek court’s permission for
more time to interrogate them.”

He said: “They (Hindujas) are
behaving nicely and so are we.
But the task before us is to find
the truth and for that we will
continue the interrogation.” On
Saturday, the court had given

THE STATESMARK
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order to the CBI to start inter-
rogation of the brothers.
Quattrocchi: In Kuala Lu-
mpur, Mr Ottavio Quattrocehi-
today stepped up his legal fight
to stop extradition from Mal-
aysia, claiming he would
become a victim of politics and
not receive justice, AP adds.

A Malaysian high court judge
fixed - 16 february to hear Mr
Quattrocchi’s application to qu-
ash the home ministry’s appro-
val to have him sent to India on
a request from New Delhi. Mr
Quattrocchi said there was no
need for him to go to India,
claiming “there is no case.”

u Will CBI escape
unlucky 13? page 8

s



-~ SP Hinduja,
grﬂ}s}% again \
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NEW DELHI, Jan 21. — The CBI today interrogated Mr SP
Hinduja for the second day over the alleged involvement of
Hinduja brothers in the Bofors deal.

The Hinduja brothers have been accused of involvement in the
deal. Kickbacks for the purchase of the 155mm howitzers from
the Swedish company were paid into three Swiss Bank accounts
— Tulip, Mont Blanc and Lotus — which allegedly belonged to
the Hinduja brothers.

Mr SP Hinduja, the London-based billionaire, spent nearly six
hours in two sessions at the CBI headquarters. He said the
payments received by the Hindujas were not related to the
company’s gun deal with india.

The brothers, no longer Indian citizens, recently returned for
interrogations by the CBI. The investigating agency is now
trying to secure the extradition of Mr Ottavio Quattrocchi, who
had links with Rajiv Gandhi and is now in Malaysia.

A CBI SP, Mr Umesh, has left for Malaysia to assist its counsel,
Mr Cyrus Das, in the extradition proceedings against Mr
Quattrocchi, beginning tomorrow, agency sources said here
today.

Oher brothers — Mr GP Hinduja and Mr PP Hinduja — may be

interrogated.
Denial: Mr SP Hinduja today denied media reports in Britain
that Mr Peter Mandelson, Northern Ireland secretary, had
helped him and his brother, Mr GP Hinduja, obtain British
citizenship after they agreed to donate ope/million pounds to bail
out the Millennium Dome in London
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Hindujas can’t leave
STATESMAN NEWS SERVICE 4(: (i ()/,,_ Prosecution counsel Mr N Natar?jan
= submitted that the agency, which had left

o stone unturned to question the

rothers, sought three days’ time at their

onvenience to question them. The agency

was not interested in taking them into
custody, Mr Natarajan pleaded. However,
the court should take necessary
precautions to secure their presence
during the trial, CBI counsel submitted.

Arguing for the Hindujas, senior advo-
cates Mr Arvind Nigam, Mr Amit Desai
and and Mr Rajinder Singh contended that
as their clients “have voluntarily appeared
without receiving any summons issued by
the court, any mention about taking into
custody would affect their global business
worth billions of dollars”.

Mr Singh further submitted that “even if
the court takes them into custody and
releases them immediately on bail, it also
would have grave consequence on their
global business interests as in signing of
any contract, the first question asked is
whether you have been released on bail”.

“The three brothers have roots, business
interests and so many things in India,
where their investment was to the tune of

NEW DELHI, Jan. 19. — A designated
CBI court, trying the Bofors case, today
directed the Hinduja brothers not to leave
the country without the court’s
permission. It, however, granted them bail
on furnishing of bail bonds of Rs 2 lakh
and a surety each of like amount.

An application seeking court permission
to -go abroad, which was filed today, will
come up for hearing at 10 a.m. tomorrow.

The three Hinduja brothers — London-
based group chairman Mr SP Hinduja,
group President Mr GP Hinduja and
Geneva-based Mr PP Hinduja - had
arrived in Delhi yesterday. Today, they
drove to the court of the special CBI judge,
Mr Ajit Bharihoke, under heavy security
cover and appeared before him at 12.30
p.m.accompanied by a battery of senior
advocates.

After an Hour of arguments between def-
ence and prosecution counsel in the court,
Mr Bharihoke directed the Hinduja brothers

'“to join the investigation as and when
required by CBI and not to leave the country
without prior permission of the court”.

ﬂ‘SfATw
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without court néd

/LLM n
Rs 10,000 crore,” Mr Singh told the court.

At one point of time, Mr Singh objected to
Mr Natarajan’s submission that the Hin-
dujas had not cooperated with the inves-
tigation and contended that their clients
had been questioned by the agency even
before the FIR was registered in 1990.

Immediately after the court direction, the
three brothers, through their counsel, filed
a petition giving details of their business
commitments in various countries. They
also submitted in their applications that
as the financial year is going to end in
March, they have to participate in board
meetings of various companies to approve
their budget.

The CBI prosecutor said that if the
Hindujas can give an undertaking that
they will be present during every hearing,
they will be exempted from the
requirement of the bail application.

The court has given time till 30 January
for scrutinising the documents and
information regarding pending application
of granting them permission for the
hearing outside India.

B Another report on page 8
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FROMR. VENKATARAMAN

New Delhi, Jan. 18: In a step
shrouded in mystery, the Hinduja
brothers arrived in India today, a
day before they are due to appear
before the Bofors trial court, de-
spite “not having received the
summons” issued by the special
judge.

The Hindujas’ defence coun-
sel, Ujjawal Rana, said all the
three accused in the kickbacks
case, will appear in the special
court of additional district and
sessions judge, Ajit Bharihoke, to-
MOrTOW.

Chairman of the Hinduja
group, Shrichand P. Hinduja, ar-
rived in Delhi from London while
brothers, London-based
Gopichand and Geneva-based

\‘\ 1
“Now that they (Hindujas) ha-
vearrived, they will appear before
the court tomorrow. They firmly
believe that the allegations made
against them in the case were
false and motivated,” Rana said.
The lawyer asserted that his
clients were not the ones to shy
away from any judicial process as
they believed that the law would
take its own course. “They will
come like any ordinary accused
or litigants and wait for their turn
in the courtroom before the

judge,” Rana said.

The special court had issued
summons to the Hinduja broth-
ers, asking them to appear before
it on January 19, after taking cog-
nizance of the CBI chargesheet,
which alleged that they had re-
ceived 81 million Swedish kroners

court date

99 -Aredy

which bagged the Howitzer g
contract in 1986.

On January 10, the decks were
cleared for the brothers’ appear-
ance when the CBI said it had
asked the immigration authori-
tiesnottodetain orarrestthemon
their arrival in India.

“After all, nobody wants to.be |
arrested and for that matter every
human being fears the term ‘jail’.
And they are, after all, human be-
ings,” a lawyer said.

Alleging that the government
was not taking action against the
Hindujas because of the Prime
Minister’s proximity to them, the
Opposition had challenged Atal
Bihari Vajpayee to chargesheet
the three brothers. Political cir-
cles argued that the arrival of the
business tycoons will blunt the

Harichand, landed in Mumbai. from the now-defunct AB Bofors  Opposition attack. ;
y e 2 2t i o ()
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